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Financial Highlights

Sz h
s
As at As at Percentage
August 31, 2021  August 31, 2020 Change change
A202145 20204
8H31H 8A318 & BOoLEH
Number of Schools LREHE 3 3 — —
Student enrollment MESE 4 A 46,669 43,314 3,355 7.7%
Year ended Year ended Percentage
August 31, 2021  August 31,2020 Change change
8Z2021%F HZE 20204
8A31HIEE S8A3IBILFE 28 BOLE
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB’000)
(AR®T ) (AR T T) (AR FT)
Revenue Iz 881,656 761,481 120,175 15.8%
Gross profit E7 470,513 452,579 17,934 4.0%
Profit for the year FARFHE 143,459 306,669 (163,210) (53.2%)
Adjusted net profit™® KR T 299,148 337,708 (38,560) (11.4%)
Earnings per share (RMB) BRAEM(AR®ET) 0.120 0.270 (0.150) (55.8%)
Percentage
point
ERR
Gross profit ratio ESp 53.4% 59.4% (6.0)
Operating profit ratio FEEIDEES 25.5% 46.5% (21.0)
Net Profit ratio oy 16.3% 40.3% (24.0)
Adjusted Net Profit ratio” A% ) & 4 | &) 33.9% 44.3% (10.4)
Note: B 5 -
(1) Adjusted net profit is a non-HKFRSs measure, which is derived from the profit after adjusting (1) KRABMFWIEBTEMBREENGFE S E &

compensation fee for the conversion of Huali College in May 2021, interest expenses on
discount of compensation payable for the conversion and amounts due to a related party, net
foreign exchange losses, fair value gains on investment properties and listing expenses of last
year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of directors of Huali University Group Limited, | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended August 31,
2021.

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on
November 25, 2019. Listing on the Stock Exchange has brought new opportunities
and possibilities for the development of the Company. The management of
the Company will grasp the opportunity to further improve the influence and
reputation of the Company’s brand, and further enhance its scale of operations
with sustained profitability and effective management strategy.

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The Group achieved encouraging results of performance for the year ended
August 31, 2021. We are a leading large-scale private higher education and
vocational education group in South China, offering applied science-focused
and practice-oriented programs. The Group operates three schools including
Guangzhou Huali College, (formerly known as Huali College Guangdong University
of Technology (B T % K& 281)), Guangzhou Huali Science and Technology
Vocational College and Guangdong Province Huali Technician College.

During the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group's performance was still
outstanding thanks to an increase in the number of students and average tuition
fees. During the Reporting Period, the number of student enrolments in the
Group was 46,669, representing an increase of 7.7% than that of the 2019/2020
academic year. For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group’s schools recorded
revenue growth, which is consistent with its business expansion. The Group's
revenue increased from approximately RMB761.5 million for the year ended
August 31, 2020 to RMB881.7 million for the year ended August 31, 2021, with
an increase of RMB120.2 million. The Group generally charges students tuition
fees and boarding fees, which account for 100% of the total income of the
Group for the year ended August 31, 2021.

A final dividend for the year ended August 31, 2021 of HK$0.0502 per Share,
amounting to a total dividend of HK$60,240,000, will be proposed at the AGM,
to reciprocate the Shareholders for their continued support.

Independent College Conversion

During the Reporting Period, Huali College Guangdong University of Technology
has obtained approval from the MOE for conversion and subsequently changed its
name as Guangzhou Huali College. The Group believes the conversion will present
significant opportunities in expanding the enrollment as well as improving the
education quality and efficiency of the independent colleges.
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PROSPECTS

We intend to maintain and strengthen our leading position in the private higher
education industry and private vocational education industry in South China.
To achieve this goal, we plan to pursue the following business strategies: (1)
continue to enhance our reputation as a provider of private higher education and
private vocational education; (2) continue to increase student enrollment through
expanding our business operations in our existing schools and further expand our
school network in China and abroad; (3) continue to improve our profitability
by optimizing our pricing and sources of revenue; (4) continue to strengthen
collaboration with corporate employers; (5) continue to attract, incentivize and
retain talented teachers and support their professional development; and (6)
improve our revenue structure through developing vocational education and

training business.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all the Shareholders for their
continued trust, support and confidence. | would also like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management and all staff for their professionalism, integrity
and dedication in implementing the Group’s strategies. The Group will continue
to pursue sustainable development strategies and focus on maximizing the
Shareholders’ returns.

Zhang Zhifeng
Chairman
Hong Kong, November 19, 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BT RPN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a leading large-scale private higher education and vocational education
group in South China, offering applied science-focused and practice-oriented
programs. As at August 31, 2021, we had an aggregate of 46,669 students
enrolled at our three schools, namely Huali College, Huali Vocational College and

Huali Technician College.

Our schools offer private higher education and private vocational education in a
wide range of fields in applied sciences with an aim to prepare our students with
the necessary knowledge base, skill sets and accreditations to secure jobs and
pursue careers in particular professions, trades and industries. As at August 31,
2021, we offered 37 undergraduate programs, 37 junior college programs and 30

vocational programs.

Business Highlights
Our schools are located in strategic geographic locations in Guangdong Province
with strong reputation for offering applied science-focused and practice-oriented

formal higher education programs and vocational programs.

All our three schools are located in Guangdong Province, one of China’s most
developed provinces. Guangdong Province and the wider Greater Bay Area are one
of the most populated areas with the most economic activities in China. In light
of the national strategy “Made in China 2025"” adopted by the State Council in
2015 to promote the development of China’s manufacturing industry in the next
10 years and the Report on Reform and Innovation of Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Greater Bay Area in China (2020) issued by the Research Institute for the
Reform and Innovation of Greater Bay Area (Nansha) in Guangzhou, Guangdong
Province has significant growth opportunities. In addition, it is expected the supply
of talent in technology and science in Guangdong Province will be insufficient
to satisfy the demand. Through over 20 years of operation, we have established
a strong reputation for providing applied science-focused and practice-oriented
formal higher education programs and vocational programs. During the past few
years, the admission score of Huali College and Huali Vocational College also
ranked among the highest of comparable private higher education institutions
in Guangdong Province, which demonstrated market recognition of the quality
of our education services as well as confidence of students and parents in our
schools. We believe we are well positioned to capture the growth opportunities in
the private higher education industry and private vocational education industry in
China, in particular in Guangdong Province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We have a unified educational philosophy and centralized management structure

We operate each of our schools with a unified educational philosophy, which
is to provide the best practice-oriented education based on each student’s
education level and individual needs and help them succeed. For all of the
schools we operate, we utilize market demand to guide our selection of major
offerings and design of curricula. In addition, in order to maintain the quality of
our education services, our teachers undergo frequent training and we conduct
teacher performance reviews and evaluations to ensure that consistent teaching
standards and educational philosophy are implemented in different schools.
We have established a centralized management system which enables us to
consistently manage various aspects of our schools including, among others,
finance and budgeting, marketing and student recruitment and talent reserve. In
addition, under our centralized management structure, we make overall plans and
development strategies for all of our schools, which we believe have enabled us
to fully integrate our resources to promote balanced growth of our schools and
optimize synergistic effects among our schools.

We believe that through our unified educational philosophy and centralized
management structure, we are able to integrate our resources, achieve economies
of scale, lower our operating costs and serve a large and growing student
population while maintaining consistent education quality and standards, all of
which can be employed to enable us to implement consistent strategies with a
view to replicating our success when we acquire or establish new schools in the
future.

We have an experienced and proven senior management team

Each of our schools is managed on a day-to-day basis by a principal, who is
assisted by several vice-principals and a team of seasoned mid-level managers.
The principals are dedicated and experienced educators and many of our
mid-level managers also have extensive experience in the education industry.
Some of our vice-principals served as teachers or administrative staff at our
schools before being internally promoted to management level and have in-depth
understanding of our corporate culture and management philosophy. In addition,
we provide professional management training to our management team and
conduct performance reviews and evaluations periodically. We believe that our
management team possesses the vision and in-depth industry knowledge required
to anticipate and take advantage of market opportunities and to effectively
prioritize and execute sound business strategies to maximize the Shareholders’

value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BT RPN

Growth Strategies
We intend to maintain and strengthen our leading position in the private higher
education industry and private vocational education industry in South China.

We continue to make demand-driven investments in our existing schools to
upgrade the school facilities to accommodate more students and enhance their
educational experience. According to the 14th Five-Year Plan for Economic and
Social Development of the PRC, the student enrollment rate of higher education
is expected to continue to rise and reach 60.0% in 2025. In response to the 14th
Five-Year Plan, we have expanded the scale of our school operations and gradually
increase the student enrollment in our schools. Specifically, we (i) expanded
Huali College by constructing additional buildings in Zengcheng City, Guangdong
Province, and establishing a new campus in Jiangmen City, Guangdong Province;
(ii) expanded Huali Vocational College by constructing additional buildings in
Yunfu City, Guangdong Province; (iii) applied for the establishment of a new
junior college to provide higher education and vocational education as well
as grant junior college diplomas accredited by the MOE by establishing a new
campus in Jiangmen City, Guangdong Province. By expanding the scale of our
schools, we will be able to recruit more students.

We continue to improve our profitability by optimizing our pricing strategies.
During the year ended August 31, 2021, we raised the tuition fees of Huali
College and Huali Vocational College for certain programs. Historically, we kept
our tuition fees at levels we believe are competitive compared to our peers in
order to attract more students, thereby increasing our student enrollment and
market share. As we have established a strong reputation for providing quality
education to our students, we believe we are in a good position to optimize our
pricing without compromising our reputation and our ability to attract and retain

students.

Our Schools
We operate three schools in Guangdong Province, all of which grant government
accredited degrees or certifications, including:

. Huali College: an independently established private general undergraduate
college, offering four- to five-year undergraduate programs” granting
bachelor degrees accredited by the MOE;

o Huali Vocational College (including Zengcheng campus and Yunfu campus):

a formal higher education institution, offering three-year vocational

programs granting junior college diplomas accredited by the MOE; and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Huali Technician College (including Zengcheng campus and Yunfu campus):
a private technician school primarily offering three-year, full-time vocational
programs® granting technician diplomas of Huali Technician College
accredited by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security of

Guangdong Province and short-term intensive vocational programs.

Generally, Huali College offers four-year undergraduate programs and a five-year
undergraduate program in architecture.

Generally, Huali Technician College offers three-year vocational programs as well as two-,
four- and five-year programs to students of different education levels pursuing different types
of technician diplomas.

Student Enrollment

As at August 31, 2021, we had an aggregate of 46,669 students"

enrolled in our

three schools, comprising 18,307 students at Huali College, 18,822 students at

Huali Vocational College and 9,540 students at Huali Technician College.

BIEE R W ko AT

FURMBER(BEEHREREFR
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As at As at Percentage
August 31, 2021 August 31, 2020 Change change
020214 720204
School 2/ 8A31AH 8A31H ) BOLEY
Huali College BEIVER 18,307 17,765 542 3.1%
Huali Vocational College % B ¥ 2Bk 18,822 17,581 1,241 7.1%
— Zengcheng campus — R E 14,5963 16,5314 (1,935) (11.7%)
— Yunfu campus — EERE 4,226 1,050 3,176 302.5%
Huali Technician College % 3 T2 % 9,540 7,968 1,572 19.7%
— Zengcheng campus T35 1 [ 7,827 6,837 990 14.5%
— Yunfu campus % 1,713 1,131 582 51.5%
Total st 46,669 43,314 3,355 7.7%
Notes: B 5

Including 1,367 students of Huali Technician College who also take junior college courses
at Huali Vocational College (the “Continuing Education Program”) and obtain a junior
college diploma awarded by Huali Vocational College, subject to, among other things, passing
the National Higher Education Entrance Exam for Adults. Each student participating in the
Continuing Education Program is required to pay additional tuition fee of RMB3,000 to Huali
Vocational College. In order to reflect such business practice, the number of students of Huali
Technician College who also participate in the Continuing Education Program was included
in the number of students of Huali Vocational College, and the revenue from the additional
tuition fees paid for the Continuing Education Program was fully included in the revenue from
tuition fees of Huali Vocational College and Huali Technician college.

Including 1,294 students who are social personnel enrolled under the national policy of
enrollment expansion of Higher Vocational Education, having passed the exam designed
independently by Huali Vocational College. These students shall pay tuition fee of RMB8,000
per academic year to Huali Vocational College, and take junior college courses mainly through
on-line and obtain a junior college diploma awarded by Huali Vocational College upon
graduation.

M
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(3) Including 1,367 students of Huali Technician College who also participate in the Continuing (3)

Education Program.

(4) Including 3,225 students of Huali Technician College who also participate in the Continuing (4)

Education Program.

Tuition Fees and Boarding Fees

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group's schools recorded revenue
growth, which was in line with the expansion of its business and student
enrollment. Revenue increased from RMB761.5 million for the year ended August
31, 2020 to RMB881.7 million for the year ended August 31, 2021. The Group
typically charges students fees comprising tuition fees and boarding fees. Tuition
fees remained as the Group’s major revenue for the year ended August 31, 2021,
accounting for approximately 92.2% of the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended August 31, 2021.

The table below summarizes the amount of revenue generated from the tuition

BERTEE

BREEVRMBEASALERBLECEAED
1367824 -

BREVRMBERAGHESELEEHEED
3225H B o

HZE2021F8A3MBILEFE @ REBER B
B EER  BEBLRRES S ABER—
oo WEME E2020F8 A31THIEFENAR
®I61 5B BT WMEH £2021F8HA31H
IEFEMNARKSIITIEET - NEE—KMA
BEAYNMEERTEESER - HE20214F
SANBLEE Z2BNALXEEEZRI -

HAEEERE2021F8A31H L FEH AR

#992.2% o

TRBAAREEAEBRBNBEREFE

fees and boarding fees charged by the Group for the years indicated: BEEANKZSEE
Year ended Year ended Percentage
August 31, 2021 August 31, 2020 Change change
HZE2021%F H %£2020%F
8A3MALEE 8A3MHILFE =) BOLES
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR¥F ) (ARETT) (AR®EFT)
Tuition fees 25
Huali College BV 155 462,431 416,456 45,975 11.0%
Huali Vocational College EBESER 248,177 223,196 24,981 11.2%
Huali Technician College RV s i1 102,716 93,069 9,647 10.4%
813,324 732,721 80,603 11.0%
Boarding fees FEE
Huali College Ve 10 29,128 13,798 15,330 111.1%
Huali Vocational College E B EER 26,589 9,972 16,617 166.6%
Huali Technician College 7 PR 2 12,615 4,990 7,625 152.8%
68,332 28,760 39,572 137.6%
Total Revenue B s 881,656 761,481 120,175 15.8%

The increase in the total revenue of the Group for the year ended August 31,
2021 was mainly due to the increase in student enrollment and average tuition

fees.
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The following table sets forth the information relating to student enrollment and
average tuition fees per student for the financial years for each of our schools,

respectively:

Management Discussion and Analysis
B AT

TERABFIEMEEREYRF R HE
BEABMEBRBETHEENER

Student Enrollment

MEREAY

Academic Year®

Average Tuition Fees per student®

SEBLETHBHO
Year Ended August 31

BFO BZESAMBLEE
2020/2021 2019/2020 2021 2020
20214 20204
(RMB) (RMB)
School 2R (AR¥T) (AR¥TT)
Huali College HEIUER 18,307 17,765 25,260 23,442
Huali Vocational College # V¥ 23 18,822 17,581 13,185 12,695
— Zengcheng campus — R E 14,596 16,531 — —
— Yunfu campus — EERE 4,226 1,050 — —
Huali Technician College  # K K 2Bz 9,540 7,968 10,767 11,680
— Zengcheng campus — B R E 7,827 6,837 — —
— Yunfu campus — EERE 1,713 1,131 — —
Total AE 46,669 43,314 17,428 16,916
Notes: B &
(1 Except as specified otherwise in this report, we present our business operating data as at (1) BRAREFSERAEIN  BM2NSBFHE
August 31 for each of the academic years. 8A31H M ¥ & HIE -
) Average tuition fees equal to the revenue from tuition fees for the relevant financial year (2) 28 Z R IER IR E E R 2B WS AR

divided by the student enrollment for the corresponding academic year.
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The following table sets out the tuition fee rates of our schools for the 2019/2020
and 2020/2021 academic years:

T 5% # 5112019/2020 }2 2020/2021 £ F 1 2
BB EAT

Tuition fee rates"
in academic year

BEFBHKFEO
2020/2021 2019/2020
(RMB) (RMB)
School X (AR ) (AR )

Huali College EIERK

Four-to five-year undergraduate program®@ MU= fF B ARERIED 28,800-32,800  25,500-29,500
International program B B R A2 36,800 33,500
Bilingual program SERE 31,800 27,500

Huali Vocational College

Three-year junior college program
— Zengcheng campus
— Yunfu campus

International program

Bilingual program

FIMEBR

= EHATRE
— EHRE
— EIRE
M R 12

SEERE

9,880-17,880
15,880-17,880
9,880
25,880-30,880
17,880

14,800-17,800
14,800-17,800
14,800-17,800
23,000-28,000
15,800-16,800

Huali Technician College EVHMER
Three-year vocational program® = FHIBERIES
— Zengcheng campus — B R

— Yunfu campus — EERE

6,300-12,300 6,000-12,800
8,800-12,300 8,800-12,800
6,300-7,500 6,000-7,500

Notes:

Tuition fee rates shown above for all of our schools are applicable to students admitted in
the relevant academic year only.

Generally, Huali College offers a four-year undergraduate programs, and a five-year
undergraduate program in architecture.

Generally, Huali Technician College offers three-year vocational programs, as well as two-,
four- and five-year programs to students of different education levels pursuing different types
of technician diplomas of Huali Technician College. In addition, we offer students at Huali
Technician College a dual-diploma program, in which students are permitted to take junior
college courses at Huali Vocational College and obtain a junior college diploma awarded
by Huali Vocational College, subject to, among other things, passing the National Higher
Education Entrance Exam for adults.

During the year ended August 31, 2021, our boarding fee rates ranged from

RMB600 to RMB6,000 per academic year depending on the location, room size

and number of students housed in each room. Especially, we offered some studio

apartments since the academic year 2020/2021, for which the boarding fee rates
range from RMB3,000 to RMB6,000 per academic year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

School Utilization Rate

School utilization rate is calculated by dividing the number of boarding student
enrollment in a particular academic year by the school capacity in the same
academic year. The school capacity of each campus is calculated by the number
of beds available in student dormitories. The following table sets out the school
utilization rate of our schools for the 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 academic years:

EEE RS

BREMR

BURE PR R R B B B A B
A-BENSRTEMABGE - SRENS
RASBAREBERSTARLYE -
T % #5112019/2020 } 2020/2021 2 5 3, 1 £
REOBRERF -

Academic year

BF

2020/2021 2019/2020
Zengcheng campus IR E
School capacity BRI AR A 30,079 29,203
School utilization rate BRERX 92.7% 93.0%
Yunfu campus EIRE
School capacity BRAOAMAE 8,000 8,000
School utilization rate B A 65.3% 24.5%

Conversion of Huali College

In May 2021, Huali College was converted into an independent private regular
undergraduate school (the “Conversion”) with the official approval of the
Commission of Guangdong Province on the Appraisal of the Establishment of
Higher Education Schools and renamed from “Huali College Guangdong University
of Technology” to “Guangzhou Huali College”. After the Conversion, Huali
College is expected to further release the student incremental potential and
increase the student enrollment. Joint tuition support fee payable to Guangdong
University of Technology will also gradually diminish starting from the 2022
financial year, thereby reducing the Group’s costs and enhancing the Group’s
profitability. For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated January 28, 2021 and July 21, 2021. The Group believes that the
Conversion will bring major development opportunity and has a positive impact on
future development.

EVEBRER
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Awards and Recognitions Received During the Reporting
Period

The Company and the three schools received numerous awards and recognitions
during the Reporting Period in recognition of the quality of education we provide

and the outstanding achievements of our operations. The following table sets

BEHBESHRERRT

BWEMBEA ARAR=ZFEREBTRZ
RERAA  REEAMAEHROBERERHK
P2 ARt - TRBIIHRFIES W B

forth some of the awards and recognitions we have received:

7 88 N R

Award/ Awarding Awarded
Recognition Organization(s) Entity
#®1E R mERAS BRER
September, 2020  Best IR Company for an IPO Hong Kong Investor Relations Company
Association
202049 A PO EIRE ERARE A A EERELEHBEDS ZAN/NG|
September, 2020  Outstanding Contribution Institution Guangdong Private Education Huali Vocational
for the 40th Anniversary of Association (BHRERFHE HE) College
Guangdong Private Education (“/& &
RM#HBEHN+EFREEREE"
202069 A EREBBENTAFTREEHMEE BERERIKEHS FEREER

September, 2020

202049 A4
December, 2020

2020F12 A
January, 2021

Outstanding Contribution Institution
for the 40th Anniversary of
Guangdong Private Education (“/& &
RMHEN+EFRE FRKE")

BEREMRHE M+ EFREER#EE

Vice Chairman Unit

Bl EEEM
Advanced Unit of Vocational Capacity

Guangdong Private Education

Association (ERA RFHE HE)

BRERRHBEHE

Guangdong Private College Science
Association Alliance (&R K #f = &
4175 gk 82)

B R Rt = R R 175 Bk B

Guangdong Vocational Capacity

Huali Technician
College

AT 2
Huali Vocational
College

Huali Technician

Construction in Guangdong Province Construction Association (/& 5 4 B College
in 2020 (20204 J£ & 3 & B % 6 EENERDD)
BREEM)
20214F1 A 2020F ER R BB ER N EREE BEREBEERENERHE E 7 BAD 2B
B
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OUTLOOK

In continuing to strengthen the Group’s position as a leading private higher

education and vocational education group, the Group plans to pursue the

following:

Endogenous growth

(i)

(ii)

Development of New Campuses

The Group will increase student enrollment through expanding the business
operations in its existing schools and further promote the internal growth of
the Group. The Group will continue to make demand-driven investments in
its existing schools, improve and acquire school facilities, improve the quality

of schools’ education and enhancing student enrollment scale.

Jiangmen Binhai campus: The policy of increasing the gross enrollment
rate of higher education, as well as large population inflow in Guangdong
Province will provide more room for the growth of new enrollments in
higher education in the future. The Group has entered into an agreement
with the Jiangmen Xinhui District Government, Xinhui Branch, which will
provide up to 1,258 Mu of land to the Group to build a new campus for
Huali College, which is expected to accommodate 25,000 students. By the
end of August 2021, the first-phase campus has been completed and put
into use in September 2021, which is expected to accommodate 4,000
students.

Jiangmen Yamen campus: The construction of the new campus of Huali
Technician College in Jiangmen City has been proceeding as planned. The
first phase with a capacity of 6,000 students is under construction and is
expected to be completed by the end of August 2022. The new campus is
expected to be put into use in September 2022.

With the completion of Jiangmen Binhai and Jiangmen Yamen new
campuses, the Group’s total four campuses in the core regions of the
Greater Bay Area will offer considerable capacity for students.

Strategic Deployment of Vocational Training

The Group continues to cooperate with industry-leading institutions to offer
vocational education business featuring high growth and high gross margin
during the Reporting Period, which is expected to become a new revenue
driver for the Group. The Group expects that the revenue of this business
segment will achieve a considerable growth starting from the 2021 financial
year. It has provided the courses in Computer Aided Design Engineer
Certification, Building Information Modeling Skill Level Examination, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Computerized Numerical
Control Miller Machine and Electrician.

EEE RS

RE
REBEMNBAKEERBELNLISEHE

R EHOE £ BT - 7 % B i IR A

TH

REER

(i) BEFKE
REEEBARREABRNELLE
HAMEAR  E—SHEREHER -

(ii)

FEBMBEBERFTRREREER
EZRAEBREE  RAMBEE -
REBFRHERE -

B ot

A*‘i/\

IFﬁﬁﬁﬁnni RIEERREHE
ANBENPERFT - U REREEX
/\Difﬁ)\ CARREEHERBEAGE

BEEAMERER - AEEETPITHH
BEBRTRTHE  SHARNEERMH

% 1,258 At - AIEE Y 2R IR
[@ - AR A B 49250008 £ 4 - &
F2021F8AK - F—HREBEEMK -
W R2021F9 A/ AL R - TEEI AT A #
4,0008 24 -

CIFEMRE  FERAMERTPIHMK
RIFREFETIRES - F—HUA
M6,000Z 24 - FAEEZRED  FEH
R2022F8 K AR T o #ik @ FEH R
20229 A AEA ©

BEEIFVESFRERIMEMHIRE

AR AR  RRAREEREER
REERLUBEAHAHERE - #R

AEEFRABNHNELRE -

B B v B F

RNEB S ERITEE LT ERBEITE
JEE RESHEREESERER
EMENBEXREEYR  BHEXKAR
EEFNRAL RS - AEBE B IHIR
BB B9 U A B 2021 BF 5 7 4R R 2R & 75 2R
LA EE R - B AT IER B E &
BHEHRTIRMREEE BEE
EREREERERAEE  ERafe
FTED BB TREILSEIIRE -

HETRZEABR AR 17
2021 FEHE



Management Discussion and Analysis
BT RPN

(iii) Further Optimizing the Pricing of Tuition Fees and

Boarding Fees

The Group has moderately raised its tuition fees and boarding fees in the
2020/2021 academic year to reflect the changes in market demand, its
increasing operating costs and the adjustment of its curriculum offerings.
The Group believes that its leading position, established reputation and
high-quality teaching services will enable it to further increase its tuition fees
and boarding fees, while maintaining the competitiveness of the Group in
the market.

Expanding the Group’s network through mergers and
acquisitions

Besides robust endogenous growth, the Group has also been looking for mergers
and acquisitions to expand the Group’s school network coverage. The Group will
explore acquisitions opportunities with private regular undergraduate colleges,

independent colleges and regular junior colleges with attractive growth potential.

In terms of geographical coverage, the Group will continue to focus on expanding
the school network in Guangdong Province and consolidating its leading position
in the Pearl River Delta, while exploring the high-quality goals in areas of China
with developed economy, large population, low gross enrollment rate and large

student pool.

With the strength of the Group’s long operation history, strong brand reputation,
high-quality of education services, outstanding students’ employment and sufficient
resources of college-enterprise cooperation, we will strive to combine the private
educational resources, expand market share and continuously improve the quality

of education to provide better educational services for students.

In general, the Group strives to maintain and strengthen its leading position in
the private higher education industry and private vocational education industry in
South China, to continue to increase the number of students through expanding
the business operation of its existing schools, and further expand the school

network in China and abroad.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have other future
plans for material investments or capital assets.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS OF REGULATORY
FRAMEWORK

Classification Registration

Our business is regulated by, among others, the Law for Promoting Private
Education of the PRC. On November 7, 2016, the Decision on Amending the Law
for Promoting Private Education of the PRC (Order of the President of the PRC No.
55) (AREER (REARAMBRPHEREZL) OORE) (PEARANMBEFES
2%555%) (the “Amendment”) was promulgated. The Amendment came into force
on September 1, 2017. The Amendment establishes a new classification system
for private schools to be classified by whether they are established and operated
for profit-making purposes, and the sponsors of private schools may at their own
discretion choose to establish non-profit or for-profit private schools.

According to the Implementing Measures on Classification Registration of Private
Schools ( (R ER D EETLEMAE) ) (December 30, 2016), if an existing
private school chooses to register as a non-profit private school, it shall amend
its articles of association in accordance with the relevant laws, continue its school
operation and complete new registration formalities. If an existing private school
chooses to register as a for-profit private school, it shall make financial settlement
of books of account, clarify the ownership of the schools’ land, buildings and
accumulations with the consent of the relevant departments of the people’s
governments at or below the provincial level, pay relevant taxes and fees, obtain
new school operation licenses, apply for re-registration and continue the school
operations.

The Amendment is silent on the specific measures regarding how existing
schools can choose to become for-profit private schools, which, according to the
Amendment, shall be regulated by the corresponding laws and regulations to be
promulgated by the local government authorities. The Guangdong government
has promulgated implementation regulations under the Amendment, including
the Implementation Opinions of the Government of Guangdong Province on
Encouraging the Operation of Education by Social Forces and Promoting the
Healthy Development of Private Education ( (EREA ARBTEREEL S HE
BERHBBERERNHUEREERNEES L) ) promulgated by the Government
of Guangdong Province on April 24, 2018, the Implementation Measures for the
Supervision and Administration of For-Profit Private Schools ( (B4 K14 R 2 £
REEREREINE) ), which were issued jointly by the Department of Education
of Guangdong Province, Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Guangdong Province and Department of Market Supervision and Administration
of Guangdong Province and came into effect on December 30, 2018, and the
Implementation Measures on Classification Registration of Private Schools ( ([
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RERSR S EER
Education of Guangdong Province, Department of Human Resources and Social

FHEHEE) ), which were issued jointly by the Department of

Security of Guangdong Province, Department of Civil Affairs of Guangdong
Province, Guangdong Provincial Committee of the Communist Party of China
Organization Committee Office and Department of Market Supervision and
Administration of Guangdong Province and came into effect on December 30,
2018.

The above local regulations provide a framework procedure for the classification
and registration of existing private schools in relevant provinces as for-profit
private schools or non-profit private schools, but do not further specify the
process of classification and registration, for example, (i) when should we notify
the relevant authorities regarding our decision for our schools to be for-profit or
non-profit schools; (i) the preferential tax treatments that may be enjoyed by a
for profit school or a non-profit school, respectively; (iii) whether respective public
funding can be obtained by a for-profit school and a non-profit school; and (iv)
respective costs for a for-profit and non-profit school to obtain land use rights.

Under the existing regulatory environment and based on the current interpretation
of the Amendment and the relevant implementing regulations, we intend to
register our three schools as for-profit private schools subject to the further
detailed local rules and regulations regarding the conversion of existing schools
as and when promulgated and brought into effect by relevant local government
authorities.

There are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of the
Amendment with respect to various aspects of the operations of private schools,
such as the respective preferential tax treatment which may be enjoyed by for
profit private schools and non-profit private schools. Accordingly, as of the date
of this report, we were not able to fully evaluate or quantify the potential impact

that the implementation of the Amendment may have on our business operations.

The Implementation Rules

On April 7, 2021, the State Council issued the Implementation Rules for the Law
for Promoting Private Education of the PRC ({FEAR MBI RFLE(R#ELE
& 1)) and the Implementation Rules have been effective from September 1, 2021.

Based on our current understanding and interpretation of the Implementation
Rules, there would not be any substantive implications for the legal framework
of any of our PRC Operation Entities. As disclosed in “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Recent Developments of Regulatory Framework — Classification
Registration” in this annual report, we intend to register our three schools as for-
profit private schools in light of the Amendment and the relevant implementing
regulations in effect.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to the Implementation Rules, public schools shall not sponsor or
participate in sponsoring for-profit private schools while public schools of
vocational education could absorb the capital, technology, management and other
elements of enterprises to sponsor or participate in sponsoring for-profit private
schools of vocational education. As of the date of this report, Huali College
was converted into an independent private regular undergraduate school with
the official approval of the MOE and renamed from “Huali College Guangdong
University of Technology” to “Guangzhou Huali College”.

In addition, The Implementation Rules will not have any impact on our expansion
strategy through acquisition.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue mainly represents income derived from tuition fees and
boarding fees for the education services provided in the normal course at its PRC
operating schools. For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group’ revenue was
approximately RMB881.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 15.8%
year-on-year from approximately RMB761.5 million for the corresponding period of
last year, which was attributable to the increases in both student enrollment and
average tuition fees during the Reporting Period.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of staff costs, depreciation and amortisation, joint
tuition support fees, school consumables, property management and maintenance
fees, utilities expenses and others. For the year ended August 31, 2021, the
Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB411.1 million, increased by
approximately 33.1% year-on-year from approximately RMB308.9 million for the
year ended August 31, 2020.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately RMB470.5 million, representing an increase of approximately 4.0%
year-on-year from approximately RMB452.6 million for the year ended August 31,
2020. For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group achieved a gross profit
margin of 53.4%, down by 6.0 percentage points year-on-year as compared with
the corresponding period of last year. The growth in gross profit was mainly
attributable to the increasing average tuition fees and student enrollment, while
partially offset by the increase in cost of sales for the year ended August 31,
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BT RPN

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses, primarily consisting of marketing staff costs, promotion expenses
and other expenses, increased by approximately 68.4% from approximately
RMB15.5 million for the year ended August 31, 2020 to approximately RMB26.1
million for the year ended August 31, 2021, which was due to an increase in
promotion expenses resulting from the increase in student enrollment for the
2020/2021 academic year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of administrative staff costs, traveling and
entertainment expenses, depreciation of property, plant and equipment relating
to office buildings, office expenses, utilities expenses, auditors’ remuneration
and other miscellaneous expenses. Administrative expenses increased by
approximately 4.1%, from RMB99.1 million for the year ended August 31, 2020
to approximately RMB103.2 million for the year ended August 31, 2021.

Other Income

Other income primarily consists of training service income, government subsidies,
rental income, bookselling income and others. For the year ended August 31,
2021, the Group recorded other income of approximately RMB35.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 79.1% year-on-year from approximately
RMB19.6 million for the year ended August 31, 2020.

Other Losses — Net

Other losses — net primarily consist of compensation fee for the Conversion of
Huali College, net exchange losses, losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment, fair value gains on investment properties and others. For the year
ended August 31, 2021, the Group’s other losses amounted to approximately
RMB151.9 million, representing an increase of approximately 45.0 times year-
on-year compared with approximately RMB3.3 million losses for the year ended
August 31, 2020. It was mainly attributable to the compensation fee for the
Conversion of Huali College during the Reporting Period.

Finance Expense — Net

The Group’s finance expenses — net include any costs incurred by interest
expenses on bank and other borrowings (after deducting amounts capitalised
in the cost of property, plant and equipment), interest expenses on discount of
compensation payable for the Conversion of Huali College and interest income
generated from bank deposits. For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group
recorded finance expenses of approximately RMB63.5 million, representing an
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Management Discussion and Analysis

increase of approximately 22.8% year-on-year as compared with approximately
RMB51.7 million for the year ended August 31, 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in bank and other borrowings raised during the year
ended August 31, 2021. For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group recorded
finance income of approximately RMB8.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 4.8% year-on-year as compared with approximately RMB8.3 million
for the year ended August 31, 2020.

Profit Before Taxation

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group recorded a profit before taxation
of approximately RMB169.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
45.4% year-on-year from approximately RMB310.9 million for the year ended
August 31, 2020.

Taxation

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group recorded approximately RMB26.2
million in taxation, representing an increase of approximately 509.3% year-on-year
from approximately RMB4.3 million for the year ended August 31, 2020. As at
August 31, 2021, the Group did not have any taxation related disputes with any
authorities, or any other unresolved taxation issues.

Adjusted Net Profit

Adjusted net profit is calculated by adjusting profit for the Reporting Period of
approximately RMB143.5 million (year ended August 31, 2020: approximately
RMB306.7 million) for the effect of compensation fee for the Conversion of Huali
College of approximately RMB150.8 million (year ended August 31, 2020: Nil),
net exchange losses of approximately RMB18.2 million (year ended August 31,
2020: approximately RMB5.5 million), fair value gains on investment properties
of approximately RMB14.6 million (year ended August 31, 2020: approximately
RMB2.8 million), discounted interest of compensation payable for the Conversion
of Huali College of approximately RMB1.2 million (year ended August 31, 2020:
Nil), nil discounted interest on the amount due to a related party (year ended
August 31, 2020: approximately RMB15.9 million) and nil listing expenses (year
ended August 31, 2020: approximately RMB12.5 million). The Group’'s adjusted
net profit decreased by approximately 11.4% from approximately RMB337.7
million for the year ended August 31, 2020 to approximately RMB299.1 million
for the year ended August 31, 2021.

EEE RS

BEHE2020F8A31A L FEHNARKS17TE
EBILIBNA228% TEHNEE2021F8A
BTHIEFEESEMETREMBETIEM - &
F20215F8A31HIEFE - AEESFH B
ABARBESTEE L » ®WE £2020568 A31
AEFEHNARESIBEBELIEMNE48% -

B A0 FI 8

HE2021F8A31HIEFE  REBESEH
AIFEHARE169.6 5 &L  BE £2020F
SA3BELEFEHNARKEII09BE TR L
45.4% o

Bi1E

HZE202198A31BLFE @ AEEHEEHE
HARB262BE T - WE£202068A31H
FFEHAREAIABE TG INAS09.3% © &
F2021F8A318 - A& B 4 88T 7] BT 26
FEEAMBEHE@EEE  TEESMEMK
BRORMBIIS R -

BBEMR

ARG ETEZRESHEBNAR
#1508/ &L (B E2020FE8 A31H ILEE ¢
Em) ERBEBRIFENOARBI182HE L(H
Z2020F8A3MHILFE  HARBSSHE
) BREAVEATEREHARE 14688
JL(EZE2020F8A31HIEFE : HARMK28
BE)  ENENSRELHERENDE
HBABHARB1285E T (HZE20209F8 A 31
BIEFE &) BEAHEBARENDER
FMEZT(HZE2020F8A31HIEFE - HAR
1598 &) R LTHX T (HE202068 A
BTHLEFE  HARBNRSEET)NEFEE
HABRNREPERFBENARK14358
BT (HE2020F8A31AILFE : HARK
3067EE )T E - AR EMKEHEMLF B
H=E202068A31HIEFEHARKEIITTIE
BB A%EE E2021F8A31HILF
BHARE2091HETT °

Y REEHAGRA A 23
2021 FEHE



Management Discussion and Analysis
BT RPN

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at August 31, 2021, the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB3,708.9 million, representing an increase of approximately
32.2% year-on-year from approximately RMB2,805.1 million recorded as at August
31, 2020. Such increase was a result of the expansion of new teaching buildings
at Zengcheng, Guangdong Province and the establishment of new campus at
Jiangmen, Guangdong Province.

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group recorded approximately
RMB1,148.5 million in capital expenditures, representing an increase of
approximately 237.3% from approximately RMB340.5 million for the year
ended August 31, 2020, which was mainly attributable to the costs incurred
for maintaining and enhancing the existing school premises, construction of
new school premises and acquisition of land for education purpose during the
Reporting Period.

Bank Balances and Cash

As at August 31, 2021, the Group’s bank balances and cash was approximately
RMB893.0 million, representing an increase of approximately 1.9% from
approximately RMB876.3 million as at August 31, 2020.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Debt Ratio
As at August 31, 2021, the Group had liquid funds (representing bank balances
and cash and financial assets at amortized cost) of approximately RMB899.4
million (August 31, 2020: RMB882.6 million) and borrowings of approximately
RMB2,320.4 million (August 31, 2020: RMB1,767.9 million).

The Group's debt ratio as at August 31, 2021, represented by borrowings as a
percentage of total assets, was 36.7% (August 31, 2020: 35.0%).

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

For the Group’s operation in the PRC, the major revenue and expenses are
denominated in RMB, while there are certain monetary assets and monetary
liabilities that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
which would expose the Group to foreign exchange risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
of the Company monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals for the year ended
August 31, 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charge on the Group’s Assets
As at August 31, 2021, the Group pledged the rights to receive the tuition fees
and boarding fees of Huali Technician College, Huali Vocational College and Huali

College as securities for the banking facilities granted to the Group.
Save as disclosed above, there was no other material charge on the Group’s assets
as at August 31, 2021.

Contingent Liabilities
As at August 31, 2021, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.
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Directors and Senior Management

EELkeREERE

As at the date of this report, our Board consists of seven Directors, comprising
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Zhifeng, aged 55, is the founder of our Group. He was first
appointed as the first Director on May 24, 2016 and was redesignated as the
chairman of the Board and an executive Director on December 18, 2017 and was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on November 19, 2021. Mr. Zhang was also
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee on August 16, 2019. He
is primarily responsible for the overall management and strategic development of
the Group.

In addition to his contribution to the Group, Mr. Zhang was a member of the 8th
and 9th Zengcheng City Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEIARBUAHEEHEWTE /S - ENEZEF) and a special
committee member of the 11th Guangdong Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (FEIARBCAHIRE#FE +—REREE
E&). Mr. Zhang was awarded “Special Contribution Award for Private Education
of the 70th Anniversary of the Founding of the People’s Republic of China” (&
B1703EF RITH B % E B 58) by the Institute of Educational Chinese Academy of
Management Science (R EIEERIZ2M IR B BIEZ2MHEFT) and China Academy
of Management Science Advisory Department ({ BlE 2R} B IR AFA56) in April
2019.

Mr. Zhang's dedication to education has been well recognized. The following sets
out the awards received by him:
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September 2005
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Innovation and Development of Private Education
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Directors and Senior Management

EEhEREERE

Date Awards Awarding authority

B 5 #RI15 piby

April 2019 “Special Contribution Award for Private Education Jointly presented by Institute of Educational Chinese
of the 70th Anniversary of the Founding of the Academy of Management Science (FBIE IR
People’s Republic of China” ((ZE70BE R E 7B B R /95 FT) and China Academy of
IR B B %) Management Science Advisory Department (F1E

EEBI 2R AR
201944 A [ZR70EFRPHE ok E R 5 HEEERN SRR ER 2R AR EERE

September 2020

202099 A

“Qutstanding Persons for 40 Years of Private
Education of Guangdong” (ERRHHE N+ EF
REBFRIAD)

EXRRMBENTEAFRHEEHRAY

RHRHI R 5 2 A A R
Guangdong Province Private Education Association

(BERERPHERS)

ERERMRBEmHE

Mr. Zhang is the father of Mr. Zhang Yude, an executive Director.

Mr. YE Yaming, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company on December 18, 2017, and resigned as chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from November 19, 2021. Mr. Ye
was also appointed a member of the Remuneration Committee on August 16,
2019. He is primarily responsible for the overall operation and management of the

Group.

Mr. Ye's dedication to education has been well recognized. The following sets out

the awards received by him:
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September 2004
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“Outstanding Educator of Vocational Training in
Guangdong Province” ("ERAE pESIIEFH
El:ﬁ")

[ERAEFIEFHE]
Advanced Worker of the Labor System in the City
(EMBBREGEETIESE)

EMBHRRLETIES
“Guangzhou Outstanding Educator” (“E/NTEHEH
BD(E TEE)")

[EIM TS (HE TEE)]

Guangdong Provincial Labor Department (E&R%&
K4 BIEE) (currently known as the Department
of Human Resources and Social Security of
Guangdong Province (EHRAE AN ERMT ZRE
EE)
BRELDE(RBEREAANERMESRER)
Qingyuan Labor Bureau (&M E)/E) (currently
known as Qingyuan Municipal Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau (jBi&M AN ERMALE
RIE))
BEMEPHR(BABEETANERMEERES)
Jointly presented by Guangzhou Education Bureau
(BM™H#AE B) and Guangzhou Education
Foundation (EMT#HEEEE)
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Directors and Senior Management

EELkeREERE

Mr. ZHANG Yude ((R#1E), aged 30, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on December 18, 2017 and re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director and appointed as the chief operating officer of
the Company on November 19, 2021. He is primarily responsible for vocational
education and training business of our Group.

Mr. Zhang has been the assistant to the chairman of Huali Investment since
December 2015. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang served as a financial
analyst at Mandarin Investment Group in California from May 2014 to December
2015.

Mr. Zhang Yude is the son of Mr. Zhang Zhifeng, the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director.

Mr. ZOU Kang (#8E), aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on November 19, 2021. He is primarily responsible for vocational
training business of our Group and daily operation management of Huali
Technician College.

Mr. Zou has intensive experience in both management and research for technical
education and professional training. He has been the President and the Secretary
of Party Committee of Guangdong Province Huali Technician College (EZR &S
K RMEPr) since September 2018. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zou successively
served as the faculty member, the deputy director of Academic & Student Affairs
Department, the director of President’s Office, the President Assistant, the Deputy
President, the President, and the Secretary of Party General Branch of Jiangmen
Technician College (TFIMHANERT) (previously known as JIFIT = KA HE T ER),
from December 1992 to August 2018. He was awarded the Provincial Prominent
Teacher of Technician Colleges of Guangdong in 1995, the Prominent President
of Jiangmen City in 2002, and the Prominent President of Guangdong Technician

Colleges in 2011.

Mr. Zou obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from the Jiangxi
Normal University (T FaEM#3AXZ) in the PRC in July 1988 and obtained the
Training Course Certificate of Graduate Students from the South China Normal
University (ZEFRM#KE) in the PRC in May 1996. He obtained the Senior
Lecturer Professional Title in Mathematics in 1999 and was selected as the
national supervisor of technician colleges by the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC in 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHIU Lai Kuen Susanna (#E%8), M.H., J.P. aged 61, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee
on July 17, 2020. She is primarily responsible for supervising the compliance and
corporate governance matters of the Group and providing independent opinions

and advice to the Board.

Ms. Chiu has been serving as an independent non-executive director of Nanyang
Commercial Bank since May 2018; an independent non-executive director of Kato
(Hong Kong) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2189), since May 2019; an independent non-executive
director of Huijing Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9968), since December 2019; and an
independent director of Songz Automobile Air Conditioning Co. Ltd. (/&M%
MZ/ABEHARMERAT]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002454), since May 2020. From 2006 to 2019, she served as a
senior vice president, a director (Eastern and Central China) and a consultant in
various member companies of the Fung Group, which is principally engaged in
trading, distribution, logistics and retailing businesses. She was previously the
chief operating officer and the senior vice president of business development
and corporate affairs of DVN Holdings Company Limited (currently known as
Frontier Services Group Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 500). Since June 2021, she has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of China Oilfield Services Limited, a company
both listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601808) and the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2883).

Ms. Chiu is currently a member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shanghai, the council treasurer of the Education University of Hong
Kong, and a member of the Women’s Commission. Ms. Chiu was awarded the
Medal of Honor by the Hong Kong Government in 2013 for her achievement and
dedication in public services, especially in relation to the accounting profession.
She was also awarded the Outstanding Business Women Award by Hong Kong
Commercial Daily in 2017.

Mr. YANG Ying, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on August 16, 2019. He is
primarily responsible for supervising the compliance and corporate governance
matters of the Group and providing independent opinions and advice to the
Board.
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Mr. Yang is a professor of the School of Economics and the dean of Investment
Economics Department at Jinan University (2FA2). Mr. Yang joined Jinan
University in April 1988, at which he was successively a teaching assistant, lecturer
and associate professor at the School of Economics before his current position.
Prior to joining Jinan University, Mr. Yang was a teaching assistant in finance at
Guangdong Institute for Nationalities (ERREZRE 4 K) from September 1987
to April 1988.

Apart from his teaching career, Mr. Yang has played an active role in civic
engagements. He was a member of the Standing Committee of the 11th and
12th People’s Congress of Guangdong Province (BE+—f@RE+_EERE AKX
®ZE) and is the vice-president of Council of the 1st Think Tank Association for

the Promotion of Economic and Scientific Development of Guangdong Province (5
—EERERENBEREE(RESEED).

The following table also sets out Mr. Yang's key publications:

BEEAEMABEESRABREBEELE
BHMAEEM - BEEN1988F4AMAER
A2 ETEBATCRTEESRA -
RBIEE - MAZEREKER 5% E1K1987
FORRI988FL4AEAERRKRERT KR
MBI -

BERIN SRETEB2ELERE - &
BEEET - ERET_EEREAATEZ
X8 HEF - ERERELEMBERE
EREeEERAER -

TRAEINGEEN T ERIRIER :

Year of publication Title Publisher / Newspaper (as the case maybe)

R F 17 5 AR HREGRBERTME)

2002 New Theory of Hong Kong Economy ((ZF &%  Jinan University Publishing House (28 K 2 () iz #t)
)

20024 (EBEBEHW) AN Yl E

2016 Preliminary Study on the Basic Ideas about China Development ({1 Bl % & ))

Construction of the GPRD Free Trade Area ({&
REHEZABEERERBEME))

20164 (BEREHEZARRERNERBIEME)

(FEER)

Mr. DING Yi, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on August 16, 2019. He is primarily responsible for
supervising the compliance and corporate governance matters of the Group and
providing independent opinions and advice to the Board.

Mr. Ding has been a teacher at South China Normal University (& Al# K22
since July 2001 and has been serving as the teaching professor at the School of
Music of the university since September 2006. Previously, Mr. Ding was a solo
artist of Guangdong Song & Dance Ensemble (BRI FEEIFT) from September
1989 to September 2001.

Mr. Ding has been a standing committee member of the 11th Guangdong
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (7
BEARBUAHEEZEE T EEREZEEE) since January 2013.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUNG Manling (32X %), aged 54, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of our Company on December 18, 2017. Mr. Hung served as a joint
company secretary of the Company from December 2017 to May 2021. He is

primarily responsible for the financial management and overall governance of our

Group.

The following table sets out other prior working experience of Mr. Hung:

Period

iG]

Company/Organization

DEHE

Directors and Senior Management
EELREREREE

BREEAER

N
V=N

Position

B

BXBRE  S545% 0 K2017F 128188 E %
TAERRB M HHBE - HEEBR20175F12
RZE202165 A BB EEA QR EBE QAW
Z2  HEIZAEAKENTEEELREEE

TREHRL LSO EM T HEER

Role and responsibility

AERBE

From September 1993 to
November 1995

1993F9 H 1995 11 A
From January 1996 to
April 1997

19965 1 H £1997F 4 H

From April 1997 to

March 2007

199744 B £200743 A

From August 2007 to
October 2008

200748 4 220084 10 A

From March 2014 to

March 2016

201443 A £2016%F3 A

BDO Kwan Wong Tan & Fong
Certified Public Accountants
(=R 2 5TATT)

BER 7 SERAT

South Asia Knitting Factory Ltd. (2%
BiEBIRAR) (a company which
principally engaged in garment
manufacturing, textiles and dyeing)

MaBEERAF(EERFERER
EHBREERNRF)

Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited
(M= (PE) ERAF) (a
company which principally engaged
in business investment in the PRC,
including real estate, logistics and
manufacturing industry)

MEEH(FE)AERAR(EERH
BREXEBRE(BEFME -9
MEBER)NRE)

NCN Group Management Limited (%
BEEBERERAT]) (a company
which is principally engaged in
travel, hotel and outdoor media
business)

ZHEEEETEARAA
(FERFRE BER
FOMEREBH) QR

Hong Kong Jia Jia Investment
Development Limited (BB RKIEE
EEARAR]) (a company which is
principally engaged in the food and
beverage industry)

ERRFIRELRABRAA]

(F2RFERENRA)

Auditor of Audit Department

0PI % 0 AD

Financial Accountant and
Financial Manager (China
Division) successively

FEETHEDRF
et R BaE

Successively Finance Manager,
Assistant Business
Development Deputy
Controller and Chief Project
Accountant

FTIREEMBLRE
EBRREBEHER
HB @ EErhD

Vice-president of Business
Development

EBEREEH

Executive director

HITES

Primarily responsible for due
diligence and auditing work

TEAERBAEREFIIE

Primarily responsible for financial
reporting and staff supervision
in PRC subsidiaries

ZRETENBARN
BHBmEREIEE

Primarily responsible for
overviewing project accounting
work and project development

TEZEAEEBRAEGHIER
HAER

Primarily responsible for business
development

IZREXEBER

Primarily responsible for
investment and financing

TEERRBMEARD
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Mr. Hung obtained a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in Accounting
from Hong Kong Baptist University in December 1993. He further obtained
third-level accounting and intermediate book-keeping qualifications awarded by
the London Chamber of Commerce and Industry Examinations Board in 1990 and
1987, respectively.

Mr. MA Zhixiong (%), aged 50, was appointed as a vice-president of the
Company on December 18, 2017. Mr. Ma was appointed as an executive Director
from January 20, 2021 and resigned as an executive Director on November 19,
2021. He is primarily responsible for the operation and management of our
Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ma successively acted as branch general manager
of securities business and then vice-president of Lianxun Securities Co., Ltd. (5
MEHBRMHDBR AR (formerly known as Huizhou Securities Company Limited (3
MNEHBREMEAT]), a company listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations (stock code: 830399) from January 2001 to July 2014. Its business
includes offering securities brokerage and trading, securities investment funds and
financial products consignment, securities investment advice, and securities asset
management services. Subsequently, Mr. Ma took the position of vice-president at
Shanghai Greencourt Investment Group Co., Ltd. (/84 FEREEREE KD AR
A 7)) (previously known as Shanghai Dajiang Food Group Co., Ltd (L/BATE M
E£EBRHAERAT), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600695) and primarily engaged in real estate investment and asset management,
from August 2014 to June 2015. Mr. Ma served as an executive director of the
Company from January 2021 to November 2021.

Mr. ZHANG Zhicheng (5R# ), aged 38, was appointed as a vice-president of
the Company on December 18, 2017. He is primarily responsible for the financing,

investment development and investor relations management of our Group.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang was the senior manager of the Global
Financial Development Department of Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. (ZE &1l
BBRAF]) in Shenzhen, a private communications technology company focusing
on the production and sales of communications equipment. He then joined the
Corporate Business Department of the Hong Kong Representative Office from
September 2011 to October 2014, and was primarily responsible for business
development and client expansion. He was a member of the accounting staff
of Ernst & Young Hua Ming from October 2010 to September 2011, primarily
responsible for auditing work. He served successively as a customer service
representative and then analyst of Just Energy Corp. in Canada, a company with
its principal business as natural gas, electricity and green energy provision, from
April 2007 to September 2009.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
August 31, 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of private higher and vocational
education institutions. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at August 31, 2021 are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The results of the Group for the year ended August 31, 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
142.

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and its likely
future development and outlook, important events affecting the Company that
have occurred since the end of the financial year, an analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, details
regarding the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group, and the Group's key relationships
with stakeholders as required under Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out in “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” and “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report and all such
discussions constitute part of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Risks relating to the Structured
Contracts” in this report, the following list is a summary of certain principal risks
and uncertainties facing by the Group:

o Our business depends on our ability to maintain or raise the tuition fee
rates and boarding fee rates we charge at our schools;

. Our business and results of operations depend on the number of students
we may admit, which in turn is subject to the admission quotas approved
by relevant education authorities and limited by the capacity of our school
facilities;

o We are exposed to concentration risks as all of our schools are located in

Guangdong Province.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in compliance
with code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) with effect from December 23, 2019.

According to the Dividend Policy, (i) no less than 30% of the distributable net
profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company may be distributed to
the Shareholders and (ii) dividends may be distributed twice a year after the
announcement of the interim results and the full year results, respectively.

Any amount of dividends we pay will be at the discretion of our Directors and will
depend on inter alia, general business conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
the Group’s expected capital requirements and future expansion plans; statutory
and regulatory restrictions; contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the Company to the
Company; taxation considerations; Shareholders’ interests; and other factors that
the Board deems relevant.

Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends will be subject
to our constitutional documents and the relevant laws. Even if the Board decides
to recommend and declare dividends, the form, frequency and amount of the
dividends will be subject to the factors as disclosed above and such other factors
affecting the Group.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there is
no assurance that dividends will be recommended or declared in any particular

amount for any given period.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0502 per
ordinary Share for the year ended August 31, 2021 (the “Final Dividend"”) by
cash to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on February 8, 2022. The final dividend is subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the AGM to be held on January 21, 2022 and will be payable on
or around March 16, 2022.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on January 21, 2022. Notice convening the forthcoming
AGM will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from January 18, 2022
to January 21, 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. The record date for the entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM is January 21, 2022. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on January 17, 2022.

For the Proposed Final Dividend

The proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. The register of members of the Company will be closed from
February 7, 2022 to February 8, 2022, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at the aforementioned address for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on February 4, 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company during the year ended
August 31, 2021 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year ended August 31, 2021 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year ended
August 31, 2021 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
As at August 31, 2021, the Company’s reserve available for distribution to equity
holders amounted to approximately RMB651.5 million.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended August 31, 2021 and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Zhifeng (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Ye Yaming

Mr. Zhang Yude (re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director on November 19, 2021)

Mr. Zou Kang (appointed on November 19, 2021)

Mr. Ma Zhixiong (appointed on January 20, 2021 and
resigned on November 19, 2021)

Mr. Dong Xiaolin (retired on January 20, 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, M.H., J.P.

Mr. Yang Ying

Mr. Ding Vi

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of our Company are
set out in “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Pursuant to Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zou Kang shall retire
by rotation and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhang Yude, Mr. Yang
Ying and Mr. Ding Yi shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual written confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a period of three years commencing from August 16, 2019 or
November 19, 2021. The term of each of the service contracts shall end when the
service contract is terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
service contract or by either party giving to the other party not less than three
months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of independent non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for an initial period of three years commencing from
August 16, 2019 or July 17, 2020 which may be terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party serving on
the other party a prior written notice of not less than three months.
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None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Xiaolin tendered his resignation as an executive Director with effect
from January 20, 2021.

Mr. Ma Zhixiong was appointed as an executive Director on January 20, 2021 and
resigned as an executive Director with effect from November 19, 2021.

Mr. Zou Kang was appointed as the executive Director with effect from November
19, 2021.

Mr. Zhang Yude was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director on November 19, 2021.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no change in the information
which is required to be disclosed and has been disclosed by the Directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at August 31, 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to

section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Directors’ Report
EERRS

EFEMETIANIR - FABAEHBEAX
B CEERERRIN MR LR R 1% -

BN BEED B2021F1 B20B £ETHITE
$ o

EAMEER2021F1 A0 EZ T AHITE
£ WBE2021FE 1T AI9B EBHEHITES -

BEE LA B2021F11 B19H #E &
£H o

RERBIT

RN ELEAER2021E1N AI19B HEHTES
FEARITES -

BAFRAWEEIN TEREHEHRE L
MARAE1351Q%E@EEB REQERAT
KREBEEHESERE -

BEERFETHRAENRSG
HEROPREEZEZER R K
2

2021568 A31H  BEERARAEZITHA
BRADRAREEH ZE(TEREFRBE
IRBIEXVER) MR (D ~ ABRARR (D R B E R
ﬁE’Jm@nﬁ%&ﬁﬂiﬂmu%xv%%7&%8
HEMSARARBREZEZRAR (R
ETE & %&HHEMUZHE%%W& ME
URAEREZESZIAR) WL R IRIEE
%&Hﬂfﬂﬂﬁu%aszﬂ ZE\%TE’]%‘EEHHWZ%

S

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows: RE ?*E H@ BRETAEMNGARR
%x%Z% WEWMT

Approximate

Percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director or chief executive Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held in the Company®

EESHTETHRARBLSR B EEtE FERGHE EERARREN

BMABE DO

Mr. Zhang Zhifeng® Settlor of trust 900,000,000 (L) 75.0%
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(1) As at August 31, 2021, the total number of issued Shares was 1,200,000,000 Shares.

(2) The sole shareholder of Huali Education is Trust Co. The entire equity interest in Trust Co
is held on trust by UBS Nominees Limited for UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited. UBS Trustees
(B.V.1.) Limited is the trustee of HL-Diamond Trust. HL-Diamond Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Mr. Zhang Zhifeng as the settlor and with Mr. Zhang Zhifeng and his spouse
and children as the beneficiaries. Therefore, each of Mr. Zhang Zhifeng and his spouse
and children, Trust Co and UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited is deemed to be interested in the
900,000,000 Shares held by Huali Education.

(3) Mr. Zhang Yude (the son of Mr. Zhang Zhifeng) was one of the beneficiaries of HL-Diamond
Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at August 31, 2021, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interest or
short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the Reporting Period was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted
any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any
other body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at August 31, 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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(B.V.l.) Limited is the trustee of HL-Diamond Trust. HL-Diamond Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Mr. Zhang Zhifeng as the settlor and with Mr. Zhang Zhifeng and his spouse
and children being the beneficiaries. Therefore, each of Mr. Zhang Zhifeng and his spouse
and children, Trust Co and UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited is deemed to be interested in the
900,000,000 Shares held by Huali Education.

Save as disclosed above, as at August 31, 2021, the Directors were not aware of
any interests or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On July 21, 2021, our Company adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme
in which any employee (whether full time or part time) of any member of the
Group, in each case, in the sole and absolute discretion of the Board, who have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development of the Group (the

"Eligible Participant”), will be entitled to participate.

Purposes and Objectives

The purposes and objectives of the Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions
by certain Eligible Participants and to provide them with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the Group; (ii) to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group; and (iii) to
provide certain Eligible Participants with a direct economic interest in attaining a
long-term relationship with the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board pursuant
to the Scheme Rules, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for 10 years
commencing from the date of the first grant of any award.

Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded Shares which will result
in the number of Shares awarded by the Board under the Scheme exceeding 2%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Participant
under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time.

Share purchase pursuant to the Restricted Share Award
Scheme

On July 21, 2021, the Board resolved to cause to pay an amount of cash to the
Trustee, namely Kastle Limited, for the purchase of the Shares on and/or off the
market at appropriate time for the operation of the Scheme at any time at its

discretion.

For more details of the Restricted Share Award Scheme, please refer to the
announcements of our Company dated July 21, 2021.

Since July 21, 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the Board neither
granted, lapsed or cancelled any awards nor purchase or subscribe shares from the
trustee with the trust fund.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Reporting Period.

BORROWINGS

As at August 31, 2021, the Group has bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB2,320.4 million (August 31, 2020: approximately RMB1,767.9
million). Details of which were disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Restricted Share Award Scheme as set out in the section headed
“RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME" above in this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the end of
the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ report and otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or his/her connected entity was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business subsisted during the year ended August
31, 2021.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ report and otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which the controlling Shareholders of the Company or an entity connected with
the controlling Shareholders had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the year ended August 31, 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director or other
officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted. Such provision
was in force during the year and remained in force as at the date of this report.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) where the Report
of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1) (a) of the Companies Ordinance.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or
the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the listed securities of

the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 233 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group’s customers primarily consist of
the Group’s students. The Group did not have any single customer who accounted
for more than 5% of the Group’s revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 74.1% (for the year ended August 31, 2020: 59.4%) of the Group’s total
purchases and our single largest supplier accounted for 25.6% (for the year ended
August 31, 2020: 22.6%) of the Group's total purchases.
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As at the date of this report, except for Huali Construction and its subsidiaries,
none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of
issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Please see Note 33 “Related Party Transactions” in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which contains details of the transactions that fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in entering into the transactions during the Reporting
Period.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Reporting Period, the Group has entered into the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

School Properties Lease Agreement with Yunfu Bilingual
School

Background of the connected person

Yunfu Bilingual School is controlled by Mr. Zhang, our Controlling Shareholder,
chairman and executive Director through Hualiyuan Technology as the school
sponsor. As such, Yunfu Bilingual School is a connected person of our Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Principal terms of the School Properties Lease Agreement with
Yunfu Bilingual School dated September 5, 2017 supplemented
by supplemental agreements dated October 9, 2017 and April 26,
2018 (the “School Properties Lease Agreement with Yunfu
Bilingual School”)

Date September 5, 2017 (supplemented on October 9, 2017 and April
26, 2018)
Parties (1) Huali Vocational College (Lessor)

(2) Yunfu Bilingual School (Lessee)

Terms September 1, 2016 to August 31, 2036

Properties Number 6 teaching building, Number 14 student dormitory
building and Number 2 sports ground located at the Planned Huali
Vocational College Yunfu Campus
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Pursuant to the School Properties Lease Agreement with Yunfu Bilingual
School, Huali Vocational College leased the relevant school properties located
at the Planned Huali Vocational College Yunfu Campus with a total GFA of
approximately 44,936 sg. m. to Yunfu Bilingual School at annual rental fees. Such
rental fees are determined based on the pre-agreed monthly rental price of up to
RMB23.05 per sq. m. during the term of the School Properties Lease Agreement
with Yunfu Bilingual School, and shall be paid by Yunfu Bilingual School to Huali
Vocational College on or before October 31 of each year during the term.

Transaction Amount for the Reporting Period

The amount of rental fee receivable from Yunfu Bilingual School pursuant to the
School Properties Lease Agreement with Yunfu Bilingual School for the Reporting
Period was RMB3,935,000.

For further details of the School Properties Lease Agreement with Yunfu Bilingual
School, please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions — Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Framework Properties Lease Agreement with Hualiyuan
Technology

Background of the connected person

The equity interest of Hualiyuan Technology is held as to 99% by Mr. Zhang and
as to 1% by Huali Property. As such, Hualiyuan Technology is a connected person
of our Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Principal terms of the Framework Properties Lease Agreement with
Hualiyuan Technology

On August 28, 2019, we entered into a framework properties lease agreement
with Hualiyuan Technology (the “Framework Properties Lease Agreement with
Hualiyuan Technology”), pursuant to which Hualiyuan Technology agreed to
lease certain residential apartments to us for a term commencing from September
1, 2019 to August 31, 2022. Pursuant to the Framework Properties Lease
Agreement with Hualiyuan Technology, the monthly rental fees for the premises
shall be RMB16 per sq. m. (exclusive of management fees, value added taxes and
local levies) and the total leasable area of the premises shall be 39,289 sg. m.
Individual lease agreements stipulating the specific terms and conditions (such as
the actual gross floor area to be leased and the lease term) will be entered into
for individual leasing transactions. The aggregate rental fees for all the individual
lease agreements shall not exceed the annual cap for the relevant year and the
term of each of the individual lease agreements shall not exceed the term of the
Framework Properties Lease Agreement with Hualiyuan Technology. Hualiyuan
Technology has granted us an option to renew the Framework Properties Lease
Agreement with Hualiyuan Technology by giving six-month prior written notice
before the expiry of its term. In addition, Hualiyuan Technology has undertaken to
lease to us premises of at least 39,289 sq. m. during the term of the Framework
Properties Lease Agreement with Hualiyuan Technology, and we have undertaken
to rent from Hualiyuan Technology premises of at least 7,200 sq. m. during the
term of the Framework Properties Lease Agreement with Hualiyuan Technology.
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Transaction Amount for the Reporting Period
The transaction amount under the Framework Properties Lease Agreement with
Hualiyuan Technology for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB7,080,000.

For further details of the Framework Properties Lease Agreement with Hualiyuan
Technology, please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions —
Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Construction Services Framework Agreement with Huali
Construction

Background of the connected person

Huali Construction was 99.97% and 0.03% directly owned by Mr. Zhang and
Mr. Zhang Zhifan, the brother of Mr. Zhang, respectively. As such, Huali
Construction is a connected person of our Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of
the Listing Rules.

Principal terms of the Construction Services Framework Agreement
with Huali Construction

On July 17, 2020 (after trading hours), the Company and Huali Construction
entered into the Construction Services Framework Agreement, pursuant to which
Huali Construction and/or its subsidiaries have agreed to provide construction
services for the Group’s school campuses in the PRC (including the existing
campuses and the proposed new campuses) for the period commencing on the
Effective Date until August 31, 2023 (both dates inclusive).

The principal terms of the Construction Services Framework Agreement are set out

below:

Date: July 17, 2020

Parties: The Company;
and Huali Construction

Subject Huali Construction and/or its subsidiaries have agreed to, during

matter: the term of the Construction Services Framework Agreement,
provide construction services for the Group’s school campuses
(including the existing campuses and the proposed new campuses)
in the PRC. The Group and Huali Construction will enter into a
separate contract for each construction project.

Effective The date on which approval of the Independent Shareholders in

date: respect of the Construction Services Framework Agreement, the
transactions contemplated thereunder and the Annual Caps is
obtained, which is expected to be on September 15, 2020

Term: From the Effective Date to August 31, 2023 (both dates inclusive)
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Pricing
policy:

46

The construction fees and the terms of each individual contract must
be fair and reasonable for both the Group and Huali Construction,
and should be determined based on general commercial terms in
the ordinary and usual course of business. The Group will make
reference to the market prices and the charging basis for the same
or similar services provided by independent third parties based
on general commercial terms in the ordinary and usual course
of business, and consider the same or comparable transactions
completed by independent third parties in the same or the most
recent period when determining the construction fees and the terms
of each individual contract.®

If the construction project relates to civil engineering works and
installation works (including fire safety works, water supply and
indoor electrical works,

drainage works, low current embedding

works and lightning protection works), pricing will be based on
the guidance of the Code of Bill of Quantities and Valuation for
Construction Works* ({2 TR T2 S5 B:HEREH))?

standard) (including updates on such guidance materials issued by

(national

the regulatory authorities from time to time). In addition, (i) for civil
engineering works, the pricing will be based on the Guangdong
Comprehensive Quota of Housing Construction and Decoration
(KEREFEREREMITIZLES TR

standard); and (ii) for installation works, the pricing will be based

Projects* (provincial

on the Guangdong Comprehensive Quota of General Installation
(KERERAREIRKRATE)P

(including updates on such guidance materials issued by the

Projects* (provincial level)

regulatory authorities from time to time). The prices of major
materials to be used in the construction projects will be based
on the construction project information prices announced by the
Cost Management Department of the Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau* (EE R ERBEBEIZEFY) of the
project location during the construction period.
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Condition The effectiveness of the Construction Services Framework

precedent: Agreement is conditional upon the Company having obtained the
Independent Shareholders’ approval in respect of the Construction
Services Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.

Notes:

The Company’s infrastructure department will be responsible for obtaining the information
for the same or similar services provided by independent third parties. In general, the
Company will consider past transactions completed by independent third parties in the same
or the most recent period when determining the construction fees and the terms of each
individual contract. Where no comparable transactions are available, which is very unlikely
as the construction projects to be undertaken by Huali Construction and/or its subsidiaries
are not uncommon, the parties will negotiate the terms based on the price charged by Huali
Construction and/or its subsidiaries for the similar transactions with independent third parties
in the past. In addition, before entering into separate contracts with Huali Construction and/
or its subsidiaries, the Company will obtain at least three quotations from independent third
parties. Please refer to internal control measures set out in the paragraph headed “Internal
Control” in this section for further details.

Issued by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development Department of the PRC*
(P AR FA BT 5 A & 56)

Issued by the Housing and Urban-Rural Development Department of Guangdong Province*

(BERAEEF RIMABEREE)

Transaction Amount for the Reporting Period
The transaction amount under the Construction Services Framework Agreement

with Huali Construction and its subsidiaries for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB429,290,000.

For further details of the Construction Services Framework Agreement with

Hualiyuan Construction, please refer to the Company’s circular of August 28, 2020

published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Structured Contracts

The PRC laws and regulations currently restrict operation of tertiary education to
Sino-foreign ownership, in addition to imposing a qualification requirement on the
foreign owners. Further, government approval in respect of Sino-foreign ownership
is being withheld. As a result, the Group, through our wholly-owned subsidiary,
XZ Huali, has entered into the Structured Contracts such that we can conduct
our business operations indirectly in the PRC through the PRC Operating Entities
and Huali Investment while complying with applicable PRC law and regulations.
The Structured Contracts are designed to provide the Group with effective control
over the financial and operational policies of the PRC Operating Entities and Huali
Investment and, to the extent permitted by PRC law and regulations, the right to
acquire the equity interest in and/or the assets of the PRC Operating Entities and
Huali Investment after the Listing through XZ Huali. As we operate our education
business through the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment, which are
controlled by Huali Investment and the Registered Shareholder respectively and we
do not hold any direct equity interest in the PRC Operating Entities, the Structured
Contracts were entered into on March 23, 2017, pursuant to which all material
business activities of the PRC Operating Entities are directed and supervised by the
Group, through XZ Huali, and all economic benefits arising from such business of
the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment are transferred to the Group.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, XZ Huali, entered into a series of agreements
with the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment, including the Business
Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive Technical Service and Management
Consultancy Agreement, the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge
Agreement, the School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement,
the School Sponsor’'s Power of Attorney, the School Directors’ Power of Attorney,
the Spouse Undertaking, the Registered Shareholder’s Rights Entrustment
Agreement and the Registered Shareholder’s Power of Attorney, which form part
of the Structured Contracts and the content of which was supplemented from
time to time.

For further details, please refer to the section headed “Structured Contracts” of
this report.

Waiver from the Stock Exchange

In respect of the Structured Contracts, we have applied to the Stock Exchange
for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver from strict compliance with
(i) the announcement, circular and Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the transactions contemplated
under the Structured Contracts pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, (ii)
the requirement of setting an annual cap for the transactions under the Structured
Contracts under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules, and (iii) the requirement of
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limiting the term of the Structured Contracts to three years or less under Rule
14A.52 of the Listing Rules. The specific waiver granted by the Stock Exchange is
subject to various conditions as disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” section
of the Prospectus, which include, among others, disclosure in our annual reports
of the Structured Contracts in place during each financial period, engagement
of the Company’s auditor to report on the transactions carried out pursuant to
the Structured Contracts and issue of letter in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
and annual review by the independent non-executive Directors of the Structured
Contracts and their confirmation in our annual report for the relevant year.

For further details of the structured contracts, please refer to the section headed
“Structured Contracts” in this report and the section headed “Connected

Transactions — Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”)
and confirmed that, during the Reporting Period:

(i) the Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) the Continuing Connected Transactions are on normal commercial terms;

and

(i) the Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered into in
accordance with relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

(iv)  no dividends or other distributions have been made by the PRC Operating
Entities to the holder of the equity interest of its school sponsor which are
not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

Confirmation of the Company’s auditor

The auditor of the Company has confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with
respect to the aforesaid continuing connected transactions entered into in the year
ended August 31, 2021:

(a) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Board;
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(b)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group,
nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to believe that
the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

() nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in the attached list of continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual cap as set by the Company; and

(e)  with respect of the disclosed continuing connected transactions with the
PRC Operating Entities, the legal owner of the PRC Operating Entities
and XZ Huali under the contractual arrangements, nothing has come to
their attention that causes the auditor to believe that dividends or other
distributions have been made by the PRC Operating Entities to the holder
of the equity interest of its school sponsor which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Background of the Structured Contracts

We currently conduct our private education business through our PRC Operating
Entities in the PRC as PRC laws and regulations generally prohibit or restrict
foreign ownership in the private education industry in the PRC. PRC laws and
regulations currently restrict the operation of higher education institutions to
Sino-foreign cooperation, in addition to imposing qualification requirements on
the foreign sponsors. We do not hold any School Sponsor interest in our PRC
Operating Entities. The Structured Contracts, through which we obtain control
over and derive the economic benefits from our PRC Operating Entities, have
been narrowly tailored to achieve our business purpose and minimize the potential
conflict with relevant PRC laws and regulations.
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In order to comply with the PRC laws and regulations as set out above while
availing ourselves of international capital markets and maintaining effective control
over all of our operations, on March 23, 2017, our wholly-owned subsidiary,
XZ Huali and Huali Investment entered into various agreements that constitute
the Structured Contracts with, among others, our PRC Operating Entities, under
which all economic benefits arising from the business of our PRC Operating
Entities and Huali Investment were transferred to XZ Huali to the extent permitted
under the PRC laws and regulations by means of service fees payable by our PRC
Operating Entities and Huali Investment to XZ Huali. The parties to the Structured
Contracts each entered into certain supplemental agreements (collectively, the
"Supplemental Agreements”) dated September 19, 2017, November 27, 2017,
August 30, 2018, September 28, 2018, April 23, 2019, July 22, 2019, October
10, 2019, January 17, 2020 and July 20, 2020 respectively, to supplement and
amend certain terms of the Structured Contracts.
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The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic benefits from our LTHBRAREBESORERPREE
PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment to our Group stipulated under the ERNEUREEZEAEENEENZRM
Structured Contracts:
I !
| I
Company : Mr. Zhang :
ENAD : REE !
,,,,,,,,,,, I I
100% : Tttt T e
 (6) (7) (9
+ (6) (7) (9) ® ' |100%
v I
|
XZ Huali (PRC) |
FARES () !
f B f : — denotes direct legal and beneficial
(5) | L 1 (4) | ownership in the equity interest
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Directors of PRC I bommoooe G T :
Operating Entities 1 | | -~ denotes Structured Contracts
THEERRES N | EREBIEAH
Q) |
@, !
SRR 2 S Y
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| I
| Huali Investment (PRC) |
: EVRE(HE) :
| I
I ¢ 100% I
| I
| I
| PRC Operating Entities |
: PEEESR |
| I
| I
Notes B &% -
Payment of service fees. 1 TRIGE o

Provision of exclusive technical and management consultancy services.

Exclusive call option to acquire all or part of the School Sponsor’s interest of Huali Investment
in our PRC Operating Entities and equity interest in Huali Investment.

Entrustment of School Sponsor’s rights in our PRC Operating Entities by Huali Investment,
including School Sponsor’s power of attorney.

Entrustment of directors’ rights in our PRC Operating Entities by School Directors appointed
by Huali Investment, including school directors’ power of attorney.

Spouse undertaking by the spouse of the Registered Shareholder, who is the shareholder of
Huali Investment.

Pledge of equity interest by the Registered Shareholder of their equity interest in Huali
Investment.

Power of attorney by Mr. Zhang to XZ Huali.

Entrustment of Registered Shareholder’s rights in Huali Investment by Registered Shareholder,
including Registered Shareholder’s Power of Attorney.
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Summary of the Material Terms of the Structured Contracts
A description of each of the specific agreements that comprise the Structured
Contracts (as amended and supplemented from time to time) is set out below.

(1) Business Cooperation Agreement

Pursuant to the Business Cooperation Agreement, XZ Huali shall provide technical
services, management support and consulting services, necessary for the private
education business, and in return, Huali Investment and our PRC Operating Entities
shall make payments pursuant to the Structured Contracts.

To ensure the due performance of the Structured Contracts, each of our PRC
Operating Entities and Huali Investment agreed to comply, and procure its
subsidiaries to comply, with the obligations as prescribed under the Business
Cooperation Agreement set forth as follows in relation to the respective PRC
Operating Entity:

(i) to carry out its private education operations and the business of Huali
Investment in a prudent and efficient manner in accordance with good
financial and business standards while maintaining the asset value of Huali
Investment and our PRC Operating Entities and the quality and standard of
private education;

(i) to prepare school development plans and annual working plans in
accordance with the instructions of XZ Huali;

(iii)  to carry out its private education activities and other relevant business under
the assistance of XZ Huali;

(iv)  to carry out relevant business and manage its daily operations and financial
management in accordance with the recommendations, advice, principles

and other instructions of XZ Huali;

(v) to execute and act upon the recommendations of XZ Huali in terms of

employment and removal of senior management and staff;

(vi)  to adopt the advice, guidance and plans given by XZ Huali in relation to
their respective strategic development; and

(vii)  to carry out its business operations and renew and maintain its respective

necessary licenses for the purpose of development of education business.
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In addition, pursuant to the Business Cooperation Agreement,

(a)

54

the Registered Shareholder undertakes to XZ Huali that, in the event of
death, loss of or restriction on capacity, divorce or other circumstances
which may affect the exercise of their equity interest in Huali Investment,
they shall have made all necessary arrangements and sign all necessary
documents such that their respective successor, guardian, spouse, and
any other person who may as a result of any of the above events obtain
the equity interest or relevant rights shall not prejudice or hinder the
enforcement of the Structured Contracts;

Huali Investment and the Registered Shareholder undertakes that, in the
event of dissolution or liquidation of our PRC Operating Entities or Huali
Investment, (i) XZ Huali and/or its authorized person shall have the rights to
exercise all of the school sponsor’s rights on behalf of Huali Investment and
the shareholders’ interest in Huali Investment; (ii) Huali Investment and/or
its shareholder shall transfer all assets received or receivable in its capacity
as school sponsor of each of our PRC Operating Entities and/or as the
shareholder of Huali Investment as a result of the dissolution or liquidation
of our PRC Operating Entities and/or Huali Investment to XZ Huali or other
persons designated by us at nil consideration, (iii) if consideration is required
for such transfer under the then applicable PRC laws, Huali Investment and
its shareholder shall compensate XZ Huali and/or the person as designated
by us the amount by proper means and guarantee that XZ Huali and/or
other persons as designated by us does not suffer any loss; and

Huali Investment and our PRC Operating Entities agreed that, without
the prior written consent of XZ Huali, Huali Investment and/or any of
our PRC Operating Entities shall not declare or pay to its shareholders
any bonus, returns, dividend or other interest or benefit. In the event
that the Registered Shareholder as shareholder of Huali Investment or
Huali Investment receive any bonus, returns, dividend or other interest or
benefit, the Registered Shareholder or Huali Investment shall unconditionally
and without compensation, transfer such amount to a specific account
designated by XZ Huali as security for the performance of obligations under

the Structured Contracts and repayment of debt.
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(2) Exclusive Technical Service and Management Consultancy
Agreement

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Service and Management Consultancy
Agreement, XZ Huali has agreed to provide exclusive technical services to Huali
Investment and our PRC Operating Entities, including but not limited to, (a)
design, development, update and maintenance of educational software for
computer and mobile devices; (b) design, development, update and maintenance
of webpages and websites necessary for the education activities of Huali
Investment and our PRC Operating Entities; (c) design, development, update and
maintenance of management information systems necessary for the education
activities of Huali Investment and our PRC Operating Entities; (d) provision of
other technical support necessary for the education activities of Huali Investment
and our PRC Operating Entities; (e) provision of technical consulting services;
(f) provision of technical training; (g) engaging technical staff to provide on-site
technical support; and (h) providing other technical services reasonably requested
by Huali Investment and our PRC Operating Entities.

Furthermore, XZ Huali has agreed to provide exclusive management consultancy
services to Huali Investment and our PRC Operating Entities, including but
not limited to, (a) design of curriculum; (b) preparation, selection and/or
recommendation of course materials; (c) provision of teacher and staff recruitment
and training support and services; (d) provision of student recruitment support
and services; (e) provision of public relation services; (f) preparation of long-
term strategic development plans and annual working plans; (g) development of
financial management systems and recommendation and optimization on annual
budget; (h) advising on design of internal structures and internal management; (i)
provision of management and consultancy training; (j) conduct of market research;
(k) preparation of market development plan; (I) building of education management
network and (m) providing other technical services reasonably requested by Huali
Investment and our PRC Operating Entities.

In consideration of the technical and management consultancy services provided
by XZ Huali, each of Huali Investment and our PRC Operating Entities agreed to
pay XZ Huali a service fee equal to all of their respective amount of net profit
(after deducting all costs, expenses, taxes, losses from the previous year (if
required by law) and the legally compulsory development fund of the respective
school/statutory surplus reserve (if required by law)); XZ Huali has the right (but
not the obligation) to adjust the amount of such service fee by reference to the
actual services provided and the actual business operations and needs of Huali
Investment and our PRC Operating Entities, provided that any adjusted amount
shall not exceed the amount mentioned above. Huali Investment and our PRC
Operating Entities do not have any right to make any such adjustment.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Service and Management Consultancy
Agreement, unless otherwise prescribed under PRC laws and regulations, XZ Huali
shall have exclusive proprietary rights to any intellectual property of the technology
developed and materials prepared in the course of the provision of research and
development, technical support and services by XZ Huali to Huali Investment
and our PRC Operating Entities, and any intellectual property in the products
developed, including any other rights derived thereunder, in the course of
performance of obligations under the Exclusive Technical Service and Management
Consultancy Agreement and/or any other agreements entered into between XZ
Huali and other parties.

(3) Exclusive Call Option Agreement

Under the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, the Registered Shareholder and Huali
Investment have irrevocably granted XZ Huali or its designated purchaser the
right to purchase all or part of the investment/school sponsor’s interest of Huali
Investment in our PRC Operating Entities (“Call Option”). The purchase price
payable by XZ Huali for the transfer of such investment/school sponsor’s interest
under the Call Option shall be the lowest price permitted under PRC laws and
regulations. XZ Huali or its designated purchaser shall have the right to purchase
such proportion of the investment/school sponsor’s interest of our PRC Operating
Entities as it decides at any time.

(4) School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment
Agreement

Pursuant to the School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement,
Huali Investment has irrevocably authorized and entrusted XZ Huali to exercise all
its rights as school sponsor of each of our PRC Operating Entities to the extent
permitted by the PRC laws. These rights include, but are not limited to: (a) the
right to appoint and/or elect directors or council members of our PRC Operating
Entities; (b) the right to appoint and/or elect supervisors of our PRC Operating
Entities; (c) the right to understand the operation and financial situation of our
PRC Operating Entities; (d) the right to review the resolutions and records of the
board of directors and financial statements and reports of the PRC Operating
Entities; (e) the right to obtain reasonable return (if existing) or profits as school
sponsor of our PRC Operating Entities in accordance with relevant laws; (f) the
right to acquire residual assets upon liquidation of the schools in accordance with
relevant laws; (g) the right to transfer the school sponsor’s interest in accordance
with relevant laws; (h) the right to approve the management strategy and
investment plan; (i) the right to review and approve the annual budget and profit
distribution plan; and (j) other school sponsor’s rights pursuant to applicable PRC
laws and regulations and the articles of association of our PRC Operating Entities

as amended from time to time.
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Pursuant to the School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement,
the School Directors have irrevocably authorized and entrusted XZ Huali to
exercise all his rights as directors of our PRC Operating Entities as appointed or
nominated by Huali Investment and to the extent permitted by the PRC laws.
These rights include, but are not limited to: (a) the right to attend meetings of
the board of directors as representative of the directors appointed or nominated
by Huali Investment; (b) the right to exercise voting rights in respect of all matters
discussed and resolved at board meetings of each of our PRC Operating Entities;
(c) the right to propose to convene interim board meetings of each of our PRC
Operating Entities; (d) the right to sign all board minutes, board resolutions and
other legal documents to which the directors appointed by Huali Investment have
authority to sign in his/her capacity as directors of our PRC Operating Entities; (e)
the right to instruct the legal representative and financial and business responsible
persons of our PRC Operating Entities to act in accordance with the instruction
of XZ Huali; (f) the right to exercise all other rights and voting rights of directors
as prescribed under the articles of association of our PRC Operating Entities; (g)
the right to handle the legal procedures of registration, approval and licensing of
our PRC Operating Entities at the education department, the department of civil
affairs or other government regulatory departments; and (h) other directors’ rights
pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations and the articles of association of
our PRC Operating Entities as amended from time to time.

In addition, each of Huali Investment and the School Directors have irrevocably
agreed that (i) XZ Huali may delegate its rights under the School Sponsor’s
and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement to the directors of XZ Huali or its
designated person, without prior notice to or approval by Huali Investment and
the School Directors; and (ii) any person as successor of civil rights of XZ Huali
or liquidator by reason of subdivision, merger, liquidation of XZ Huali or other
circumstances shall have authority to replace XZ Huali to exercise all rights under
the School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement.

(5) School Sponsor’s Power of Attorney

Pursuant to the School Sponsor’s Power of Attorney executed by Huali Investment
in favor of XZ Huali, Huali Investment authorized and appointed XZ Huali as its
agent to act on its behalf to exercise or delegate the exercise of all its rights as
school sponsor of each of our PRC Operating Entities. For details of the rights
granted, see “— Summary of the Material Terms of the Structured Contracts —
(4) School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement” of this report.

XZ Huali has the right to further delegate the rights so delegated to directors of
XZ Huali or to another designated person. Huali Investment has irrevocably agreed
that the authorization and appointment in the School Sponsor’s Power of Attorney
shall not be invalidated, revoked, prejudiced or otherwise adversely affected by
reason of Huali Investment’s subdivision, merger, winding up, consolidation,
liquidation or other similar events. The School Sponsor’'s Power of Attorney shall
constitute a part and incorporate terms of the School Sponsor’'s and Directors’
Rights Entrustment Agreement.
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(6) School Directors’ Power of Attorney

Pursuant to the School Directors’ Power of Attorney executed by each of the
School Directors in favor of XZ Huali, each of the School Directors, authorized and
appointed XZ Huali, as his agent to act on his behalf to exercise or delegate the
exercise of all his rights and functions as director of our PRC Operating Entities.
For details of the rights granted, please refer to the section headed “"— Summary
of the Material Terms of the Structured Contracts — (4) School Sponsor’s and
Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement” in this report for more details.

XZ Huali shall have the right to further delegate the rights so delegated to
directors of XZ Huali or to another designated person. XZ Huali shall not delegate
any of these rights to anyone whose interest would potentially conflict with those
of our Group. Each of the School Directors has irrevocably agreed that, unless the
Appointee ceases to be a director of XZ Huali, the authorization appointment in
the School Directors’ Powers of Attorney shall not be invalidated, prejudiced or
otherwise adversely affected by reason of his loss of or restriction on capacity,
death or other similar events. The School Directors’ Power of Attorney shall
constitute a part and incorporate terms of the School Sponsor’'s and Directors’
Rights Entrustment Agreement.

(7) Spouse Undertaking
Pursuant to the Spouse Undertaking, the spouse of the Registered Shareholder has
irrevocably undertaken that:

(@  she has full knowledge of and has consented to the entering into of
the Structured Contracts by the relevant Registered Shareholder, and in
particular, the arrangements set out in the Structured Contracts in relation
to the restrictions imposed on the equity interest in Huali Investment,
the pledge or transfer of the equity interest in Huali Investment, and the
disposal of the equity interest in Huali Investment in any other form;

(b)  she has not, is not and shall not in the future participate in the operation,
management, liquidation, dissolution and other matters in relation to Huali

Investment and our PRC Operating Entities;

(c)  she authorizes the respective Registered Shareholder and/or his authorized
person to execute all necessary documents and perform all necessary
procedures from time to time for and on behalf of the spouse in relation
to the spouse’s equity interest in Huali Investment in order to safeguard
the interest of XZ Huali under the Structured Contracts and give effect to
the fundamental purposes thereunder, and confirms and agrees to all such
documents and procedures;
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(d) any undertaking, confirmation, consent and authorization under the Spouse
Undertaking shall not be revoked, prejudiced, invalidated or otherwise
adversely affected by any increase, decrease, consolidation or other similar
events relating to the equity interest held by the Registered Shareholder in

Huali Investment;

(e)  any undertaking, confirmation, consent and authorization under the Spouse
Undertaking shall not be revoked, prejudiced, invalidated or otherwise
adversely affected by the death, loss of or restriction on capacity of the
spouse, divorce or other similar events; and

(f)  all undertakings, confirmations, consents and authorizations under the
Spouse Undertaking shall continue to be valid and binding until otherwise
terminated by both XZ Huali and the spouse by in writing.

The Spouse Undertaking shall have the same term as and incorporate the terms of
the Business Cooperation Agreement.

(8) Equity Pledge Agreement

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Registered Shareholder
unconditionally and irrevocably pledged and granted first priority security interests
over all of his equity interest in Huali Investment together with all related
rights thereto to XZ Huali as security for the performance of obligations of the
Registered Shareholder, Huali Investments and our PRC Operating Entities under
the Structured Contracts and all direct, indirect, consequential damages and
foreseeable loss of interest incurred by XZ Huali as a result of the any event of
default (if any) on the part of the Registered Shareholder, Huali Investment or
each of our PRC Operating Entities and all expenses incurred by XZ Huali as a
result of enforcement of the obligations of the Registered Shareholder, Huali
Investment and/or each of our PRC Operating Entities under the Structured
Contracts (the “Secured Indebtedness”).

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, without the prior written consent of XZ
Huali, the Registered Shareholder shall not transfer its equity interest or create any
further pledge or encumbrance over the pledged equity interest. Any unauthorized
transfer shall be invalid, and the proceeds of any transfer of the equity interest
shall be first used in the payment of the Secured Indebtedness or deposited with
such third party as agreed by XZ Huali. The Registered Shareholder also waived
any pre-emptive rights upon enforcement and agreed to any transfer of the
pledged equity pursuant to the equity pledge agreement.

The pledge under the Equity Pledge Agreement was registered with the
Guangzhou Administration for Industry and Commerce (now known as Guangzhou
Market Supervisory Authority) on September 13, 2018 and the Secured
Indebtedness became effective on the same date.
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(9) Registered Shareholder’s Rights Entrustment Agreement
and Registered Shareholder’s Power of Attorney
According to the Registered Shareholder’s Rights Entrustment Agreement and

Registered Shareholder’s Power of Attorney, Mr. Zhang, as the Registered

Shareholder has executed a power of attorney irrevocably entrusting and

authorizing XZ Huali or its designated person as his agent to act on his behalf

to exercise all his rights as a shareholder of Huali Investment in respect of our

PRC Operating Entities under the articles of associations of Huali Investment and

pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the rights to:

(a)

(b)

60

determine the business objectives and investment plans of Huali Investment;
elect and change non-staff representative directors and supervisors of Huali
Investment who are responsible for the operation of our PRC Operating
Entities and to fix their remuneration;

consider and approve the report of directors of Huali Investment;

consider and approve the report of supervisors of Huali Investment;

consider and approve the annual financial budget and final accounts of

Huali Investment;

consider and approve plans for profit sharing and loss recovery of Huali
Investment;

increase or decrease the registered capital of Huali Investment;

issue bonds of Huali Investment;

merge, subdivide, dissolve, wind-up or change the form of corporate
organization of Huali Investment;

amend the articles of association of Huali Investment; and

conduct any other matters that are empowered by the articles of association
of Huali Investment.
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Business activities of the PRC Operating Entities
The PRC Operating Entities are, namely, Huali College, Huali Vocational College
and Huali technician College. Their business activities are primarily engaged in

higher education services and vocational education services.

Significance and financial contributions of the PRC
Operating Entities to the Group

Pursuant to the Structured Contracts, the Group obtains control over and derives
the economic benefits from the PRC Operating Entities and School Sponsors. The
table below sets out the financial contribution of the PRC Operating Entities and

the School Sponsors to the Group:
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HASENEZE MR U B EM
Revenue Total Assets
A BEE
For the year For the year
ended ended
August 31, 2021 August 31, 2021
HZ20214F 8Z2021%F

8A31HILFE B8A31MBLFE

Significance and financial contribution HAEBENEZ R BEE(%)
to the Group %

100% 74.5%

Revenue and assets involved in the Structured Contracts

ERBMESHUIRNBAREE

Revenue Total Assets

A HEE

For the year For the year
ended ended

August 31, 2021 August 31, 2021
BZE2021%F BZE2021%F

8A31HIFE 8A3MALFE

PRC Operating Entities and PR EERNERERA
the School Sponsors

881,656 7,243,807
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Regulatory Framework
Pursuant to the Foreign Investment Industries Guidance Catalogue (as amended
in 2017) (HMHREEZXREHE) (2017FE

Industries Guidance Catalogue”), the provision of higher education in the

%])) (the “Foreign Investment

PRC falls within the “restricted” category. In particular, the Foreign Investment
Industries Guidance Catalogue explicitly restricts higher education institutions to
Sino-foreign cooperation, meaning that foreign investors may only operate higher
education institutions through cooperating with PRC-incorporated entities that are
in compliance with the Regulations on Sino-foreign Cooperative Education of the
PRC ( {h#E AR KB INA EPE(EH) ) (the “Sino-Foreign Regulations”). In
addition, the Foreign Investment Industries Guidance Catalogue provides that the
domestic party shall play a dominant role in the Sino-foreign cooperation, meaning
that (a) the principal or other chief executive officer of the schools or education
institutions shall be a PRC national, and (b) the representatives of the domestic
party shall account for no less than 50% of the total number of the members of
the board of directors, the executive council or the joint administration committee

of the Sino-foreign school.

On June 23, 2020, the National Development and Reform Commission of the
PRC and the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC jointly promulgated the Foreign
Investment Access Special Management Measures (Negative List) (2020 Version)
(OMEREEASHERER (REEE) (2020%R) ) ) (the “Negative List”),
which became effective on July 23, 2020 and replaced the Foreign Investment
Industries Guidance Catalogue. Pursuant to the Negative List, the restrictions on
foreign investments in higher education remain unchanged.

In relation to the interpretation of Sino-foreign cooperation, pursuant to the
Sino-Foreign Regulations, the foreign investor in a Sino-foreign school (whether
a kindergarten, high school or higher education institution) (a “Sino-Foreign
School”) must be a foreign educational institution with relevant qualification and
high quality of education (the “Higher Education Qualification Requirement”).
Pursuant to the Administrative Measures for the Sino-Foreign Cooperative

((hOMEERE BRI R ETE

7A) ), the foreign investor in a Sino-foreign technical school must be a foreign

Education on Vocational Skills Training (

education institution or a foreign vocational skills training institution with
relevant qualification and high quality of education (the “Vocational Education
Qualification Requirement”, together with the Higher Education Qualification
Requirement, the “Qualification Requirement”). Furthermore, pursuant to the
Implementation Opinions of the MOE on Encouraging and Guiding the Entry of
Private Capital in the Fields of Education and Promoting the Healthy Development
of Private Education ( (# B AN BN S| G R E € AHE BHRERPH
EfEEERMERER) ), the foreign portion of the total investment in a Sino
Foreign School should be below 50% and the establishment of these schools is

subject to approval of education authorities at the provincial or national level.
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The Company’s PRC legal adviser has advised that the laws and regulations are
currently uncertain as to what specific criteria must be met by a foreign investor
(such as length of experience and form and extent of ownership in the foreign
jurisdiction) in order to demonstrate to the relevant authority that it meets
the Qualification Requirement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company is
committed to working towards meeting the Qualification Requirement and has
implemented a business plan to ensure our compliance with the Qualification
Requirement and with a view to expanding our education operations overseas.
In 2017, the Company established a wholly-owned subsidiary in the State of
California, the United States, for the operation and management of our education
business in the State of California. The Company also engaged an independent
education consultant with extensive experience and background in private post
secondary education to advise on and assist the Company in the establishment of
our institution in the State of California. We have submitted a licensing application
to the Bureau for Private Post-secondary Education in the State of California. As
at the date of this annual report, we had not yet obtained the relevant licence.
We will continue to disclose our progress in the implementation of our overseas
expansion plans and updates to the Qualification Requirement in our annual and

interim reports.

Risks associated with the Structured Contracts and the
actions taken to mitigate the risks

The PRC government may find that the contracts that establish the structure for
operating our business in China do not comply with applicable PRC laws and
regulations, which may subject us to severe penalties and our business may be
materially and adversely affected. The Contractual Arrangements may be subject to
the scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed, which
may materially and adversely affect our results of operations.

The Structured Contracts may not be as effective in providing us with control over
our consolidated affiliated entities as direct ownership. The beneficial owners of
our consolidated affiliated entities may have conflicts of interest with us, which
may materially and adversely affect our business and financial condition. The
sponsor interests in our all three schools held by Huali Investment are not capable
of being pledged in favour of our WFOE under the PRC laws. Our Structured
Contracts with respect to these schools contain alternative arrangements that may
not achieve the level of protection equivalent to typical structured contracts with
equity pledge arrangements.
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Our exercise of the option to acquire the sponsor interests or equity interests of
our consolidated affiliated entities may be subject to certain limitations and we
may incur substantial costs. Any failure by our consolidated affiliated entities or
their respective school sponsors/shareholders to perform their obligations under
our Structured Contracts would potentially lead to the incurrence of additional
costs and the expending of substantial resources on our part to enforce such
arrangements, temporary or permanent loss of control over our primary operations

or loss of access to our primary sources of revenue.

We rely on dividend and other payments from WFOE to pay dividends and
other cash distributions to our Shareholders and any limitation on the ability of
WEFOE to pay dividends to us would materially and adversely limit our ability to
pay dividends to our Shareholders. If any of our consolidated affiliated entities
becomes subject to winding up or liquidation proceedings, we may lose the ability
to use and enjoy certain important assets held by our consolidated affiliated
entities, which could negatively impact our business and materially and adversely
affect our ability to generate revenue.

The Board will review the Structured Contracts at least once a year to ensure the
effective implementation of the Structured Contracts and compliance with the
relevant terms.

Material changes
As of the date of this annual report, there were no material changes in the
Structured Contracts and/or the circumstances under which the Structured
Contracts were adopted.

Unwinding of the Structured Contracts

As of the date of this annual report, there has not been any unwinding of any
Structured Contracts, nor has there been any failure to unwind any Structured
Contracts when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Structured
Contracts are removed. In the event that the PRC regulatory environment changes
and all of the Qualification Requirement, the Foreign Ownership Restriction and
the Foreign Control Restriction are removed (and assuming there are no other
changes in the relevant PRC laws and regulations), XZ Huali will exercise the
relevant call option in full to unwind the contractual arrangements so that the
Company will be able to directly operate the schools without using the Structured
Contracts.
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Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Structured Contracts

and confirmed that during the year ended August 31, 2021:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the transactions carried out during such year have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Structured Contracts and had
been operated so that the profit generated by our PRC Operating Entities
had been substantially retained by our Group;

no dividends or other distributions had been made by our PRC Operating
Entities to the holders of its School Sponsor’s interest which were not
otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to our Group; and

the Structured Contracts and, if any, any new contracts entered into,
renewed or reproduced between our Group and our PRC Operating Entities
during the Reporting Period were fair and reasonable, or advantageous, so
far as our Group was concerned and in the interests of our Shareholders as

a whole.

no dividends or other distributions have been made by the PRC Operating
Entities to the holder of the equity interest of its school sponsor which are

not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

Confirmation of the Company’s auditor
The auditor of the Company has confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with

respect to the aforesaid continuing connected transactions entered into in the year
ended August 31, 2021:

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group,
nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to believe that
the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in

accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in the attached list of continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded

the annual cap as set by the Company; and
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e. With respect of the disclosed continuing connected transactions with the
PRC Operating Entities, the legal owner of the PRC Operating Entities
and XZ Huali under the contractual arrangements, nothing has come to
their attention that causes the auditor to believe that dividends or other
distributions have been made by the PRC Operating Entities to the holder
of the equity interest of its school sponsor which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by our Group during the
year ended August 31, 2021 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. The transactions as set out therein fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and the Company confirmed that it has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates has engaged in any
business that competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with the Group
during the year ended August 31, 2021.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Recruitment

We strictly comply with the PRC Labor Law, the PRC Labor Contract Law, the PRC
Employment Promotion Law, the PRC Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration
Law as well as other applicable provincial and local labor laws and regulations
in our recruitment process. We prohibit discrimination of staff by age, sex, race,
nationality, religion or disability to ensure that everyone has equal employment

opportunities and prospects.
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We recruit teachers based on the size of our current student enrollment and
the number of newly admitted students at the beginning of each academic
year. We primarily seek to recruit (i) high quality and experienced teachers
who are knowledgeable in both theory and practice and hold the necessary
academic credentials and professional qualifications (i.e. diplomas and professional
certificates); and (ii) teachers who have work experience in the relevant industries.
We also invite industry experts from entities with which we have cooperative
relationships to give lectures or teach classes as adjunct faculty members of our
schools.

Our schools carry out their recruitment works based on our employee manual
and our teachers’ recruitment policy, and continuously improve and refine their
recruitment processes. We actively approach talents through participating in
talent recruitment fairs and industry conferences, and encourage our staff to take
advantage of social media to refer and recommend talented candidates to join
us. In addition, we provide continuing trainings to our teachers so that they can
stay abreast of the changes in market demand, new teaching theories and/or
methodologies, changing teaching and testing standards.

Remuneration

As at August 31, 2021, the Group had 2,157 employees (as at August 31, 2020:
1,640). The remuneration packages of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual qualification, experience and performance, contribution
to the Group, prevailing market rate and our remuneration policy.

The remuneration policy of our schools is formulated under the guidance of PRC
laws and is based on industry characteristics as well as various market factors. The
staff congress, president’s office and board of directors of our schools collectively
approve the compensation range of their employees. Our schools determine their
respective compensation standards based on employment by function (teachers
and administrative personnel) and position. Our schools pay a fixed annual salary
to senior management and top talents such as directors, deans/department heads,
administrative heads and professors. Our schools participate in social insurance
plans (pension, medical, unemployment, work injury and maternity insurance)
under the guidance of the relevant national, provincial and municipalities policies,
and provide a variety of benefits for their employees.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Employees of the Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC participate in a central
pension scheme, which is a defined contribution plan administered by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of
the employees’ salaries to the Scheme to fund the benefits. Once the specified
annual contributions are made, the Group will not have any further payment
obligations in respect of the Scheme. An amount of approximately RMB9.06
million was recorded in the statements of profit or loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 August 2021 (year ended 31 August 2020: approximately RMB5.96
million), representing the contributions made to the Scheme at rates specified in
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the rules of the pension scheme by the Group. The Group has no other material
obligation for payment of pension benefits beyond the annual contributions.

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of our Company are set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at August 31, 2020 and 2021, there were no forfeited contributions in
relation to pension plans (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) in the Group. Hence, there
is no forfeited contribution available for the Group to reduce its existing level of
contributions to the pension plans in future years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
Directors and senior management, having regard to their relevant experience,
duties and responsibilities, performance and achievement, and market rate. None
of the Directors will determine their own remuneration. Details of the Directors’
remuneration and the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in
note 35 and note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information publicly available
to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company continues
to meet the prescribed minimum percentage of public float under the Listing Rules
(i.e. at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital are held by the
public at all times as of the date of this report).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING
The Company issued 300,000,000 new Shares with a par value of US$0.0001

at an issue price of HK$3.26 per Share in connection with the Listing. The net
proceeds from the Listing, after deducting underwriting commission and other
expenses, were approximately HK$946.0 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB850.9 million).
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The following table sets forth a summary of the utilization of the net proceeds TRHEI ETWAAERIEFRENESANE
from the Listing:

Utilized Unutilized
amount as at amount as at

August 31, August 31, Expected

%  Net Proceed 2021 2021 timeline
BZE2021F #ZE2021F
8HA31H 8A31H

% FIBRERE CHRALE FBALE BAHEERX
RMB’ Million RMB’ Million RMB’ Million

Purpose Jiif:s ARBEERT AR¥BERT ARBEER
Expansion of existing schools by SR EE Y B REE B 53.0% 451.0 (451.0) —
constructing additional buildings ERMEFUEARE
for Huali College and Huali Br
Vocational College
Establishment of a new junior college fEERAIPIHHERR 37.0% 314.8 (185.0) 129.8 2021-2022
in Jiangmen City, Guangdong BR
Province
Working capital and general HEESR—MOERE 10.0% 85.1 (75.1) 10.0 2021-2022

corporate purposes

Total st 100.0% 850.9 (711.1) 139.8
SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND BERXEEFARER
COMPLIANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or RNIBEHBR - A DF R E S E [ E AN
arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance i BEBESEW A AAMEBEMEARFRARR
is known to the Directors to be pending or threatening against the Company. BEHRTERERAAFBREE -

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, to the best RNBEHBARAREEARESBE  EEST

knowledge of the Directors, the Group had complied with all applicable laws and o AEFBCEMBEAST@ESTHAEED
regulations in all material aspects. BERIER -
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant event affecting the Company nor any of it subsidiaries
after the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company had reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended August 31, 2021, and
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group with
the management of the Group, and discussed the internal controls and financial
reporting matters with them.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by our Company is set out in “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended August 31,
2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Zhifeng
Chairman

Hong Kong, November 19, 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended August 31, 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Company had complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code,
except for the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which is
explained in the relevant paragraph of this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential in enhancing the
confidence of the Shareholders, potential investors and business partners and
is consistent with the Board’'s pursuit of value creation for the Shareholders.
The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to reviewing such
practices from time to time to ensure that the Company complies with the
statutory and professional standards and is aligned with the latest development.

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, overseeing
strategic decisions of the Group and monitoring business and performance. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the daily management
and operations of the Group to the senior management of the Group. In order
to supervise specific aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has set up three
Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. The Board has delegated the responsibilities
stipulated in their respective terms of reference to the Board committees.

All Directors perform their duties in good faith, comply with applicable laws and
regulations, and act in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all

times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for legal proceedings
against Directors. The coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

Our Board consists of seven Directors, including four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following table lists some of our

Directors’ information:

EEg4Am
ARAEFRELAEFEAR  RENAHR
TEFR=ZBUFNTES - TRIITE
FHHH AR

Name Position

e B %

Zhang Zhifeng Chairman of the Board, executive Director and chairman of the Nomination Committee
SRE & BEEgER HOTESKEEZESER

Ye Yaming Executive Director and member of the Remuneration Committee

Eiss BITEERFMEESKE

Zhang Yude Executive Director

SR WITEF

Zou Kang Executive Director

BEE WITEF

Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, M.H., J.P.

HHELE - M.H. - J.P.

Independent non-executive Director and chairman of the Audit Committee

B FRTEERERZR LR

Yang Ying Independent non-executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
members of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee

S BIUFPTES  FWEESTERERZEQIRELZEGNE

Ding Yi Independent non-executive Director and members of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee

i BYPTESREREZE S FHEECHREZZTEGKE

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

From the date of Listing to the date of publication of this Annual Report, the
Board has always complied with the provisions of Rules 3.10 (1) and 3.10 (2) of
the Listing Rules for the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has met all the requirements under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
for the appointment of independent non-executive Directors who account for at
least one-third of the Board. Since each independent non-executive Director has
confirmed his/her independence during the Reporting Period in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company considers all these Directors to be
independent parties.
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Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report, no Directors have any
personal relationship (including financial, business, family or other material or
related relationships) with any other Director.

The Board has adopted a diversity policy, which sets out objectives and stipulates
that all appointments to the Board should be based on the qualities, skills and
experience required by the Board as a whole. The Nomination Committee will
review and assess the composition of the Board and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Board members. At the same time, the
Nomination Committee will take into account all aspects of diversity, including,
but not limited to, professional experience, skills, knowledge, educational
background, age, gender, culture and ethnicity, and length of service, in order
to maintain the appropriate range and balance of talents, skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives on the Board.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed such board diversity policies for the
year ended August 31, 2021. During the Reporting Period, the composition of
the Company’s existing independent non-executive Directors and their senior
management team vary greatly in terms of age, educational background and
professional experience.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
range of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
efficient and effective operation of the Board. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve as members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

With regard to the CG Code, which requires Directors to disclose the number
and nature of offices held in a public company or organization and other material
commitments, as well as the identity of the public company or organization
and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments and any subsequent changes to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with the necessary induction training
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and his/her responsibilities under the relevant
statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide the Directors with the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements. The Board also regularly informs the
Company’s performance, position and prospects of Directors so that the Board as
a whole and each of the Directors can perform their respective duties.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and update their knowledge and skills. The Company’s
joint company secretaries update and provide training materials relating to the
roles, functions and responsibilities of Directors from time to time.
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All Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Zhifeng, Mr. Ye Yaming, Mr. Zou Kang, Mr.
Zhang Yude, Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, M.H., J.P., Mr. Yang Ying, Mr. Ding Yi,
have been updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. In addition, continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Prior to the Listing, each of the Directors has attended the training conducted
by the legal adviser of the Company. The content of such training related to the
duties of directors and on-going obligations of listed companies.

The Directors have submitted a signed training record for the Reporting Period to
the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different individuals.
Mr. Zhang Zhifeng was appointed as the Chairman. Mr. Ye Yaming resigned as
the Chief Executive Officer on November 19, 2021 and Mr. Zhang Zhifeng was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on the same date. Having considered that
Mr. Zhang Zhifeng is the founder of the Group and has extensive experience in
the private higher education industry in the PRC and is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and business development of the Group, the Board is therefore
of the view that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
in Mr. Zhang Zhifeng provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
to improve the Company’s efficiency in decision-making and execution, and
effectively capture business opportunities. As such, the Board considered that the
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate under
such circumstances. The Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and consider separating the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer when it thinks appropriate.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Subject to the Articles of Association, the Board may from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or to
supplement the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only before the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and may be re-elected at
that meeting.

At every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors shall
retire temporarily (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, or close
to but not less than one-third), shall retire by rotation provided that each Director
(including Directors that appointed for a specified term) shall rotate at least once
every three years.

No Directors have or are proposed to enter into a service contract with us or any
of our subsidiaries (except for contracts which are due or determinable by the
employer within one year without payment of compensation) (other than statutory

compensation).
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The Articles of Association stipulates the procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the composition of the Board and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and the succession planning
of Directors.

Nomination Policy

The Director Nomination Policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the Board
aims to improve the transparency and accountability of the nomination process
of Directors, and to enable the Company to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company's
business requirements.

According to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee is responsible
for selecting suitable candidates and offering recommendations to the Board
when appointing Directors. The selection criteria that shall be considered by
the Nomination Committee to assess the suitability of a proposed candidate
includes: character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and strategy, the potential
contribution to the Board in terms of diversity, and any other factors considered
appropriate by the Nomination Committee to be in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders. The above selection criteria are not exhaustive
and conclusive, and the Nomination Committee may nominate any person as it
considers appropriate at its discretion.

Subject to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee shall hold a meeting
after obtaining the required information from the candidates to discuss and
consider the candidate’s recommendation to the Board for appointment as a
Director. The Nomination Committee shall, in accordance with the relevant Listing
Rules and the Company’s policies, examine whether the candidates are eligible for
appointment, election or re-election to the Board. In particular, the Nomination
Committee should consider the potential contribution of candidates that can
bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity.

Nomination Process of the Appointment of New Director

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall, after receiving the proposal for
the appointment of a new Director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate the candidate in accordance with the above
criteria to determine whether the candidate is qualified for the office of director.
The Nomination Committee shall then recommend to the Board the appointment
of appropriate candidates for Directors (if applicable).

For any person nominated by a Shareholder to elect a Director at a general
meeting of the Company shall be evaluated by the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board in accordance with the above criteria and, as appropriate, make
recommendations to the Shareholders on the proposed election of Directors at the
general meeting.

TEERRSE

HBERANRETESTROE EERL2EMN
BFEERE REAZECRAERNESTEH
B YHREEZAXBREREZTETREMA
EESFHER -

REBBR

EFERMNEFRARR ((REBRDE
ARBEFRAEFHEAERMEAM 2
ARRATRREFSTABHERAAAEBR
RO CREBHESEETE

RBREBE REZEGAHEREENR
BA WEEZTEERMESSIFEHES -
EERESHRERAZEEEE  UFGHRE
BEREANBEENL  BE: MBERRE X
XER EARFEBLREWBEOKRE -
HBLEER EZTTEHEEGNE

R UARREZEZEERRABITALRR
ARERREAMNGENEMEMESR - Lt
BEREVIFFEME  TTAEREN 8
FREGNRBEEER/AENEMAL -

ERNREERE REZESANKIEEA
RSB ENBEHNERIT—REE  UTHL
EENEFGEHRBZIREAR/ES - 1BF
ZERARRHEBLETREARBNEREK
EEREACTRERERE BEELESR
REZEKE FHR REZEGEZTE
REAREEERE  Be - &%  BUMERM
AMEEUETHAEZTEHRNER -

ZEFNEENRBER
RAZERR /REFRARIEAHES
MERERIREANBEAR (SRS & -
FE IR FR bl AR R IR A - A HEE B2 A
REAARETESRSY - Rk REZAE
ANEESRBZTLENEFREA (NE
F) -

ERREERAATABRAG LERERN
EAAL  BRHRAZESR LEFFR
REMBEFGG L (NER)RRRRE £
MERRRERRNRRELES -

Y REEHAGRA A 75
2021 FEHE



Corporate Governance Report
{2 ER RS

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, which
are held at least four times a year and about once a quarter. All regular Board
meetings shall be given not less than 14 days’ notice, so as to provide all
Directors with the opportunity to attend the meeting and put the matters in the
agenda of the regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are sent to Directors or Board
Committee members at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the documents and to prepare for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend the meeting,
they will be informed of the matters to be discussed and have the opportunity
to inform the chairman of their opinions before the meeting. The minutes of the
meetings are kept by the company secretary and copies distributed to all Directors

for reference and records.

The minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board and the
Board Committee and decisions made, including any concerns raised by the
Directors. The draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting
shall be sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
date of the Board meeting. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by the Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the four Board meetings were held and the
attendance of each Director at the meetings is set out in the table below:

Exges
AABRANEMBTESTEIANME &
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BB KM EESRHELESHNOE
eMBERERIATHEHENZRE -

HhEEehNESZESEH RELAHE
B BREERNEEEXHREEEL=
HRIBEXATEEREETZEEGNXE  UER
REFARKBEE XM RS HELER -
EESYEZZREERBEEALREEN &
ERESHEIBOFR LAKEEEH
AMIGEEREANERTE SHACHARA
WMERE BIADBETMAES NUHE2ZE
A8

EEeenhNESZECeRNESFTEE
EREeERAMNERARMMIEMAE (BRES
REOMEABIDFELEHAFANSHLE -
BREFEEZNEFZREEEENERC
BORAREFS SR ARRAERERE
KTEF UHBKER EFETEHNEH
AEFREEEEMN -

HREHEA BRTINEFEEE  RE=F
HESENLEHINNTRX

Attended/Eligible
Attendance of to attend Annual
Board meeting(s) general meeting

EXSSBHUERR CSHE BFERERE

Name of Directors EEHR BREFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Zhang Zhifeng RS & 4/4 1
Ye Yaming TR 4/4 1
Zhang Yude (re-designated from a SRR (R20214F 115198 /4 4/4 1
non-executive Director to an executive HMITEFEFERNTESE)
Director on November 19, 2021)
Zou Kang (appointed on November 19, 2021) BE (R2021F11H19HEZ(T) 1/4 0
Ma Zhixiong (resigned on November 19, 2021) B (R2021411H19HEFE) 3/4 1
Dong Xiaolin (retired on January 20, 2021) BN (R20214F1H20HR(F) 1/4 0
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, M.H., J.P. RIS - M.H. - J.P. 4/4 1
Yang Ying ES 4/4 1
Ding VYi T% 4/4 1
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Group's code of conduct to
regulate the securities transactions of the Directors and the relevant employees
of the Group who, because of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess
inside information in relation to the Group or the Company’s securities. Having
made specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended August
31, 2021. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the
Model Code by the relevant employees of the Group during the year ended
August 31, 2021.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves the right to decide on all material matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management systems, major transactions
(especially those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and business matters.
Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the expense of the Company and are encouraged to independently approach and
consult with the senior management of the Company.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated
to senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. The approval of the Board is required before any
significant transaction entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective

responsibility of the Directors, including:

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors;

o developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board and reporting to the
Board on matters;

o reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosing in
the corporate governance report; and

3 reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance with the Company’s
whistle-blowing policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules, and has set out the written terms of reference in
accordance with paragraph C3.3 of the CG Code. The main responsibilities of the
Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control system of the Group, and to supervise the audit
process and financial statements of the Group.

The Audit Committee consists of Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, M.H., J.P., Mr. Yang
Ying and Mr. Ding Yi and is chaired by Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, M.H., J.P. who
has the appropriate and extensive professional experience as required under the
Listing Rules.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and other terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards.

o to discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations before the audit commences;

o where more than one audit firm is engaged, ensure coordination between
them;
o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply

non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity
that is under common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally.

The Audit Committee should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or improvement is needed. The
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available for review on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings and the
attendance of the Audit Committee members at these meetings are set out as
below:
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Attendance of

meeting(s)
Name of Directors BEERZ BEHERBR
Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, M.H., J.P. (Chairperson) R MH. )P () 3/3
Yang Ying CES 3/3
Ding Vi T 3/3

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual results
and report for the year ended August 31, 2021 and the interim results and report
for the six months ended February 28, 2021, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, range of work and the appointment of external auditor. After reviewing
the effectiveness and independence of the external audit process, the Audit

Committee was satisfied with the relationship.

The Group’s audited annual results for the year ended August 31, 2021 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee on November 17, 2021.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in accordance with paragraph A.5.2 of the CG Code. The main
functions of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our
Board on candidates to fill vacancies of the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Zhang Zhifeng, Mr. Yang Ying and Mr.
Ding Yi, and is chaired by Mr. Zhang Zhifeng.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;
3 to assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
o to make recommendations to the Board on succession planning for Directors

(in particular the chairman and the chief executive) and the appointment or
reappointment of Directors.
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The Nomination Committee assesses the candidates or incumbents based on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and competence to invest time and
energy in performing their duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will then be submitted to the Board for decision.

The Company recognizes and accepts the benefits of having a diverse Board
to improve its performance and has adopted a board diversity policy aimed at
developing ways to achieve board diversity. The implementation of the policy
is supervised by the Nominating Committee. In designing the composition of
the Board, the diversity of the Board is taken into account among a number
of measurable objectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee will continue to monitor the
implementation of the board’s diversity policy and will regularly review the board’s
diversity policy to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available for
review on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
review the nomination process and the composition and diversity of the Board and
was satisfied with the current process and composition. The attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at this meeting is set out in the table below:
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EREARERE NN DS EETHIRE
ASBEAERE - REZEGNEREARBIE
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Attendance of

meeting(s)

Name of Directors EEHRE ERHEBR

Zhang Zhifeng (Chairman) REE (£/E) 171

Yang Ying T 11

Ding Vi T 1/1
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in accordance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, and has stipulated the written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the CG Code. The main responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee are to review, determine and recommend to our
Board on the policy and structure of the remuneration payable to our Directors
and senior management, and to make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Yang Ying, Mr. Ye Yaming and Mr.

Ding Vi, and is chaired by Mr. Yang Ying.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing

remuneration policy;

o to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. This should include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

o to consider the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

o to review and approve the compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;
o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with

the contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

o to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his

own remuneration;

o to assess performance of executive Directors;
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. to consider and approve the terms of the executive Directors’ service
contracts; and

o to consider and implement other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board or otherwise required by the Listing Rules from time to time.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available for
review on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review and discuss the company’s remuneration policy and structure, as well
as the remuneration package for the company’s executive Directors and senior
management and other related matters. The Remuneration Committee ensured
that no individual or any of his associates was involved in determining his own
remuneration. It also ensured that remuneration awards were based on the
performance of individuals and companies and were consistent with market
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practices and conditions, and with the Company’s goals and strategies. No BEgTEEBHZRRETEME
changes on the policy were recommended by the Remuneration Committee.
The attendance of each Remuneration Committee members at this meeting is set FTHEESESKERFEZSRNBRAEIR
out in the table below: T :
Attendance of
meeting(s)
Name of Directors EE®EZ BEHERBR
Yang Ying (Chairman) & (FE) 1”71
Ye Yaming it 3ef] 11
Ding Vi T 1/1
Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EEREREEEFHMH

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and senior

HZE2021F8A31BILFE - EFEGKERR

management of the Company for the year ended August 31, 2021 are set out RARRERERENE D0 MFIBEER
below: mon

Number of

individuals

Remuneration band B A% 1 AH

RMB1 million to RMB2 million ARBI1BETZEARK2EE T 3

RMBO to RMB1 million ARBOTEARB1IBEET 7
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements for the year ended August 31, 2021 in order to give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and the results and cash flows
of the Group.

The management has provided the necessary explanations and information to the
Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the Company’s

financial statements and submit them to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement by the auditor regarding their reporting duties on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 136 to 141 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes that it is the responsibility of the Board to maintain
appropriate risk management and internal control systems to protect shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets, and to review the effectiveness of these

systems on an annual basis.

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal audit
department are reviewing the internal control of the Company and conducting
comprehensive audits of all branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a

regular basis.

Under the Company’s risk management and internal control structure, the
management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining
risk management and internal control systems to ensure, amongst others, (i)
developing and establishing appropriate policies and control procedures to protect
the Group's assets from improper use or disposal; (i) complying with relevant
laws, rules and regulations; and (iii) keep reliable financial and accounting records
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements.
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TERERMSE

The main features of risk management and internal control structure of the
Company are as follows:

o the heads of major business units or departments manage risks by
identifying and mitigating risks in accordance with the internal standards
approved by the Board and the Audit Committee;

o the management ensures appropriate actions are taken on significant risks
affecting the Group’s businesses and operations; and

o the internal auditors provide independent assurance to the Board, the
Audit Committee and the management concerning the effectiveness of risk

management and internal control systems.

During the Reporting Period, each major business unit or department was
responsible for daily risk management activities, including identifying major risks
that may affect the Group's performance, assessing and evaluating the identified
risks according to their possible impacts and the possibility of occurrence, and
formulating and implementing measures, controls and response plans to manage
and mitigate such risks. The management continuously monitored and reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis and
reported to the Audit Committee regarding the status of the systems.

The Company’s internal audit function monitored the Company’s internal
governance and provided independent assurance on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control system.
The senior executives responsible for the internal audit function report directly
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit reports on the effectiveness of
control were submitted to the Audit Committee in accordance with the agreed
audit plan approved by the Board. All Directors were informed of the results of
the internal audit assignments. During the Reporting Period, the internal audit
function conducted an analysis and independent assessment of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
through, amongst others, examination of risk-related documentation prepared by
operation units and the management and conducting interviews with employees at
all levels. The senior executives of the internal audit function attended the Audit
Committee meeting to explain the results of the internal audit and responded to
the questions of the members of the Audit Committee.
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The Company has internal guidelines to ensure that inside information is equally
and timely disseminated to the public in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. The senior executives of the Group's investor’s relation, corporate
affairs and financial control functions are empowered to control and monitor
appropriate procedures to be followed for inside information disclosure. Access
to inside information is limited to the relevant senior executives at all times and
on a “need to know" basis. Relevant personnel and other professional parties
involved are reminded to maintain the confidentiality of the inside information
until it is publicly disclosed. Other procedures, such as pre-clearance on dealing in
Company's securities by Directors and designated members, notification of periodic
blackouts and restrictions on securities trading for Directors and employees,
and identification of project by code name have also been implemented by the
Company to prevent possible improper handling of inside information within the
Group.

The Company has adopted arrangements to facilitate employees and other
stakeholders to raise concerns about possible misconducts in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. The Audit Committee regularly reviewed
such arrangements and ensured that appropriate arrangements are in place to
investigate these matters fairly and independently and to take appropriate follow
up action.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company. The
annual review included works such as (i) review of reports submitted by
heads of operation units or departments and the management regarding the
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems; (ii) periodic
discussions with the management and senior executives regarding the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and the works of the
internal audit function. Such discussions include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions; (iii) evaluation on the
scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of the risks management
and internal control systems; (iv) review of the effectiveness of the internal audit
function to ensure coordination within the Group and between the Company’s
internal and external auditors and to ensure the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group; and (v)
making recommendations to the Board and the management on the scope and
quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and considered such systems to be
effective and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as the independent auditor
for the year ended August 31, 2021. For the year ended August 31, 2021, the
total fees paid/payable in respect of the audit service provided by the Group's

independent auditor are set out below:

= E AN £

ARBEEZRBERM KESTRMEET AR
2021 F8A3MH L FEMBLIZEEM - BHE
2021F8 A31H IEFE @ SASEE B AZEAD
REMNZERBEN,/ BIHBAEEH
RN

Amount
ok
RMB’000
AR®T T

Fee for audit services (including Hong Kong Standard on #ZEREEBR (BEREEEEFZIEERZE241058
Review Engagements 2410 review on interim results) EHPHES) 2,700
Total st 2,700

The Group also appointed another external auditor in respect of the statutory
audit services during the Reporting Period. For the year ended August 31, 2021,
the total fees paid/payable in respect of the audit service provided by the Group's
other external auditor are RMB149,000.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Lei Yingran is one of the joint company secretaries of the Company. She was
appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company in replacement of Mr.
Hung Manling with effect from May 17, 2021.

Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong, Willie is the other joint company secretary of our

Company.
The biographical details of Ms. Lei and Mr. Cheung are as follows:

Ms. Lei Yingran, joined the Group in 2015. Ms. Lei is currently a deputy director
of the office of the Board since December 2019. From March 2016 to November
2019, Ms. Lei served as the administrative secretary of the Listing Preparation
Group of Huali Investment (a consolidated entity of the Company) responsible
for the listing matters of the Company such as legal due diligence, verification
of prospectus and administrative archive keeping. From August 2015 to February
2016, Ms. Lei served as an English teacher in Huali Vocational College, a
consolidated affiliated entity of the Company. Ms. Lei obtained her bachelor’s
degree in English from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (FEZRINEINE K
) in July 2015.
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Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong, Willie, a Hong Kong resident, has been the senior
manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited since April 5,
2017 and is responsible for assisting listed companies in professional company
secretarial works. Mr. Cheung has more than 10 years of professional experience
in the company secretarial field and has extensive knowledge and experience in
dealing with corporate governance, regulatory and compliance affairs of listed
companies. Mr. Cheung has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2009, and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since October 2008. Mr. Cheung
received his bachelor’s degree in arts (with honours), majoring in accounting and
finance from University of Glamorgan, the United Kingdom, in June 1996.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Lei Yingran and Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong,
Willie have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders is essential
to strengthening investor relations and understanding the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
timely and non selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholder’s
communication policy which aims to establish a two-way relationship and
communication between the Company and the Shareholders, and maintain
the Company’s website (www.hualiuniversity.com), where provides up-to-date
information of the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information for public

access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

In order to safeguard the interests and rights of Shareholders, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at the general meetings including the
election of individual Directors.

All resolutions proposed at the general meeting will be voted pursuant to the
Listing Rules and the voting results will be posted on the website of the Company
and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each general meeting.
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CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, a general meeting shall be convened by
the Company on the written requisition of any two or more members deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened on
the written requisition of any one member which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within
21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to
the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters of the Company at
The Administration Building of Guangzhou Huali Science and Technology Town,
No. 11 Huali Road, Zengcheng District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC
(email address: ir@hltz.net).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company by special resolution passed on August 16, 2019
and effective on November 25, 2019. During the Reporting Period, there was no
change in the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Huali University Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the "Group” or “we") are pleased to publish our third Environmental,
Social, and Governance (“ESG") Report (the “Report”). By reporting the
ESG policies, measures, and performance of the Group, the Report allows
various stakeholders to learn more about our visions and commitments to
implementing our sustainable development philosophy and fulfilling our
corporate social responsibility.

Reporting Standards

The Report is prepared based on the Environmental, Social, and Governance
Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Report has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions in the ESG Reporting Guide and the content
adheres to the four reporting principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”,

“balance”, and “consistency”.

Materiality:

The Group communicated with stakeholders and conducted the materiality
assessment for identifying material ESG factors and the selection criteria
from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 (the “Year” or the “Reporting
Period”). We have disclosed relevant descriptions of material stakeholders
and the process and results of stakeholder engagement in the Report.

Quantitative:

The Group has disclosed the statistical standards, methodologies, calculation
tools as well as sources of conversion factors to all information in the
Report. Our key performance indicators are sourced from the statistics of its
relevant departments.

Balance:

The Report impartially describes the Group's performance during the
Reporting Period, to avoid selections, omissions, or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the report reader.

Consistency:

The statistical methods and standards for data disclosed in the Report,
unless otherwise specified, are consistent with previous years. If there are
any changes to the methodologies, calculations, or any other factors that
affect meaningful comparison, we will make a clear explanation.
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Scope of the Report
The Report describes the overall performance of the Group on sustainable
development relating to its core business, and the fulfillment of our

corporate social responsibility in the Reporting Period.
Unless otherwise stated, the scope of the Report included:
—  Guangzhou Huali College (“Huali College”)

—  Guangzhou Huali Science and Technology Vocational College (“Huali

Vocational College”)

—  Guangdong Province Huali Technician College (“Huali Technician
College”)

The scope above is all located in Guangdong Province. The scope of the

Report is consistent with the ESG Report last year.

Reporting Languages
The Report is published in English and Chinese. In case of any discrepancy,
the English version shall prevail.

Approval of the Report
The Report has been approved by the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Group on 19 November 2021.

Report Feedback

The feedback of stakeholders can help the group establish a more detailed
and sound sustainability strategy. Should you have any enquiries or
suggestions, please contact us via email address: hlu@hltz.net.
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

2.1

2.2

Board Statement

To strengthen our management on sustainable development, an
ESG governance structure has been established. The Board takes
full accountability for the Group’s ESG governance and sustainable
development. They are responsible for monitoring the Group's
materiality issues, performance, and evaluating the ESG-related risks
and opportunities regularly. Under the authorization of the Board, the
ESG committee considers and evaluates various stakeholders’ concerns
and interests by materiality assessment to determine the group’s
ESG management approach, strategy, priorities, and objectives. The
Group has set related ESG targets. In the future, we will conduct a
progress review under the goals and improve the work of sustainable
development.

ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established an ESG governance structure and carried
out the concept of sustainable development into daily work. The
structure consists of three parts: decision-making level, organisation
level ("ESG committee”) and execution level.

Decision-making level: Board of the Group

The Board is the highest decision-making level of the Group which
takes full responsibility for ESG strategy and reporting. The Board
monitors sustainable development performance and progress of
the Group. It reviews and approves the Group’s ESG management
policies, strategies, goals, and annual work, including assessment,
prioritization, and management of material ESG issues, risks, and
opportunities. It also regularly reviews the ESG performance of the
Group and its progress in achieving related objectives.
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Organisation level: ESG committee

The Group’s ESG committee is the second level of the governance
structure. The ESG committee is delegated by the Board and led by
Executive Director and senior management. Other members include
representatives from various departments. The ESG committee is
responsible for formulating ESG management policies, strategies,
goals, and annual work and promoting related implementation. They
also identify, evaluate, review, and manage major ESG issues, risks
and opportunities. All working status and related recommendations
will be reported to the Board of the Group regularly.

Execution level: Relevant departments of the

Group

The execution level is the third level of the governance structure,
which includes all relevant departments of the Group. This level is
responsible for organizing, promoting, and implementing various
ESG related tasks under the Group’s ESG management policies and
strategies. All tasks will be reported to the ESG committee regularly.
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2.3 Stakeholder Engagement

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The sustainable development of the Group is closely related to

stakeholders. We are committed to listening attentively to the views

and expectations of various stakeholders in the process of operating

our business. The valuable opinions are used as an important basis

for the Group’s improvement. The Group emphasizes communication

with stakeholders. We have established the following diversified

communication channels between the Group and stakeholders in

order to formulate and further strengthen sustainable development

policies and measures based on their concerns.

Major stakeholders

FTEFFEES

Expectations and demands

MEEFR
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Main methods for

communication and response

TEBEEROEESK

Investors/ shareholders

REE /R

Government/ industry associations

B/ 1TEmE

Regulators

EERE

— Investment return
—  Business growth

—  RAEE
—  EBHER

—  Compliant and reasonable
operation

— Business growth

—  Quality of teaching

— Information transparency

— ARARER
—  ERHEER
—  #HBYE

—  EEBEHE

—  Compliant and reasonable
operation

— Business growth

—  Employee benefits

— RAREEZR
— EBEE
— HEIGS

Meetings and interviews
(Research and analysis)
Annual general meetings
Interim and annual reports
F@EEX (HRRDT)
RERBFRE

MR FERE
Consultations

Lectures

School ratings

School visits
Organization of industry
activities

ha

R

BRE D

BB

BEITHEES
Compliance reports
Consultations

Audits and annual inspections
of private colleges and

universities
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Main methods for

Major stakeholders Expectations and demands communication and response
FEFNHERES RSB B SRR TEBEBEREBESR
Employees —  Quality of teaching —  Channels for employees
—  Career development to express their opinions
—  Compensation and benefit (questionnaires, suggestion
packages boxes, symposiums)
— Healthy and safe working —  Work performance appraisals
environment and interviews
—  Fair treatment —  Meetings and interviews
— Value demonstration (Teacher’s forum)

—  Seminars/ workshops/ lectures
—  Staff communication meetings
—  Staff Intranet

HBE —  HBE= — BIREERNERE GAERM
— BELEZER 5 BRAE B#HE
— FEENTE — IERBAREEHK
— RERZZ2HIIERE —  BEEHX (HEHE)
— AT —  HEE T AR
—  (BERR — EBIBEAKRE
— BINEE
Students/ parents —  Quality of teaching —  Satisfaction survey
—  Corporate governance —  Supervision feedback
—  Sound operation —  Education expo
—  Healthy and safe campus —  Online platforms
—  Protection of student —  Telephone
information —  Mailbox
BE RE —  HEBEES — mEEMERE
— BEER — EEREHE
— ReErE — HEREEg
— REZE2RE — WE¥A
—  BHEEERE — B
— B
Former students —  School ranking —  Former student activities held
—  Quality of teaching by the school
—  Teaching reform —  Former student reunions

—  School website
—  Media reports

. — BRI —  ERENNELED
— HEPEE — EBEERE
—  HEBEYE — BRI
—  HEBRHER
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Major stakeholders

TEFFEEES
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Expectations and demands

HMEEFR

Main methods for

communication and response

TEBEEROESRK

Business partners

KRB

Suppliers

HEm

Community/ non-governmental
organizations

BT E RS

Public

Teaching quality and
effectiveness
Teaching reform
Business growth

BEHEMER
HREHE
ESvE £

Fair and just procurement
Anti-corruption

Promoting community
development
Participating in public welfare
and charity
Environmental protection
B R R
BENRES

RIGRE

Quality of teaching
Teacher qualifications
Investment return
Information transparency
HELE

HENE

R B

ERBEAE

Exchange activities and visits
Meetings (Industry-University-
Research seminar)

Education expo

Lectures

Strategic cooperation projects
ZmIEEFERD

ez (E2WmIe)
HERES

B

KA (EIRA

Supplier management
procedures

Field inspections
HEREIRIEF

BT 5

Volunteers and community
activities

Seminars/ lectures/ workshops
Donations

ET RitR)ES
Mg, B TIES
el

School websites
School activities
Education expo
Media reports
SR AL
BREWMHER
HERES
HEEREE

LT RLEERAFRA A 95
2021 FEHE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g lkERawmE

96

2.4 Materiality Assessment

The Group has been committed to improving corporate management,
business strategies, and implementation of the Group’s sustainable
development with the consideration of the expectations and opinions

of our major internal and external stakeholders.

We identified material ESG issues by taking reference with the
guidelines of the Stock Exchange and the materiality map of the
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB), together with the
consideration of the expectations and opinions of our major internal
and external stakeholders.

We carried out online questionnaires to collect feedback from key
stakeholders such as employees, students and investors for analysis of
materiality assessment, in order to prioritize the material ESG issues
in the Reporting Period. A total of 922 valid responses from various

stakeholders were collected in this online questionnaire survey.

The online questionnaire has a total of 25 material ESG issues,
which are divided into 5 categories: Excellent Quality Education,
Protection and Development of Employees, Compliant and Responsible
Governance, Building a Green Campus Together and Community
Contribution. Various stakeholders will rate each material issue.
The Group took the average scores of all responses to sort out
and prioritize material ESG issues to ensure that the results of the
evaluation are accurate and objective.

As result, the Group has prioritized 25 material ESG issues with 5
issues of high materiality, 14 issues of moderate materiality and 6
issues of general materiality. The Board has confirmed and approved
the materiality result.

Huali University Group Limited
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Materiality to the stakeholders
HAREESNEEMY
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ESG Materiality Matrix

ESGREEEMER
General Moderate materiality High materiality
materiality FEEE BEEE
—REE

® Excellent Quality Education

SHMEEHE

® Protection and Development of
Employees
EIRENHE

© Building a Green Campus Together

HEeeRE

Compliant and Responsible
Governance
ARBEER

©® Community Contribution
HEER

Materiality to the Group
HEKENEEN

ESG issues of high materiality

Responding sections in ESG report

= E B EESGH & ESGREMESHE

1. Health and safety of students Excellent Quality Education
BLERERZR EHEEHE

2. Health and safety of employees Excellent Quality Education
EIRERZR SWEREHE

3 Teacher qualifications and professional conduct  Excellent Quality Education
of employees
BMEERETEERST EHEEHE

4. Compliance operations Compliant and Responsible Governance
AREY EREEER

5. Student employment rate Excellent Quality Education
BERER SHEEHRE

ESG issues of moderate materiality

Responding sections in ESG report

hEEEESGHEE ESGREMESHE

6. Anti-corruption Compliant and Responsible Governance
REB EHREEER

7. Green campus and office Building a Green Campus Together
RERERBRIE HEHRERE

8. Employment rights and welfare protections Protection and Development of Employees

BEERENERE

5 TIREME R
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RIE - {t“"ZQ k\A#ﬁL:
ESG issues of moderate materiality Responding sections in ESG report
T EEEESGHEE ESGHREHEEHH
9. Diversity of employees and equal Protection and Development of Employees
opportunities
BEISHEMRTERS 8 TIREME R
10. Air pollutant emissions and management Building a Green Campus Together
ERISRMIR R EE HFFERE
11. Teaching quality control Protection and Development of Employees
HEEBE 8 TREME R
12. Protection on information and privacy Compliant and Responsible Governance
FEERBARE EHREEER
13. Training and development of employees Protection and Development of Employees
ETRINBR BTREMERE
14. Water management Building a Green Campus Together
FAKER KR e RE
15. Use of materials Building a Green Campus Together
SERMHE iz e RE
16. Greenhouse gas emissions and management Building a Green Campus Together
BERBIERRER HFFERE
17. Brand promotion management Building a Green Campus Together
R EEE HiEhr e RE
18. Environmental education Building a Green Campus Together
BIRHE HiEreRE
19. Waste management Building a Green Campus Together
BERYER HiEg eRE
ESG issues of general materiality Responding sections in ESG report
— R E EESGHE ESGREMHEEH
20. Protection of intellectual property right Compliant and Responsible Governance
REANBERE AREMEER
21. Tackling climate change Building a Green Campus Together
EHREE HEHERE
22. Supply chain management Compliant and Responsible Governance
HrEEEE EREMEER
23. Compliant handling and responding mechanism  Compliant and Responsible Governance
EREE K B EE EREMEER
24. Energy management Building a Green Campus Together
BEREE KR e RE
25. Community investment and involvement Community Contribution
HERERSHR HEREE
In response to the concerns of stakeholders, the Report elaborates HEMEAEBANEL  A®RE
the policies, measures and performance of the Group related to ESG B E MR AAEBEEE EESG
material issues during the Reporting Period. Moreover, the Group will SRR MR R ED o
also review the policy and make suitable adjustments in the future to AN - S TR R S S S
meet the expectations of stakeholders. REEERESHE LS
AT HE -
08 Huali University Group Limited
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2.5 Risk Management

In order to improve the Group's ESG governance structure and
strategy and risk prevention capabilities, we have already implemented
a risk management system ( (EBREEHIE) ). The Board,
Compliance and Risk Management Department, audit committee,
and all departments are responsible for identifying, evaluating, and
managing the risks of the Group. Based on the characteristics of our
industry, we combine the latest laws, regulations, and industry trends,
together with the Group’s own situation and strategic objectives to

identify ESG risks and respective levels.

Based on the results, we have identified and assessed corresponding
ESG and climate change risks, such as business ethics, corruption,
energy resources, health and safety, which may affect the Group’s
business strategy and stakeholders.

The Group manages the above risks comprehensively with five
procedures: risk management concept establishment and risk
acceptance, target setting, risk identification, risk analysis and risk
response.

According to the risk response, the Group formulates risk
management solutions for various risks in the monthly risk assessment
meeting. The solution should generally include the specific objectives,
the required organizational leadership, the management and business
processes involved, the required resources, the specific response
measures taken before, during and after the risk event, and a
risk management tool. After the meeting, a “Risk assessment and
(RBFHEMEY ) documentation will be drafted for
approval by the audit committee and the Board.

response”
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EXCELLENT QUALITY EDUCATION

The Group is a pioneer in the private education industry in China and

operates top-ranked private higher education institutions and private

vocational educations institutions in South China.

3.1

3.2

Education Concept

The Group’s teaching management philosophy is, based on offering
high-quality applied science-focused higher education, guided by
social responsibility and human development, to cultivate high-quality
talent with high-moral character, knowledge and practical skills,
and pragmatic innovative characteristics. We are also committed to
continuously innovating and enhancing our school management and
social service capabilities, aiming to create value for the education
services provided by our “Huali” schools.

The Group offers private higher education and private vocational
education in a wide range of fields in applied sciences with an aim
to prepare our students with the necessary knowledge base, skill sets
and accreditations to secure jobs and pursue careers in particular
professions, trades and industries.

We have designed our curricula with a distinct emphasis on practical,
job-oriented conduct for a variety of majors that are in demand and
potential employers in the Pearl Delta. We believe our market-focused
major offerings, practical job-oriented curricula and practical training
help our students to become more marketable to potential employers.

Teaching Quality Management

The Group believes high-quality teaching and a good school
reputation are the key to cultivating young talents and ensuring the
continuous development of the school. Our ideology of ensuring
teaching quality is to “promote teaching and learning by evaluation,
learn from each other, and improve teaching quality”, the teaching
staff is required to evaluate their teaching quality, to promote
teaching reform and improve their teaching standards.

The Group continues to improve the teaching management team
and improve the school teaching supervision system. The teaching
quality management is overseen by the teaching supervision office
and academic affairs office of the university, which focuses on
strengthening the interactive communication among schools, teachers,
and students.

Huali University Group Limited
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Teaching standards and systems such as Teaching Work Standards
( (2T {E#£ &) ), Standards for Teaching Management ( (ZEE
TR T{E#R4&5) ), Code of Professional Ethics for Teachers ( (ZREME; %
BB ) ), Treatment Methods for Teaching Accidents ( (ZHEFE
REREHE) ), and Teaching Quality Monitoring and Management
Measures ( (HEBESEIEEEIRINE) ) are implemented to manage
teaching methods and ensure the quality of teaching.

Student Awards and Financial Aids

The colleges under the Group provide national scholarships (B2 #2
E4), national inspirational scholarships (IR E)E 22 %), national
bursaries (BB %), tuition-free subsidies (L2 E##BNE), temporary
hardship subsidies (E&IF R ZE#B)), compulsory military service tuition
compensations (lRFEF KRB BHE), and national student loan
compensation (B RBIEE A (E) from government departments,
etc. The Group directly provides scholarships, special subsidies for
freshmen, tuition waiver subsidies, bursaries, work-study subsidies, etc.
All scholarships or aids are used to reward or subsidize Huali students
to complete their studies and become talents in society. In the
academic year of 2020-2021, about 25,000 Huali students received
scholarships or aids.

Students’ Career Development

We have structured our curricula to combine theoretical study
with practical training as we believe practical training can enhance
our students’ ability to apply knowledge and skills to real-life
situations and increase their employment rate. The schools have
established a career development team led by the headmaster and
the Board, which is responsible for formulating career development
policies and building connections with other companies. Up to the
Reporting Period, we have connected more than 1,000 companies
to offer professional training to students. With the adoption of the
apprenticeship approach, the competitiveness of students in the job
market is likely to be enhanced.

The school also encourages graduates to participate in career
activities, such as College Student Village Officials (" KE4HE "),
Three Branches and One Support (“=3%—%£"), and College Student
Volunteer Service Western Program (“ AE A EFERRAFAEEETE]"). The
career development activities have received positive feedback from our
students.

Under the leadership of the Ministry of Education, the Group actively
promotes different online career platforms to our graduates, such as
24365 Campus Recruitment (“24365# ERE2)EE)”) and Guangdong
Universities Graduates Career and Entrepreneurship (“EHR AZ £ g%
£J2") online platforms and applications. Moreover, by offering start-
up funding, we encourage students to establish their own businesses,
so that they can have an opportunity to pursue their dreams, on the
other hand, provide more job opportunities for our graduates.
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Employees and students registering vaccination

3.5 Healthy and Safe Campus

We care about the health and safety of our staff and students,
especially under the current situation of the pandemic. The Group
strictly complied with the laws and regulations relating to health and
safety protection of schools, teachers and students, such as the Law
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the PRC ( {#
EARLMBBEREA%L) ), the Regulation on Sanitary Work of
Schools ( (B ET 4 THEMEHI) ), the Fire Prevention Law of the PRC
((hEE ARFEFBEERE) ) and the Food Safety Law of the PRC
((PEAREMBERLZ2%) ). We have also formulated internal
policies and regulations to maintain a healthy and safe campus and
organized health and safety education activities for our students and
employees. In the Reporting Period, the Group had not violated any
law or regulation relating to health and safety, and there were also
no work-related fatalities and lost days due to work injury.

Prevention and Control of COVID-19

In accordance with the Law on Prevention and Control of
Communicable Diseases of the PRC ( (/& AR KLMBEELRELE
7%) ), the Group continues to implement prevention and control work
plans to cope with the pandemic and to protect our employees and
students, such as Work Plan for the Prevention and Control of the
Pandemic of the Commencement of School in Spring 2021 ( {2021
FEEREZBHITEIIESZER) ), Emergency Plan for Prevention
and Control of COVID-19 Infection ( (A BB ELH A A
Pl fE=F82) ), Work Plan for Nucleic Acid Amplification Test
Implementation ( (ZBEBAEHEITESZ) ), and Work Plan for
COVID-19 Vaccination ( CHIEZEZEEIIERE) ).

To strengthen the effectiveness of pandemic prevention and control,

our employees and students which are eligible for vaccination actively
participated in the vaccination programme.

BEIMBEREHEREER
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Measuring body temperature before entering campus

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To ensure safe operation from the pandemic after the commencement
of classes, our schools organized pandemic prevention and control
training to improve emergency systems and measures. Morning and
afternoon inspections were arranged to monitor the health conditions
of our employees and students, to prevent the spread of virus and
disease. Promotion and education were also in place throughout the
Year to raise the awareness of employees and students.

AR E BB 2 R

Fire Safety

To ensure fire safety on campus, in September 2020, we have invited
Zengcheng District Fire Security Team to host fire safety education
activities such as fire drills and safety training. The activity was held
successfully and strengthened the knowledge and awareness of our
employees and students.
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Social distancing measures in the canteen
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Safety training hosted by Zengcheng District Fire Security Team
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Food Safety

We have a comprehensive system to maintain the hygiene and safety
of the food provided to our employees and students. Our catering
service provider was certified by the government and complied with
relevant laws and regulations. We have also conducted internal
inspections to monitor the canteen environment and the hygiene
conditions of tableware and equipment.
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Physical Health and Mental Wellbeing

We care about the physical health and the mental well-being of
our students. In October 2020, the Disease Control and Prevention
Center of Guangdong Province has provided an education seminar
on COVID-19, AIDS and tuberculosis, so to enhance students’
knowledge of disease and related protective measures. In terms of
mental wellbeing, in December 2020, our school’s Mental Health
and Development Association organized peer counseling training (“ A
ELEFHE ) to teach students to develop techniques of peer
consultation, other seminars on personal growth were also held to

enhance self-understanding and personal development of students.
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3.6

Education seminar on AIDS and tuberculosis
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Laboratory Safety

In order to maintain the safety of teachers and students in various
laboratories, we have implemented laboratory safety management
protocol ( (EBRELZEEIEHE) ) to enhance their safety awareness.
We have established and implemented a laboratory access system, and
only those who pass the laboratory safety education test organized by
the relevant department or the department can enter the laboratory
to study and work.

Feedback Collection on Teaching Quality

The Group believes that education quality is the foundation for the
trust and support of our students, parents and investors. We have
actively established various communication platforms for students
to express their opinions towards the teaching arrangements, such
as WeChat groups, the mailbox of the Chairman of Board and
the petitioning office so that the management team can react and
respond to students’ needs effectively and efficiently. Face-to-face
student forums were hosted in the middle and at the end of each
semester to encourage direct communications between students and
teachers and review the performance of the past semester.

Huali University Group Limited
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Besides expressing concern in public channels, students can also
submit file complaints to school under the Administrative Measures
for Student Complaints ( (Z2AEEFEELHE) ). The complaints
will then be transferred to the Committee for Student Complaints’
Handling (B4 FEEZ EE), members include school leaders,
teachers and student representatives. The diversity of the committee
members protects the rights of students and ensures fair investigation
and treatment of the complaint. After the investigation, if the
complaint is found to be valid, disciplinary actions will be taken
against the respondent. During the Reporting Period, we received
three complaints about educational services, all of the complaints have
been dealt with properly.

PROTECTION AND DEVELOPMENT OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group recognizes every employee is the foundation to our business

and sustainable development. We protect their rights and interests and care

about their well-being. Moreover, we provide comprehensive continuous

training to support our employees’ professional development.

4.1

Protection of Employment Rights

It is our duty to provide an equal working environment for our
employees and protect their rights at the same time. We have
formulated the School Recruitment Process ( (FEiHE TR
f2) ), the Regulations on Management of New Employees ( (T A
BETEEME) ), Employees’ Manual ( (HBTFM) ) and other
relevant management rules to standardize the recruitment process of
employees and provide employment guidelines for them.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with the
relevant laws and regulations including the Labour Law of the PRC
((PEARKLMELEE) ), the Labour Law of the PRC ( (F
AREFMELEHEREL) ) and the Implementation Regulations for
the Labour Contract Law of the PRC ( (P EAREMEIL B4 FE
EHefEB) ). We had not violated any law or regulation relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, benefit packages, equal opportunity, diversity and
anti-discrimination.
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The Group strictly prohibits any discrimination based on gender,
ethnicity, race, religious belief, nationality, age, and other factors in
recruitment, remuneration, training, promotion and dismissal, and
respects multicultural and religious beliefs. Potential talents were
recruited through the internet, job fair and universities, and will be
assessed based on their educational background, qualifications and
relevant work experiences. In the Reporting Period, we have a total of
2,157 employees. The statistics on the Group’s employment data are

as follows:

Employees distribution by gender
BMRESNET DM

67
(31

1,055
(49%)

1,102
(51%)

mMale 2 Female &

We strictly comply with the Law of the PRC on the Protection of
Minors ( {FFZEARKEXMBEIARKF ARFEZE) ) and the Provisions on
the Prohibition Against the Use of Child Labour ( (ZEILFEAZET
$87E) ). The personal information of the applicant will be verified
during the recruitment process to ensure no child labour will be
employed. The employment will promptly be terminated according
to the law if the employee is revealed to provide false information.
During the Reporting Period, there was no child labour nor forced
labour in the Group.

Based on the laws and regulations including the Education Law of
the PRC ( {(FREAREFMBEHE %) ), the Higher Education Law of
the PRC ( (REARKEFMBESEHE L) ) and the Law for Promoting
Private Education of the PRC ( (FEARZEMERMHEREE) ),
a Performance Appraisal Scheme ( {(EEHZ% T E) ) has been
developed for different levels and positions of employees to enhance
their work initiative and efficiency. Teachers are being assessed by
teaching supervisors using appraisal indicators such as professional
ethics and morality, class preparation, teaching quality and class
effectiveness. The assessment results are aligned with the adjustment
of salary and bonus, which motivates teachers to strive for their best
to maintain a high level of teaching quality.

Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report

AEBEBRZETBE - FHH - 15
A-EA MESAFEBEAMK
Al Rk Z#%ED-H
2 OFREAZNESG BEZ
TLXAL R RSP - AEBE BB
BHM  HEeNsRBREEE
WAL  UREBEEHEES -
BERREEIIELRETIMN -
REEHHEA - KMHEHF2157
HET - AEBEBRELIESF I
™~

Employees distribution by age
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Employees distribution by employment type
REREREINETI LM

24 (1%)
69 3%) 185 (9%)

1,879

(87%)
Short-term contract/part-time employees Full-time middle management
EHAET REBET 2RI REEE
Full-time junior employees m Full-time senior management
ERIRET EREREEE

4.2 Providing Care to Employees 42 BEEEBET

The Group considers our employees as the important assets of the
company, we also understand that compensation and benefits serve
as a motivation for employees to strive for improvement. Therefore,
we offer competitive compensation and welfare packages to our
employees. Apart from basic salary and the national statutory five
insurances and one fund, we also provide variable salary, living
allowance, housing allowance and other allowances, and bonuses in
recognition of their outstanding performance.

In addition to the statutory holidays and summer and winter breaks,
our employees are entitled to marriage leave, sick leave, and funeral
leave. Female employees are also entitled to maternity leave and
breastfeeding leave according to regulations.

Since the Group provides educational services to students, we also
care about the educational development of the children of our
employees. Educational subsidies are provided to the children and
grandchildren of our employees who study at our schools.

To show care and support to our employees, in the Reporting Period,
we have distributed welfare packs during the Chinese New Year
and Dragon Boat Festival, with items such as Chinese sausage, dried
vegetables and lychee. During the commencement of the spring
semester, we also distributed insulation mugs and coasters for female
employees for celebrating Women's Day. It is hoped that the activities
can enhance their sense of belonging and cohesion.

AEBKETR/RARANEZE
EGBRMH0ERFHMENZET
BHRBEE N - Bt - BB
BETREAEAEBRF INHHIME
MEFE-BTEETLEMBEZRE
EMAR -2 BHMBREMET
HITE  LFRE EEHAEMN
LEMPREMNES REETH
BHRR -

BRTOEEBRE B2/ HM
METITERER BRME
BR-ZMETEBUERRERER
AT FLAR

BRAAEERBEERMHER
f%*ﬁﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ/béii%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬂ%

B -BZMARERMEBREBEBD
El%ﬁﬂ% EIRMHA M -

AREHBEINBEMZHE  ®
HHIR A - RMIERE MR T
HEERTRIE BEEE

REMHRE BT ZHHEH
M oRMAEAZEETIERTR
BRI ER - BERELE - FE
TEBNBE LR H BB R[N o

Y REEHAGRA A 107
2021 FEHE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g lkEgRawms

Welfare Pack for Women’s Day Celebration Distribution of lychee during Dragon Boat Festival
I % 0 48 7 8 Ui F B 8 R X
4.3 Continuous Education for Employees 43 ETRKEHE
Based on our three-level study training system, which comprised of BEEMO=HZ2EHFIER(R
“national training”, “provincial training” and “school training”, a FIERTFIN - TEHRTI] R
series of training have been provided to our employees. [EREI]) - HMBERE TRHE

—RFE -

School
training
SR

National

training
B %3

Provincial
training
BREI

108 Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In the Reporting Period, the Group has arranged various types of
training for our teachers and staff, which include:

Main type of training
FTEHEIFR

R g hEAmSE

RBREHEA AEERHBT
ZHT EBEY - B

Training content
EIRE

Pre-job training for new teachers

31 20ET = AT

Summer training for new teachers

3 am 2 8%

Enterprise new technology learning

SEFFEMEE
Counsellor training, party-building training
HESEI - BRI

Professional technical education

EXRWHE

Academic exchange

21§ XM
Visiting scholar

HEEE

Higher Education ( {@ZE# B 2) ), Higher Education
Psychology ( {m&# A MIEE) ), University Teachers'
Professional Ethics Cultivation ( (ERZRETREERE
&%) ), Introduction to Higher Education Laws and
Regulations ( (EEFHEERBHR) )

(BEHEL) (RFHELES) (ARHAMBEEE
EIEE) (SEBEERBR)

Study of teacher ethics and style, school rules and
regulations, ways for promotion, etc.

SEMEME  RERE BEAFTAE

Relevant professional new technology and process
learning

HEZXEFRMARIZES

Training of counsellors, party members, etc.
BIHES  EES

Provincial Professional Continuing Education Network
Public Courses ( (BB XEEHER/AATR) ),
professional courses, elective courses Iearning
HEXER WABR BER BERBE
Knowledge exchange within the teaching unit, with
other organization

22 5 P B LA B L A 4B 48 ) N B ST R
Professional learning

X8

COMPLIANT AND RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE 5.

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations. We are committed to
clean and compliant operations, and striving to protect campus’ health and
safety, information and privacy security, and intellectual property rights.
Various measures implemented by the Group have established a good

foundation for ensuring the steady development and operation of our

business.

5.1 Compliant Management and Operation
As a responsible educational institution, the Group always operates its
business based on the principles of honesty, ethics and integrity, and

persists in the principles of sustainable development, working with

o
i

MH

Bt

HH

= 3O
B /A

AEEBBETERER - RARIRN
BREGHES  SHIREREREMNE

2 GEEORBLZEARMBERE - K
SEERNZEEEARRERB SR
BRMEFEET RIFER -

51 SREBNEE
frh—REBAMABHE &
EEMKAERE  BRABE
MRBEEEY  YRHTRE

stakeholders and business partners to create value for society. We FRIFA - B A8 B 07 A

uphold compliance governance as our core values.
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For the enhancement to the effectiveness of compliance management,
improvement of self-discipline ability and promotion of company
operations and sustainable development, we have established the
Compliance Management System ( (&R EIEHIE) ). It is applicable
for the prevention, handling and management of compliance risks
within the scope of the company and the organization. The Board has
overall responsibility for the compliance operation of the Group and
supervises the implementation of our compliance policies. We have
clearly defined the duty of every member in the Group on compliance
operation, from the Board, senior management, compliance person
in charge to each employee, to ensure compliance operation of the
Group.

We strictly implement all relevant requirements of laws and
regulations and operate in accordance with the relevant standards.
During the Reporting Period, we had not violated any relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in core
business and material tasks.

We understand the importance of intellectual property rights. Abiding
by the relevant laws and regulations, such as the Patent Law of
the PRC ( (hEARHKEFMBEEFNE)Y ) and the Detailed Rules for the
Implementation of the Patent Law of the PRC ( (FPZE A RLMEE
FEE MEHE) ), we encourage our teachers and students to obtain
patents and copyrights in order to protect their intellectual property
rights. During the Reporting Period, we have maintained 304 existing
registered patents and obtained 35 new patents.

To strengthen external publicity and communication, the Group will
publish information regularly via a different platform. We strictly
abide by the laws and regulations including the Law for Promoting
Private Education of the PRC ( (HZEARKEMERFHE 2t
%) ) and the Advertising Law of the PRC ( (P #EARLMEE
4)%) ). The requirement to state the source, author, responsible
editor, and other elements in our published material guaranteed the
information’s truthfulness, reliability, and accuracy. Our Regulations
on Publishing Information through Online Media (QQ, WeChat and
Weibo) ( (#H#% 8 (QQ » s ~ ) EREMIRE) ) regulate
school’s publication of information on the internet to prevent the
dissemination of inappropriate and false information and strengthen
the information release management. No laws or regulations relating
to advertisements and information on the educational services are

violated in the Reporting Year.
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5.2 Zero Tolerance to Corruption

We strictly adhere to the laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption, such as the Company Law of the PRC ( (FZEARK
MBEAFE)Y ), the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC (
FEARKMERTEEFHEFE) ) and the Interim Provisions on
Prohibiting Commercial Bribery ( BIRZE (FR ¥ FERITREVE 1T
FE) ). The formulation of Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery Control
Procedure ((REJ5 « REGEEIZEHITRT) )

corporate compliance control, facilitate prevention and monitoring of

effectively enhances

any corruption, bribery or any other related malpractice. This Control
Procedure strengthens our supervision over key procedures and staff.
It applies to all our employees and the relevant stakeholders of
the Group, such as customers, suppliers, and service providers. Our
compliance and risk control department is responsible for monitoring
the prevention of corruption or related malpractice of the Group.

The requirement to sign an Anti-Bribery/Anti-Corruption Undertaking
((RHER/RIBBAEFE)

and equipment procurement, outsourcing processing, facilities and

) by all employees engaged in materials

engineering, sales, equipment maintenance and quality supervision
proves the Group’s commitment to the prevention of commercial
bribery. Besides our employees, all our customers, suppliers, service
providers and contractors are also required to sign an Anti-Bribery/
Anti-Corruption Undertaking for Suppliers ( <& % 2 B B% /I J& B
£) ) to ensure that all relevant stakeholders doing business with us
are law-abiding and of high integrity.

During the Reporting Period, our organized training aims to
prevent professional embezzlement and commercial bribery for the
management of the relevant departments. In May 2021, the Group
has provided training to the management to enhance their knowledge
on general principles of ethics, regulations on anti-corruption and
anti-bribery management, penalties, measures for violation of ethical
requirements, and supervision on anti-corruption and anti-bribery. This
training can strengthen the relevant management on the prevention,
implementation and oversight of anti-corruption and anti-bribery
measures in the Group. Besides, the Directors of the Board has also

attended online anti-corruption training during the Reporting Period.
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5.3

e kERRE

Our Whistleblowing Management System ( {(ZEREIRH|E) ) guides
and encourages employees and business partners to report and
expose illegal acts such as corruption and bribery. To protect the
whistle-blowers, we keep the identity and written information of
the whistle-blowers strictly confidential. Any department or person
can inform the Group through various channels including letters,
telephone and email about illegal acts, such as corruption, bribery,
and related malpractice within school’s operation, enrolment and
recruitment activities. The designated personnel assigned by the
Director of the Group will conduct an independent investigation.
Once the violation of laws and regulations are validated, we will
conduct sanctions with relevant regulations or transfer them to judicial
authorities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no cases involving
corruption litigation, which fully reflected the effectiveness of our
anti-corruption work.

Privacy and Cyber Security

The Group emphasizes greatly in protecting the privacy of students
and strictly abides by the Law of the PRC on Guarding State Secrets
((PEARLMBREZE) )

in the PRC. We have established the relevant regulations and systems,

and other relevant laws and regulations

such as Regulations on Student Information Security Management
((BEERBLZEEEME) ), File Keeping System ( (EEEREFIE) )
((ERREZHIE) ), to safeguard the
information of students. The important information of students is kept

and File Confidentiality System

in high confidentiality to prevent leakage. Any transfer or access is
forbidden without the permission of relevant department heads.

The Group strictly abides by the Regulations on Security Protection of
((hzEARAFBE S

%451) ), the Interim Provisions on the Administration

Computer Information Systems of the PRC
BERELE LR IRES
of Computer Information Network with International Connections of
the PRC ( (P ZE ARAMBE G E#(E S HEBERBE BIHRED))
and other relevant laws and we have established Informatlon System
Management Regulation ( {{E 2 XM EEHIE) ) and Regulations on
Website Management ( (AU EIEZRE) ) to ensure information and

network security.
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For security enhancement, the employees in relevant positions
have to pass the qualification vetting, background check and sign
the confidential agreements. Regular inspection of information
systems and networks will be conducted to ensure the Group is
protected from viruses, hackers, and malicious codes. In addition, our
students are required to sign the Prevention of Information Leakage
Statement( P ILE B ES %2 ) ). For information and network
security, we have set up the Password Management System ( (&%
EREIE) )

sensitive information.

to list out the security requirements and encrypt every

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not violated any laws or
regulations relating to privacy matters.

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
The Group has formulated the Supplier Evaluation Standard ( {{tf&
EATERLE) ) (ftrEm e e

B8 %) ) to enhance corporate responsibility throughout our supply

and the Supplier Management System (

chain. The documents lay out the selection process of suppliers and
procurement responsibilities of different departments. Apart from
product quality, delivery time and service quality, we evaluate if the
suppliers consider the environmental and social criteria including the
prohibition on the recruitment of child and forced labour, eliminating
discrimination to employees, providing a safe working environment,
considering if the products and services provided are beneficial
to environmental protection and fulfilling the Group’s internal
environmental requirement while minimizing the negative impact to
natural environment, and strictly obeying the law. Our procurement

personnel will conduct on-site investigations if necessary.

The Administrative Measures for the Supervision of Suppliers ( {ft
FERESE BI2YPE) ) outlines the Supplier Regular Evaluation Report

(CHERETEBFE RS ) ) and Supplier Assessment Form ( (/&
EEZR) (HEEEZ

%) ) grades suppliers to four different levels and evaluation reports

). The annual Supplier Assessment Form (

are carried out monthly to evaluate our long-term suppliers. After
the assessment, we inform the suppliers of their results and suggest
improvement if necessary. For suppliers who continuously fail the
comprehensive assessment, we will terminate the cooperation with
them after reporting and obtaining management approval to ensure
the quality of our suppliers.
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During the Reporting Period, we have 188 suppliers for providing RBEHEA - RPIB 188K #
products and services. Products include furniture, teaching equipment, EERERHERTIRS ERERE
consumables, office supplies while services include network services, XE  HEBEZH BEM BOA
repair and maintenance services, etc. The table below shows our mc MREBIERERY - #(E
suppliers respectively by geographical location: RERBE - TRDAIZMIEN

EIREER

b B AR
Guangdong 169
BER
Beijing 2
bR
Chengdu 2
B#ED
Hunan 2
L]
Jiangxi 2
AN
Wuhan 2
HE
Zhejiang 2
AT
Guangxi 1
i)
Jiangsu 1
TL#R
Nanjing 1
2P
Shandong 1
3R
Shanghai 1
8
Xiamen 1
=P
Zhengzhou 1
ERN
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BUILDING A GREEN CAMPUS TOGETHER

The Group’s main campus is located in Huali College, Huali Vocational
College, Huali Technician College. Although our business does not have
a very high impact on the environment and natural resources, the Group
is committed to building a green campus as a responsible educational
institution. The main impacts are from electricity consumption, domestic
water usage, use of materials from school and office, waste from schools,
offices and canteens, and use of the group vehicles. The Group has
implemented a series of measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
water pollution, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes. We strictly abide by the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC ( (HFZEARKLMEIREREE) ), the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC ( (I ZEARKFEK)FRFIEE) ), the Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC ( {HZE A RLFMEEHLELIRE) ), and the
relevant laws and regulations on environmental protection.

The Group took practical actions to integrate green elements to campus,
employees and students. We hope to extend the concept of sustainable
development to daily life to attain the sustainable target.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not (i) violate any laws and
regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste; (ii)
have any major accidents affecting the environment and natural resources;
or (iii) receive any environmental penalties and litigation notices.

6.1 Energy Conservation

The Group implements energy conservation and focused on energy
conservation in daily office and campus operations. The employees
and students are advised to use high-efficiency energy-saving lamps
and energy-saving heaters in dormitories. All lightings, computers,
air conditioners and other electrical appliances should be turned off
once they are not in use. In our offices, there are different divisions
where each has an independently controllable lighting system to allow
flexible and efficient usage of the lightings.

We strictly follow the “ Regulations on the Use of Air Conditioning in
Office”( (M AE=FEAEIRME) ). Energy efficient air conditioners
can be turned on when the temperature is on or above 29 degrees
Celsius. The temperature of the air conditioner should not be adjusted
to lower than 26 degrees Celsius.
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6.2

Students are encouraged to have low usage of the air-conditioner.
Moreover, they should minimize the indoor electronic entertainment
time, and participate in physical exercise more to reduce the demand
for energy systems.

The office is responsible for selective checking the use of air
conditioners in various departments at any time. Specific actions
will be taken if any man-made damaged or refusal comply with
regulations.

We monitor our electricity consumption during business operations
on a regular basis. During the Reporting Period, the total electricity
consumption of the Group was 28,536.98 MWh, and the electricity
consumption intensity was 0.61 MWh per capita. The total electricity
consumption increased compared to last year, which is due to the
resumption of classes after the epidemic. In addition, some electrical
equipment has been added for the upgrading and transformation of
classrooms and offices.

Water Conservation
The Group manages water usage from the source, saved water from
the process to carry out water management work effectively. We will
continue to monitor the achievement of the target to improve the
efficiency of water usage.

Our employees and students are advised to use energy-saving air-
energy water heaters in student dormitories. We have strengthened
water inspection and supervision and posted water-saving slogans
on our campus. All damaged water appliances will be repaired or
replaced in time. Moreover, the Group performs routine maintenance
work and regularly conducts leakage tests on concealed water pipes
to arrange timely maintenance work and reduce wastage. All of the
above measures could improve the awareness of water-saving of
teachers and students.

During the Reporting Period, the total water consumption of the
Group was 1,698,345.00 tonnes and the water consumption intensity
was 36.01 tonnes per capita. The total water consumption increased
compared to last year, which is due to the resumption of classes after
the epidemic. Our tap water comes from qualified tap water suppliers
in Guangzhou, and we did not have any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose.
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Paperless Operation

The Group advocates paperless campus and office. We have
formulated the Paperless Office Management Measures( (4t
PAEIRYPE) ). We use an electronic office system to replace
the traditional paper-based system. All essential printings should
use double-sided printing and avoid colour printing. We encourage
employees and students to reuse the blank pages of wastepaper.
Teachers and students are required to reduce the use of ball pens and
pencils and prepare their water cups to avoid using paper cups. We
encourage employees to communicate through online media such as

WeChat, QQ and e-mail to reduce paper consumption.

During the Reporting Period, the total paper consumption of the
Group was 2,134.10 kg, and the intensity of paper used was 45.25g
per capita. The total paper consumption increased compared to last

year, which is due to the resumption of classes after the epidemic.

Waste Disposal Management

The waste generated mainly includes office paper, lighting tubes,
toner cartridges, ink cartridges, and other domestic waste generated
by the daily operation of the campus. We have established internal
management measures to implement waste treatment and disposal
proactively. The campus uses recyclable toner cartridges and ink
cartridges, reuses office stationery, and avoid using disposable and
non-recyclable products.

We promote the concept of waste sorting and are equipped
with waste sorting and recycling facilities on campus. The Group
encourages teachers and students to participate in waste sorting and
daily cleaning. In order to reduce the generation and discharge of
domestic garbage, we do not encourage students and canteens to use
and provide plastic bags and disposable tableware. We regularly invite
dedicated recycling service providers to collect and recycle various
used products, food waste.
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6.5

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated a total of 270.00
tonnes of non-hazardous waste, and the non-hazardous waste
generation intensity was 5.72 kg per capita. We also recycled 161.00
tonnes of non-hazardous waste. For hazardous waste, we generated a
total of 0.27 tonnes of hazardous waste during the Reporting Period.
The hazardous waste generated includes waste from our infirmaries
and waste engine oil generated by the automobile maintenance
majors. The total waste disposal increased compared to last year,
which is due to the resumption of classes after the epidemic.

Old Clothes Recycling

The old clothes recycling activity purpose was to collect the old
clothes that students do not need through the collection box. The
collection will be processed and transported through to a used-
clothes-focus recycling company. The activity provided students with
a quick channel for disposal and reuse at the same time. In addition,
the activity can strengthen students’ environmental awareness for
using the resources rationally, promote socialist values and pay efforts
to build a green campus.

“Waste Sorting, Everyone’s Responsibility”
Launching Ceremony

In order to enhance teachers’ and students’ awareness of
environmental protection responsibility, the Group held the kick-off
meeting of “Waste Sorting, Everyone’s Responsibility” on April 15,
2021.

The activity focused on the promotion of the knowledge in waste
classification and treatment capabilities.

Emission Management

We have managed our greenhouse gas emissions to echo with the
climate change initiatives from the National Energy Commission of
China — The “Revolutionary Strategy for Energy Production and
Consumption (2016-2030)" ( {REIREEFEE £ anEEE (2016-2030) ) )
which clarifies the overall goals and related strategies of the energy
revolution and promotes green production and low-carbon enterprises.
We have also been promoting climate change mitigation, encouraging
local action, and raising public awareness in response to the “2020
Annual Report on China’s Policies and Actions on Climate Change”
((hEEHRIEZ N BRETE2020FEHE) ) issued by The
Information Office of the State Council.

Huali University Group Limited
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In accordance with the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol” issued by
the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
on Sustainable Development and the “ISO14064-1" set by the
International Organisation for Standardisation, the Group carried out
greenhouse gas emission inspections. A summary of the greenhouse
gas emissions during the Reporting Period is as follows:

Greenhouse gas emissions and removals”

BER B8P BB BRA

IR IE

HBREARE

REERERFRATEY RO
BERIEEESEMANCAER
BE 88 &5 3% 7F = )(Greenhouse Gas
Protocol) &z Bl B 1% (b 4B B 5T F
M15014064-1] « N EE#ET T
BERBHENRE - REHFHER
BERBHERBIZENT :

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) tonne of CO,e 1,143.64
HEOAEREYN (HBEN) A AR E S
Greenhouse gas removals (Scope 1) tonne of CO,e 83.15
RERERR (HBE) AP _ERE S
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) tonne of CO,e 17,410.41
MEOR=REEEEN ($E2) A _ERE S
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tonne of CO,e 18,470.91
RERBHNEE (BE1K2) A _ERE S
Greenhouse gas emission intensity* (Scope 1 and 2) tonne of CO,e/capita 0.39
mEREEEREEY (FE1%2) AP —EHEE A
A There may be a slight discrepancy between the sum of individual items and A ERNERABRE  BEREEY
the total as shown in the table owing to rounding. B 0 FB SR ] AL ER 4B BURS A
A ©
* Calculated based on the number of employees and students as of August * BER2021FE8A31HMETH
31, 2021, B4 AHGE
Scope 1 Direct greenhouse gas emissions from sources owned and controlled by the HE1 ANEEESRESHTBEFE
Group. EMEEBREREBHEM -
Scope 2 Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from electricity generation, heating and HE2 BT HAMKNASRENERR
cooling, or steam purchased by the Group. SNEE R R E S B AR
EREHM -
In addition to greenhouse gas emissions, the Group is aware of the BB =SB EE AN AREEME
exhaust gas emissions from our vehicles. We arrange inspections and KPP EREERER - R AE
maintenance for our fleet to ensure all parts are functioning properly KL REMRE  BRTA S
to maintain fuel consumption efficiency, in order to reduce exhaust HETE S T 1E « DA% 3 Rm S R
gas emissions. During the Reporting Period, our fleet's emissions of R L ERSYER RRE
nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and particulate matter were 297.02 HEAR - BEPEENRELY -
kg, 1.20 kg and 28.46 kg respectively. Ma MBI RD B A
297.02F 7% + 1.20F = F128.46 F
o
Tackling Climate Change 6.6 EYHRIEE

Climate change has caused frequent extreme weather and has a
major impact on business operations. Therefore, the Group has
formulated working mechanisms and related policies to identify and
mitigate climate change issues that may have a significant impact. At
the same time, we should adjust the use of resources and energy. In
response to disasters and accidents that are easily induced by extreme
weather, we always enhance the capability to the disaster response of
teachers and students.
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Physical Acute Risk

The Group has identified extreme weather such as typhoons, heavy
rain and flooding that can cause physical acute risk. The potential
consequences include damage to documents, equipment and
buildings, water and a power outage on campus and the education
schedule being left behind. The above potential consequences will
cause major economic losses and increase operating costs to the
Group.

The Group has established different measures to minimize the
negative effect of extreme weather. We will check regularly whether
existing buildings meet the latest local building standards and make
necessary repairs. The important documents should be kept in
electronic versions for backup while the backup data storage center
should be located in a remote location. The Group has increased
the amount of backup power storage equipment, such as backup

generators, solar and wind energy, etc.

Once the extreme weather happens, measures for emergency
prevention, such as (EEEAZEWIEAMEZTEZE) , and control should
be made in advance. Online teaching will be carried out to keep

students’ study schedules in progress.

Physical Chronic Risk

The Group has identified extreme weather such as extremely
hot weather that can cause physical chronic risk. The potential
consequences include an increased chance of getting heatstroke for
employees working outdoor, increasing turnover rate and work-related
injuries. The demand for cooling for the working environment will
be increased, which may lead to an increase in power demand and
operating costs to the Group.

The Group has suggested optimizing the operating efficiency of
ventilation and air conditioning to reduce power consumption when
the temperature rises. Arrangements for emergency prevention and
control should be made in advance. For example, under continuous
high-temperature weather conditions, employees who work outdoor

should find a suitable place to rest regularly, etc.
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6.7 Sustainability Target Plan

During the Reporting Period, we have set preliminary directional

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-HENRERRE

6.7 IFERREBEEFE
PR EIRI A - T 1P 2E A R I A

targets in terms of energy use efficiency, water efficiency, waste R BKRR - E A EEY AR
reduction and greenhouse gas emissions, in order to perform better ERERIEEE TSNS

energy conservation, water conservation, waste reduction and

MER UEFHEREEE - &

greenhouse gas emissions. We will review the progress and explore KBV EDFNBEZEREHER -

more opportunities for various environmental protection goals. In the
future, we will set more specific quantitative environmental goals to
nurture the environment and cherish natural resources.

Environmental aspects
RIRERE

HMERISERKRE RS
B THREEZHE - A& R
MEHEEAEHBLREB
B UBERENMZEERER -

Targets
B

Energy Conservation

Water Conservation

Bk

Waste Reduction

WA EERY

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

= RIS

The Group will actively implement the electricity-saving plan and measures to
maintain or reduce the intensity of electricity consumption.
REBBEGEEEET BRI - AERSORDBERE -

The Group will actively implement the water-saving plan and measures to
maintain or reduce the intensity of water consumption.
AEEFIAGRE BEKT RGN - LSOO RAKERE -

The Group will actively implement the material-saving plan and measures to
maintain or reduce the intensity of waste production.

REEBBEEEMHE QT EIMNENR - AERSORDERMELTE

The Group will actively implement the electricity-saving plan and measures to
maintain or reduce the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions.
REBBEREEEE BT - AERSUR DR EREHNEE -
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COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION

While striving to expand talent education services, the Group is committed
to supporting the development of public welfare undertakings and fulfilling
our social responsibilities. We have established a volunteer team consisting
of 66 employees and 19,781 students. During the Reporting Period,
the Group donated over RMB81,000 in public welfare; more than 720
headcounts of employees and more than 19,000 headcounts of students
participated in public welfare activities, and our volunteer team spent more
than 622,000 hours in charitable activities.

7.1 Dedication to Helping the Elderlies, Children, and

the Disadvantage Group

The Group carried out several volunteer service activities to help the
elderly, children and disadvantaged groups. During November and
December 2020, the Huali Youth Volunteer Association (3 & F &
FEZ& %) spent the weekends teaching children in the neighbouring
community of Chuxichun and Zengjiang. The teaching activities allow
our students to fully engage with the children and teach them the
value of community contribution. Our students arranged activities that
encouraged the children to showcase their creative and artistic sides.

Besides providing teaching services to the children, the Group created
classes for the disadvantaged group. The Group also organized visits
to the elderly during Double Ninth Festival and Chinese New Year.
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Huali Youth Volunteer Association and the children

EYSFEREHENAE
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7.2 Donation to the Community
Various donation events occurred in the Reporting Year, including
blood and supplies donation. Notably, in December 2020, students
came into the campus to donate blood for people in need. As
donating blood requires courage, the Group encouraged students to
participate in this meaningful event by providing a clean environment
and snacks to ensure student feels comfortable.

Students donating blood for the needed
BERAEFTENARM

Another event is the collaboration between the Huali Youth Volunteer
Association and Bank of China to donate resources to teachers in the rural
areas. The student participated in the full cycle from collecting the resources
to delivering the resources to the delivery. In July 2021, the Group also
helped alleviate poverty for the suburban areas through donations.

e

Students help sort out resources for the donation
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7.3 Supporting the Local Agriculture

Local agriculture within the Group is crucial to the neighbourhood

identity. The Group is eager to assist the local farmers in running

their businesses better. Lychee is the leading agricultural fruit product

during July. The Group helped the farmers to increase sales through

technology. Within the first hour of purchase, different neighbouring

regions ordered more than 2,000 kg lychees and the Group also

purchased up to 1,000 kg. Besides the increase in sales, one dollar

was donated to children living in the rural areas with 0.5 kg Lychees

sold. The event brings positive impacts to both farmers and children.
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA STATEMENT
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it — : TIFBEERABHEE

2021
Environmental BRIR Unit B 20214
Air pollutant emissions* RIS R
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) BEAILTNO,) kg T 297.02
Sulphur oxides (SO,) e (SO,) kg Fe 1.20
Particulate matter (PM) AR (PM) kg T 28.46
Greenhouse gas emissions BERBHERREBRA
and removals”+*
Direct greenhouse gas HEREREREHM tonne of CO,e A —EIES 1,143.64
emissions (Scope 1) (&[E1)
Greenhouse gas removals RERERR tonne of CO,e A —EtIRE = 83.15
(Scope 1) (#E1)
Indirect greenhouse MR ER PN tonne of CO,e NS EE 17,410.41
gas emissions (Scope 2) (#[E2)
Total greenhouse gas emissions  JRZEREHINAE tonne of CO,e NE—F(LHRE S 18,470.91
(Scope 1 and 2) (#E1%2)
Greenhouse gas emission AEREHENEE* tonne of CO,e/ capita N k= (174 0.39
intensity* (Scope 1 and 2) (#E1%2) 3=V ON
Energy consumption BERMEA
Natural gas consumption RARFEAE m3 K 67,303.84*
Natural gas consumption AARRFEARE* m?/ capita SRS A 1.43
intensity*
Gasoline consumption VURMERE litre NF 76,523.65
Gasoline consumption intensity  JTHERZEE litre/ employee AFBI 35.48
Diesel consumption SCHFER=E litre DF 8,900.00
Diesel consumption intensity ShFERRE litre/ employee AHET 4.13
Purchased electricity INBENFERE MWh IR 28,536.98
consumption
Purchased electricity SNEENERATE* MWh/ capita PISSN=YON 0.61
consumption intensity*
Water consumption IKIRFEF
Total water consumption BFEKE tonne NI 1,698,345.00
Water consumption intensity* FERTE tonne/ capita NN 36.01
Paper consumption HERFEA
Total paper consumption AResE kg T 2,134.10
Paper consumption intensity* A= E g/ capita VDN 45.25
Waste generation BEYELEREIR

and recycling
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g lkERawmE

2021
Environmental BIE Unit B 20214
Non-hazardous waste BMEEEVEL=S tonne NI 270.00
generation
Non-hazardous waste mEERYEERE kg/ capita Fr/ A 5.72
generation intensity*
Non-hazardous waste recycling — ZEZEEZEYEIKE tonne NI 161.00
Hazardous waste generation EEREEYEELS kg T 270.00
Hazardous waste generation BEBREYEATE kg/ capita FRA 0.01

intensity*

We refer to “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” from the Stock Exchange to calculate our Group’s air pollutant
emissions and greenhouse gas emissions.

There may be a slight discrepancy between the sum of individual items and the total as
shown in the table owing to rounding.

Calculated based on the number of employees and students as of August 31, 2021

BA2EMIAINAGERFERE & RERR
& — W= REBREIUERERIES IHE
FEBENERSRERMHERIBRERBHR -

BRI R AR R - (@518 B 8B R A B8
HAHRAE LA -

RIENR2021FANEHME T MBE ABGTE

2021

Social HE Unit By 20214
Total number of employees BT/ person A 2,157
Total number of employees ET&Y (RERES)

(by gender)
Female k8 person A 1,055
Male Es person A 1,102
Total number of employees ETHAH

(by age group) (RFRARE D)
Below 30 305 AT person A 621
Aged 30-50 30-507% person A 862
Above 50 50BRMA £ person A 674
Total number of employees EBITHAH

(by employment type) (RERERES)
Short-term contract/ Part-time REART FMET person A 185

employees
Junior employees MRET person A 1,879
Middle management RRERE person A 69
Senior management BREEE person A 24
Total number of employees BIAY (RHEES)

(by region)
Guangdong Province ERE person A 2,157
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RIE e kEA®mE

2021
Social HE Unit b 20214
Turnover rate (by gender) AT (BRHERIES)
Female g percent ALt 7.36
Male Es percent Bk 5.18
Turnover rate mKRE
(by age group) (RERARE D)
Below 30 305 AT percent R 5.53
Aged 30-50 30-507%% percent Bkt 5.37
Above 50 5077 A = percent Bk 1.64
Turnover rate (by region) MRAE (RHEED)
Guangdong Province ERE percent ANkt 12.54
Percentage of employees FIETESL
trained (by gender)* (RERIE D) ~
Female 8 percent Bkt 50.17
Male 5 percent Bl 49.82
Percentage of employees FilETESL
trained (by employment (REREERES) »
type)”
Short-term contract/ Part-time RHART #MET percent Batk 8.36
employees
Junior employees YHRET percent ANkt 86.75
Middle management RRERE percent Bkt 3.76
Senior management SRERE percent B 1.12
Average training hours per BEE I FEIGH
employee (by gender) (RHRIE5)
Average training hours per BHTE T FHENIRE hours /)NBE 51.04
female employee
Average training hours per F% BB I TFHEIRE hours /NBF 45.15
male employee
Average training hours per BEE T FIEIFE
employee (by employment (RERERES)
type)
Short-term contract/ Part-time EHARIL  #BET hours /)N 11.92
employees
Junior employees JHRET hours N 46.60
Middle management RRERE hours /|NB 85.83
Senior management R EIRE hours /|NB 22.23

Y REEHAGRA A 127
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g lkERawmE

2021
Social HE Unit By 20214
Occupational health and BEEERZE
safety
Number of work-related 2021 FE T T AER no. of people ANEL 0
fatalities in 2021
Number of work-related 2020FE THET- AER no. of people ANEL 0
fatalities in 2020
Number of work-related 2019F AT T A S no. of people AH 0
fatalities in 2019
Lost days due to work injury ATSEEXTIIEAE days =] 0
A There may be a slight discrepancy between the sum of individual items and the total as AR MEEEARE - @518 B 68T IR A 58

shown in the table owing to rounding.
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APPENDIX II: THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG

REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

Index content

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g lkERds

Bt 8% =

RERR®

R (ERR g
HiEsD RS

Relevant sections

EERE HEEE
A.  Environmental Area
A RIRHEHE
A1:  Emissions General Disclosure  Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance 6. Building a Green Campus
with relevant laws and regulations that have a together
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
A1 B — R EE BRERMAEREYN - MKRLHEOHS BF 6. HEGZERE
REEEVMHNELEN © (@BE  Ro)BTHET
ABERZENHEBEERADINER -
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions 6.5 Emission Management
data. Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement
A1.1 PERC R AR R B B - 6.5 HEE IR
figgk—  AISEERMEBRHE
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 6.5 Emission Management
greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity. Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement
A1.2 B (8E1) RegRMEE (8E2) BERELEHM 6.5 HFNER
ERTE - i — A EERMBRE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 6.4 Waste Disposal
Management
Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement
A1.3 PRELAEBEZNBENTE - 6.4 EEEYREEIE
ik — A EERMBRE
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 6.4 Waste Disposal
Management
Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement
A1.4 PRELEEEZYBRENTE - 6.4 EEEYREEIE
ik — A EERMBRE
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps 6.5 Emission Management
taken to achieve them. 6.7 Sustainability Target Plan
A15 UM PRET MBS B IR R R E RS & B IRFTER A 6.5 HERE R

W e

6.7 AIFHEREB RS
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RIECHENERWRSE

Index content

Relevant sections

EBERE HEEE
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 6.3 Paperless Operation
wastes are handled, and a description of 6.4 Waste Disposal
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Management
them. 6.7 Sustainability Target Plan
A6 R EENEEEEYN AL - AT A 6.3 B ES
R B R NORE RS L B R P EREREY S BR © 6.4 EEVEEER
6.7 AIFEEER BIEATE
A2:  Use of General Disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, including 6. Building a Green Campus
Resources energy, water and other raw materials. together
A2 EREA — R BERERER (BIEER - KEREMERME) #E 6. HEFERE
%o
A2.1 Direct and/ or indirect energy consumption by type 6.1 Energy Conservation
(e.g. electricity, gas, or oil) in total and intensity. Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement
A2.1 REMEISOMERER SHEEER (NS - Jsh) 6.1 BNAE
BREBREE - Migh—  AISEERAEBHE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 6.2 Water Conservation
Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement
A2.2 BRKBREE - 6.2 /K
figk—  AISEERABRHE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 6.1 Energy Conservation
steps taken to achieve them. 6.7 Sustainability Target Plan
Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement
A2.3 F PRI LM BEIRE A B IR R R ERE L B IEAT 6.1 BNRE
EREREY 2 BE - 6.7 AIFF AR B SaTEl
Migk—  AISEERAEBHE
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 6.2 Water Conservation
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency 6.7 Sustainability Target Plan
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
A2.4 FEHCKEUE KR R B EAIRERE - bARFTEI LA 6.2 K
KM B IR R ARERE L B IR EREE P 6.7 AIFF AR B RaTEl
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Not applicable to the business
and with reference to per unit produced. of the Group
A2.5 HRMATABREMHNEERBEEEMIEE - AEBNEBTEA

130 Huali University Group Limited

2021 Annual Report



Index content

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE -

Zi &Hr \A%ﬁ& =

Relevant sections
A BA E 6

EEAR

A3:  The
Environment
and Natural
Resources

A3 : RERRAER

A4:  Climate
Change

A RIREE

B. Social Area

B. HEHE

B1:  Employment

B1: [EBE

General Disclosure

—RRE
A3.1

General Disclosure

—RIEE

A4.1

A4.1

General Disclosure

—RIEE

B1.2

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.

BEBTAHRBERARERENEATEHBOR
Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the

actions taken to manage them.
MEZEERT RARARE RN ERZE LRI
Ei@*ﬁfﬁ FEMNITE o

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.

BRIREHELRAIREEHBETAEEFENERR
AR E EMBUR -

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

B & LA e H BT AEETENERRIZIER
BH - REHTE -

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

BAFM R E  BEREA - TIEWE - BE - F
Eeg ol - RIERAREMAEREF
(@B« R(0)ETFHETABERTENIERER
KIRGIEER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

RIS BERT - FRANRMESDHEELR
o

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

iR - ERERI R ER BB RALE -

6. Building a Green Campus
together

6. K ERE
6. Building a Green Campus
together

6. HERERE

6.6 Tackling Climate Change

6.6 EHRIRE(L

6.6 Tackling Climate Change
6.7 Sustainability Target Plan

6.6 EERIRE(L
6.7 A EEREFTE

4.1 Protection of Employment
Rights

4.2 Providing Care to Our
Employees

4.1 REBE TiEm
42 BIEET

Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement

s — : AIRERRBIERHE

Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement

Bfgk— : AIEERBUERHE
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RIECHENERWRSE

Index content

EBRAR

Relevant sections
A BA E 6

B2: Health and
Safety

B2: @M%

B3: Development
and Training

B3: EEKIEF

General Disclosure

— AR R

B2.1

B2.1

B2.2

B2.2

B2.3

B2.3

General Disclosure

—ARINEE

B3.1

B3.1

B3.2

B3.2

132 Huali University Group Limited
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Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

EARMZ2TEREIMREESHEBELES
B @BUR - R(0)EFEHEITABERZENEH
ERRIRGIEERE o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.

BEZF (DREERFE) SFATITHHABKL

Lost days due to work injury.

EITGEATIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

R PTER AN B R @ B B 4 - DA RIBRIRIT I

BERIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

FRARAEESRITIIEBRE OB RKEENEEE -
MIEFEED ©

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).

ZUERIREESER (WafkERE  TREEES)
EoMXIEEEDLL ©

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.

RUEFIREEERIED - BRESTHZIINTFHR
o

3.5 Healthy and Safe Campus

3.5 @R

.\_THI,
A
Hp
¥
[

Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement

e — : AISEERBERE

Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement

figk—  AISEEREBHE

3.5 Healthy and Safe Campus

35 BEZERE

4.3 Continuous Education for

Employees

43 BIREHAE

Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement

g —: AIHERRBBRE

Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statement

e — : AIEERBERE



Index content

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE -

Zi &Hr \Affi& =

Relevant sections

HEE

EEAR
B4:  Labour
Standards

B4 : TR

B5:  Supply Chain
Management

BS: HEHEEIR

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

B4.1

B4.1
B4.2

B4.2

General Disclosure

—MRE
B5.1

B5.1
B5.2

B5.3

B5.3

B5.4

B5.4

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BRABIEE TR I TH) : (IR K(b)E 3
TABERZENEBEENRAOINER -
Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
RS BB IR AR R E T KoRHIS T -
Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

RO IR ARIE NS B R A IS U PT R 258 o

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.
ERHEENRE MG RRBUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

=i m B o H B EE o

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB B EENIED - MERITHAREIEN M
JEREE - ARERRERIMENITRER X o

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A BB R EREGHIRIE Rt 2 RERA1E
Bl - LARABRAEAIT REER K ©

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A ERE HERRE RS ARERER KRBEHIE
Bl LARABRAEAIT REESR K ©

4.1 Protection of Employment
Rights

4.1 REBIHER

4.1 Protection of Employment
Rights

41 REB THEm

4.1 Protection of Employment
Rights

4.1 RES THEm

5.4 Sustainable Supply Chain
Management

5.4 AIFSEHEEE IR

5.4 Sustainable Supply Chain
Management

5.4 AIFFEMERE TR

5.4 Sustainable Supply Chain
Management

5.4 AIRFEMEREIR

5.4 Sustainable Supply Chain
Management

5.4 AIRFEMEREIR

5.4 Sustainable Supply Chain
Management

5.4 AIFHEMERE IR

HETRZEABR AR 133
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IRIE -

Index content

e kERRE

Relevant sections
A BA E 6

EEAR
B6:  Product

B7:

B7 :

134

Responsibility

Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

— AR R

B6.1

B6.1

B6.2

B6.2
B6.3

B6.3
B6.4

B6.4

B6.5

B6.5

General Disclosure

—RIEE

B7.1

B7.1

Huali University Group Limited

2021 Annual Report

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

ERAFRHEMMRENERERZS BE TER
TLRREEARMMROITER - (IR R(b)E<FH 3
TABERZEBEEREERROIRER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.

EERDEXEMBE T ER D EERIEHMmAL K
=R

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BRI E R RGO EE AR EH % -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

et SR A T AR A ERE B RARIE DI -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

IS S8 E mE R EMEIYWART -

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

i E B & B RMRE AL R
BIE -

P AR ARREETT M B

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,

extortion, fraud and money Iaundering
EW%&%%~%% HERABEE  @BE : R
b) & <F a1 Aﬁiﬁ%;%ﬁ@i@&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ﬂ :

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RERAANEEHITASEREREIEFLENEITH
AARMHEIE RFAER ©

3.5 Healthy and Safe Campus
5. Compliant and Responsible

Governance

3.5 BELERE
5. AREARER

Not applicable to the business
of the Group
AEENEBTEA

3.6 Feedback Collection on
Teaching Quality

3.6 HBEEEREHNE

5.1 Compliant Management
and Operation

5.1 BREREMEL

Not applicable to the business
of the Group

REBENZEBTER

5.3 Privacy and Cyber Security

5.3 BAMBPKRLZE

5.2 Zero Tolerance to
Corruption

5.2 Zero Tolerance to
Corruption



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - HEgkERRSE

Index content Relevant sections
EBERE HEEE
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 5.2 Zero Tolerance to
blowing procedures, how they are implemented Corruption
and monitored.
B7.2 P S5 b6 R B IRAR T - AR HIT RER T 5.2 [BRZERR
% e
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 5.2 Zero Tolerance to
directors and staff. Corruption
B7.3 fitmERRE TRHENRESE - 5.2 BRERR
B8:  Community General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand 7. Community Contribution
Investment the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
B8 : ftmIEE — BB B E2ER T REEMETEFEMBERESE 7. tEER
BEBGERBHLRNFOHEE -
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, 7. Community Contribution
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
B8.1 IEMEE (WHE  RREH BIFR @ 7. iERER
B xib - #85) -
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 7. Community Contribution
B8.2 EEIHEMBHAER - 7. i@ EF R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 N % BUAD iR

To the Shareholders of Huali University Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

_
pwec

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Huali University Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 142 to 232,
which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at August 31, 2021;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

3 the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary

of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at August 31, 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

136 Huali University Group Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is revenue recognition of tuition and

boarding fees.

Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 N 2 BUAD

FRESTSE
MREFEESRERMANEXHE  BRY
AHEHYBRENBARREENEE -
ELERTERMEBFERSHVBTRERLR
HAERRKETREN BT SHELSE
HARHEEBNER -

BMEAPINNOEREAFERBERT
BB RATER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHWESNAEERRETSE

Revenue recognition of tuition and boarding
fees

BERTHEENRARR

Refer to notes 2.21 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FLHA G IBRRM E2.21 %5 -

Revenue mainly comprised tuition and boarding
fees from students, amounting to RMB882 million
for the year ended August 31, 2021. These fees
are generally received in advance prior to the
beginning of each academic year and are recognized
proportionately over each academic year.
WATZBEEBLNBERTEE 812202148
A3MBIEEEAARE2ABT - AHABABESR
REBFRIAMTAR  REBFREPIFER -

We focused on revenue recognition due to its
magnitude and the large volume of transactions,
such that we have incurred significant time and
resources in carrying out our work in this area.
HREBEREAARZERN  HMEIRRAER
HAUEEETZRETIERRARERHER -

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls over the revenue
recognition of tuition and boarding fees.

B TE  FHERAHRE R FEE R AR ERES

We checked on a sample basis the student names, academic subjects and
student grades in the student records of the relevant universities to the official
student records registered with relevant education authorities and reconciled
the total number of enrolled students in the current academic year from the
student records of the relevant universities to the official student records
registered with the relevant education authorities of the People’s Republic of
China.
BPIBBETREARLMBEEBAESFIELNEFS2ECHRERAREEE
RSP RBAEMY BRI RBEFR - WHERABRRERSETARERRELE
BB AR B PR E BT -

We checked the tuition and boarding fees on a sample basis to student
enrolment forms, student payment records, program price shown on the
enrolment guide and online course attendance records.
BFRBEBERERE BAEXNLE - BEREMRIRZER LG LRIELE
AHHERENTREE -

We recalculated tuition and boarding fees based on student names, academic
subjects, student grades, program price shown on the enrolment guides.
BPRESAMS - 28 2AFR  BAGEREBERRMRKERESH
HEBEREEE -

We checked on a sample basis the existence of the students by interviewing
students and agreed the student information in relevant official student
records including the student names, their personal identity card numbers,
student identification numbers and academic subjects to the student’s identity
card and student cards provided by the students.

HIEBENSERGEEE H2ECHETNEEEH (BBEEENRTE  BAS
RS - BAEMPIR RPN BBERMNBESHBRBERRY  HEBLE
REFE o

Based on the procedures performed, we found the Group’s tuition and
boarding fees tested were supported by available evidence.

RBPIRRE P ER - RPN - AER SEESBERFTHEEAEEXS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 N % BUAD iR

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

138 Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report

Httf5 8
EAREFANEMESAR - Kl e
EERRMAERS BT RIEA 5B R
KRB BDRE o

BHAEEHMBRERNBERE L TREEME
B BT AEZELMELSEREMEA
M EEE Em o

FBERMESHIBHRERNES  RMNE
TRMAEEMES  HUBRES  ZEHM
FEEEREAHMBBRAAMERTBRE
MY REBEAFEEABEBREUTFE
BREREREER o

ERRMECHTHIHE  DREMARBSEM
ERFEEAGERRL BRMAFTERSZE
BE-HEEHH BREERNRS -

EERERZESHREGHUE
BRAEAENER

ERREFARERBETESHMASHEM
BKE R P B I EEL) R BB ARG
REATREEEMTENAHIBERE
THERRREARHMBHRROEBE I FHE
MR AFF SRR T G B E AR H
MABENEE -

EREBAFVBHRRE EFRANE &
SERELENREN TEERBATRE
HEBELEARNER  UREABELSE
REFEHR KRIEZFAER BEEEHEBR
HIFILE  RFBEEMCERNERTER -

il

BEEE

EEENPBRE

[EEN
i
0
8
\\\\

B B



Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s HEARBYZEMBENEAFEEAREAR
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report is Au Chi Ho. =
PricewaterhouseCoopers BEOERKEBESMEKM
Certified Public Accountants W sTAm

Hong Kong, November 19, 2021 BB 2021511 H19H
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AR =R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(B = HEBEI BT 2 EUAREERT)
Year ended August 31,
BZ8A3MBILEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5% AR TR ARETT
Revenue Mo 28 5 881,656 761,481
Cost of sales 85 B B AR 8 (411,143) (308,902)
Gross profit EF 470,513 452,579
Selling expenses HER X 8 (26,066) (15,527)
Administrative expenses TR X 8 (103,200) (99,105)
Other income H 4l A 6 35,120 19,620
Other losses — net HiEEFHE 7 (151,928) (3,273)
Operating profit RERH 224,439 354,294
Finance income B 75 A 8,735 8,332
Finance expenses g1 (63,543) (51,692)
Finance expenses — net MR TR 10 (54,808) (43,360)
Profit before income tax Fir 18 B4 51 R0 8 169,631 310,934
Income tax expenses FriSH M X 11 (26,172) (4,265)
Profit for the year F R R E 143,459 306,669
Other comprehensive income Hi iz & W E
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to HAETSEF 7 IEE B
profit or loss 15 H
Revaluation gains arising from transfer of E&E - BE KRR EEAE
property, plant and equipment and FREEEEAKREMEM
corresponding right-of-use assets to investment EEMEHKRzE(ENR)
properties, net of tax 2,408 —
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMGEERE(EHNH)
net of tax 2,408 —
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAREWNBHEE 145,867 306,669
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTATEGEGRERSHEE
— Owner of the Company — AR A ERERRE 145,867 306,669
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AATEBERKREENSF BB
owner of the Company (expressed in BREMN(UERAR®E T
RMB per share) xR)
Basic and diluted AR S 12 0.120 0.270
The above consolidated statements of comprehensive income should be read in A A NI R EERBEN M E—
conjunction with the accompanying notes. =
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

AS AT AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

R2021568H31H

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

As at August 31,

A8H31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBT R AR T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 14 1,438,565 1,060,506
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKLXE 15 3,708,910 2,805,085
Investment properties BEME 16 179,400 135,000
Intangible assets EREE 17 21,609 12,404
Other financial assets at amortized cost REBR KA AR
Hhep&E — 6,353
Prepayments T RRIE 19 37,387 133,116
5,385,871 4,152,464
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TE T RIE 19 1,482 190
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k H b e W SR IE 20 16,526 12,519
Amounts due from related parties & UK BE st 75 5RIE 33 25,900 16,766
Financial assets at amortized cost RESRKNAARNEMEE 6,450 =
Restricted cash Z R FI3E % 21 12,246 11,205
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 22 880,752 865,062
943,356 905,742
Total assets HmEE 6,329,227 5,058,206
EQUITY #Em
Share capital and share premium f& AR K B 10 m (B 23 652,296 789,576
Statutory surplus reserves EERBEE 24 125,568 123,186
Other reserves H b i 24 338,526 336,118
Retained earnings 1R 8 & 7 24 1,569,015 1,427,938
Total equity MR 2,685,405 2,676,818
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities *kRBEE
Borrowings (R 28 2,096,850 1,622,731
Accruals and other payables FE =T B A & H i FE A 5K IE 26 217,369 7,141
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<t A Bt 7 3XOR 26 50,864 —
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFEHRABE 29 43,832 36,461
2,408,915 1,666,333
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEERER

AS AT AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

202168 H31H

(b= HHEHI BT EEEUARERT)

As at August 31,

A8H31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T AREEF T

Current liabilities REEE

Accruals and other payables Bt B AN E M ENIE 26 377,189 270,616
Amounts due to related parties FE 5 B Bt 75 3R IE 26 45,415 21,251
Contract liabilities BHEE 27 567,766 271,771
Current income tax liabilities EHEHAE 20,748 6,200
Borrowings & 3% 28 223,535 145,217
Deferred revenue I FE &= 254 —
1,234,907 715,055
Total liabilities wEB 3,643,822 2,381,388
Total equity and liabilities EnRkBEEE 6,329,227 5,058,206

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the L G & E B E R FEE R BE M A M — 6f
accompanying notes. B E o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 142 to 232 were approved by the FBINENEMNEHVBBREEBRESTERN
221FNMAIEMAETRREZTSERE -

Board of Directors on November 19, 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

Zhang Zhifeng Ye Yaming
R g EHRH
Director Director

EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
el i Sk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

BZE202158A31HIEFE
(B ZE15HI) B BAAREZRT)

Attributable to owner of the Company

ANREERRREN
Statutory
Share Share surplus Other Retained
capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total
EE
BRA R E BRERE HitfE A RERBF @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®T R ARBTR AR®T R AR®TR AR®T R
(Note 23) (Note 23)
(KizE23) (HF23)

For the year ended HZ2021%8A31H

August 31, 2021 LEE
As at September 1, 2020 #202069R1H 820 788,756 123,186 336,118 1,427,938 2,676,818
Comprehensive income FEWE
Profit for the year ERFE — — — — 143,459 143,459
Other comprehensive income Htt@ el
Revaluation gains of investment REMES(RE

properties Yz — — — 2,408 — 2,408
Total comprehensive income for FR&E W

the year k] — — — 2,408 143,459 145,867
Dividends (Note 13) i 8 (F1313) - (137,280) - — - (137,280)
Appropriation to statutory reserves & 3% F H & — - 38,794 — (38,794) —
Utilization of school development FHEREE

funds E¢ — — (36,412) — 36,412 —
As at August 31, 2021 R202148A31H 820 651,476 125,568 338,526 1,569,015 2,685,405
For the year ended B £202058A31H

August 31, 2020 LEE
As at September 1, 2019 R2019%9A81A 327 — 123,186 336,118 1,121,269 1,580,900
Profit and other comprehensive FEFNBREMGS

income for the year & — — — — 306,669 306,669
Shares issued pursuant to the BEERAAREE

initial public offering BAMRG 211 879,402 — — — 879,613
Share issuance costs Bfn BTN = (28,744) = = = (28,744)
Capitalization issue B ET 282 (282) — — — —
Dividends (Note 13) i & (F1E13) = (61,620) — — — (61,620)
Appropriation to statutory reserves % 5% F [ — — 81,756 — (81,756) —
Utilization of school development FHERERE

funds g = = (81,756) — 81,756 —
As at August 31, 2020 R202058H31H 820 788,756 123,186 336,118 1,427,938 2,676,818

The above consolidated statements of changes in equity should be read in & Of # 55 B B 3R FE S R BE BT B B — BF
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BIE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRLRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

Year ended August 31,
BZE8AMALEE

2021 2020
2021 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 3 ARETR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNRERE
Cash generated from operations KEMBHRS 30 809,953 82,616
Interest paid SRR (95,366) (65,155)
Income tax paid ERFMES (5,056) (697)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBMEREFE 709,531 16,764
Cash flows from investing activities RETBNREESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, BEWME BERHZE -
right-of-use assets and intangible assets CREEEMENEE (1,148,482) (340,532)
Payment of cash advances to a related party MR REBR (4,958) =
Interest income received from financial assets B E RS 3 VN
at amortized cost SREEZFEBA 427 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and LEWE BERZEMS
equipment FRIA 113 131
Prepayment for the acquisition of right-of-use WHIPIEREEERN
assets in Jiangmen A — (124,840)
Purchase of other financial assets at amortized cost BERERKAARNEM
SREE — (6,511)
Net cash used in investing activities HEERSMARE FE (1,152,900) (471,752)
Cash flows from financing activities BETBNRLSRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings BTN RIE 30(a) 358,707 979,790
Repayments of bank borrowings BERRITER 30(a) (145,417) (291,146)
Proceeds from other borrowings due to FE < BAESE 75 M) E A & A
a related party Fri5 38 30(a) 337,000 —
Dividends paid BEffRE (75,120) (61,620)
Proceeds from initial public offering of shares BRAARBEERMDMERE - 879,613
Payment for listing expenses IR ETHEXZ — (22,264)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FE ST BB 5 RIE RS 30(a) — (612,660)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEDMEBHRLFE 475,170 871,713
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEESEYEMNTFE 31,801 416,725
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEBYHNELEIE (16,111) (5,239)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#H & RELZEY 865,062 453,576
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRBEESRRSEEY 880,752 865,062

The above consolidated statements of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Huali University Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on May 24, 2016 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, the Cayman Islands. The Company
is an investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in providing
private tertiary education services, including tuition services and student
accommodation services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The ultimate holding company of the Company is HL-Diamond Limited
("HL-Diamond”). The directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider the
ultimate controlling party to be Mr. Zhang Zhifeng, who is also an executive
director and the chairman of the Board of the Company (the “Owner”).

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"”) since November
25, 2019.

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (the “COVID-19") had
brought unprecedented challenges and added uncertainties to the economy.
COVID-19 may affect the financial performance and position of the industry
of education. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group kept continuous
attention on the situation of the COVID-19 and reacted actively to its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the Group. As at
the date that these consolidated financial statements are authorized for
issue, COVID-19 doesn’t have any material adverse impact on the financial
position and operating result of the Group.

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(k=

148

B FrE 2 AN REXRT)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Significant event

The conversion of Huali College Guangdong University
of Technology

On January 28, 2021, Guangdong University of Technology, Guangzhou
Huali Investment Company Limited (“Huali Investment”), being the Joint
Sponsors of Huali College Guangdong University of Technology, and Huali
College Guangdong University of Technology (“Huali College”) entered into
the Transitional Cooperation Agreement of Huali College (the “Transitional
Cooperation Agreement”), which has set out certain arrangements in
relation to the management of Huali College during the transitional period
of the conversion of Huali College from a private independent college into
an independently established private general undergraduate college in the
PRC (the “Conversion of Huali College”). Pursuant to the Transitional
Cooperation Agreement, Huali Investment and Huali College have agreed
to pay a one-off compensation fee amounting to RMB160,000,000 to
Guangdong University of Technology for appreciating its contributions to
the development of Huali College in past years. The one-off compensation
fee will be settled in three installments, of which RMB53,340,000,
RMB53,330,000 and RMB53,330,000 shall be paid by October 31, 2021,
October 31, 2022 and October 31, 2023, respectively. The Transitional
Cooperation Agreement came into effect on May 31, 2021, the date on
which the Conversion of Huali College was completed and approved by
the Ministry of Education (“MoE") of the PRC, and will be expired when
students recruited under the name of Huali College Guangdong University
of Technology graduate.

Upon the completion of the Conversion of Huali College, Huali College
Guangdong University of Technology changed its official name into
Guangzhou Huali College (the “Huali College”) . Pursuant to the
Transitional Cooperation Agreement and the legal opinion issued by the
lawyer, the rights and obligations of Huali College Guangdong University of
Technology are legally undertaken by Guangzhou Huali College.

Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Going concern assumption

As at August 31, 2021, the Group had recorded net current
liabilities of RMB291,551,000, and capital commitment in
relation to construction of property, plant and equipment within
twelve months of RMB8,000,000. The Group's total borrowings
as at August 31, 2021 amounted to RMB2,320,385,000, and
RMB225,747,000 was repayable within the coming twelve
months and interest payable amounting to RMB100,514,000
is expected to be accrued and paid within the coming twelve
months, while its cash and cash equivalents amounting to
RMB880,752,000 as at the same date.

Management closely monitors the Group’s financial performance
and liquidity position. A number of measures have been put
in place by management to improve the financial position
and relief the liquidity pressure. As at August 31, 2021,
the Group had unused long-term banking facilities totaling
RMB666,527,000. Management is of the opinion that such
banking facilities are adequate for the capital expenditure and
working capital purpose of the Group covering a period for not

less than twelve months from August 31, 2021.

Also, management has prepared cash flow projections of the
Group covering a period of not less than twelve months from
August 31, 2021 on the basis that (i) the Group will continue
to generate operating cash inflows; and (ii) there is continuous
availability of the bank facilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(i) Going concern assumption (Cont’d)

The Directors have reviewed the cash flow projection and have
made due enquiries and considered the basis and assumptions
of management’s projections as described above. The Directors
are of the opinion that, taking into account the Group’s future
operational performance and the expected future operating
cash inflows; and the continuous availability of bank facilities,
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to support its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the coming twelve months from August 31,

2021. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the

Group has been prepared on a going concern basis.

(ii) Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) and requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap. 622.

(iii) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis as modified by the revaluation of

investment properties which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(iv) New and amended standards adopted by the

AN [ &= =3
& 0F BF 15 i R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

2 FEEBREBEA

21 RBEXE(E)
(iv) KEFERK B FET R

Group 1T E A
(@ The Group has applied the following (a) K £ 2 Bt
standards and amendments for the first time 2020 F 9 H1H
for the annual reporting year commencing FI15 7Y F JZE &
September 1, 2020: FJZ B X
FER K& ET
K-

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
BEASTERE 1 5 RBBETERE 8 HISFTA

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BRI EWERERZE 3 HISFTA

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
2018 FH S E N RIER

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BAMERELRERZE 16 HISFTA

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
ERMBMEERE 95 - BAFEERE 39 /R
BRI MERERE 7 FISFTA

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
EBMBSMERERIE 9 5% - BEGFAERIZE 39 5
EEMBMELERE 7 5% - BEVBREELE 4 5%
REBIGRELERE 16 FEFTAR

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

Definition of Material

EANER

Definition of a Business

EBHER

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

MR E ISR B SIER

Leases — COVID-19 related rent concessions
HE — A IERETE SR E

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

eSS e

Interest Rate Benchmart Reform — Phase 2

FHEERE — £ 2 R

EXPTHMERT AN 38 1 HA ) RE SR A & BRI
EMFE  BRFAEHAHEIAKAR
ERERTE -
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CRLb R E ks

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
BE20215F8A31BLLFE

(B = HEBEI BT 2 EUAREERT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(iv) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (Cont’d)

TEETREREE(A)

21 RBEXE(E)

(b) Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for application for the
year ended Auqust 31, 2021 and have not
been early adopted by the Group. These
standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions:

(iv) 7= BIRA 89 F5T K

AIETER (&)

(b)

T g EA

;@#Eﬁ}ﬁffﬁ/ﬂ
ﬁF Bt & 22021
F8H3H IFF
R EH - A
18] & B 7K E F 1E
B o ZFE
AR T & R
& AR 8t K A
& B R ¢ N &
2 [t 1 5] 78 2 A7
KK Z &K E

= 4B .
AFE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RUATS B #isk 2 1£ Fta e

BRI

Accounting Guideline 5 (revised)

Ell:#‘]{El %l%sﬂ;(i«( uT)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BERMBREEAEIRUEFTA)
HKAS 16 (Amendments)
SRR E 165 (15T A)
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

= E+EEIJ%37‘E§(

Annual Improvements

&1

FEE
HKAS 1 (Amendment)

ER G ERE 1R (ERTA)
HKFRS 17
BEMGREERNE1T75R

HK Interpretation 5 (Amendment)

ERRBE S (BFIA)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

}%ﬁﬁ‘“i& RIS 10 57 &%
BEETMERISE 28 5% (BRI A)

Revised Accounting
Guideline 5 Merger Accounting

KAEEI Bt ol Foh A et RE

Business combinations

XA 6

Property, plant and equipment

mE - BERRME

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets

B SNBERIAEE

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS standards 2018-2020
(amendments)

B 7S B 7% i &5 2 RI2018 4 £ 20204F )
FEBoE (BRI AN)

Presentation of financial statements’ on

classification of liabilities
BESHEK 23 M B ]RE
Insurance contracts
Riga 4
Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

fERAS B B EREERRNE HER

EIJ \*E
Sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and
its associate or Jomt venture
HAEREBENA A SR BN
BEHEHLE

January 1, 2022

20221 H1H
January 1, 2022
2022%1R1H
January 1, 2022
20221 H1H
January 1, 2022

20221 H1H
January 1, 2022
20221 R1H
January 1, 2023
20231 H1H
January 1, 2023

2023 1H1H
January 1, 2023

202341 A1H
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.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEF TS SRR BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability

to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(@)

Subsidiaries controlled through contractual
arrangements

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Xizang
Huali Shengda Information Technology Limited (“XZ
Huali”), entered into the contractual arrangements with
the Huali College Guangdong University of Technology
("Huali College”), subsequently renamed as Guangzhou
Huali College upon the completion of the Conversion of
Huali College on May 31, 2021, Guangzhou Huali Science
and Technology Vocational College (“Huali Vocational
College”) and Guangdong Province Huali Technician
College (“Huali Technician College”), (collectively the
“PRC Operating Entities”), and the legal owner of the
PRC Operating Entities, on March 23, 2017 and entered
into supplemental contractual agreements on August
30, 2018 (collectively referred to as the Contractual
Arrangements), which enable XZ Huali and the Group to:

—  exercise effective control over the PRC Operating
Entities and Huali Investment;
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2

154

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(@) Subsidiaries controlled through contractual

arrangements (Cont’d)

receive substantially all of the economic interest
returns generated by the PRC Operating Entities
and Huali Investment in consideration for the
corporate management and educational services,
as well as technical and business support services
provided by XZ Huali. Such services include
development, design, upgrade and ordinary
maintenance on educational software and website;
design on college course and major; compilation
and selection and/or recommendation on college
course materials; recruitment and training
supporting on teachers and other employees;
admission and enrollment supporting services;
public relation services; market research and
development services; management and marketing
consulting and related services; and other additional
services as the parties may mutually agree from
time to time;

Huali University Group Limited

2021 Annual Report

2

22 MEB QTR (E&)
221458 AR (4)
BBEH TP
&y B B 2 7]
gs.'?

TEEHRERBE(A

7 EE R
HorxER
KB R
iy B2 2 7% X
FF AR 75 W BR A
BEEERERK
BEYRENR
N <
@Bl Z%E
R BIEHRE
R
FE - RE
FAKRAE#
& RET KRB
RIEERFE
B R ok
BREREH
Mo HBhREE
AN 55 3 2 AD K
HmES © #
EANBRYT
B REFBRE
Br 7% : 3%
ERG  BERE
MEHE W R
HEARS @ &
HESE=V N2
B 2 @ 1 E
7 E b BT 0 AR
7%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHEBEHE(F
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 22 BT (&)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd) 221 578 AR (#4)

(a) Subsidiaries controlled through contractual (a) BBEHZTHE

arrangements (Cont’d) M08 oA
(%

— obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to — S A By

purchase all equity interests in the PRC Operating
Entities and Huali Investment from the respective
equity holders at nil consideration or a minimum
purchase price permitted under PRC laws and
regulations. XZ Huali may exercise such options at
any time until it has acquired all equity interests
in and/or all assets of the PRC Operating Entities
and Huali Investment permitted under PRC laws
and regulations. In addition, the PRC Operating
Entities and Huali Investment are not allowed to
sell, transfer, or dispose any assets, or make any
distributions to their equity holders without prior

consent of XZ Huali; and

obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of
the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment
from their equity holders to secure performance
of the obligations of the PRC Operating Entities
and Huali Investment under the Contractual
Arrangements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(@) Subsidiaries controlled through contractual

arrangements (Cont’d)

The Group does not have any equity interest in
the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment.
However, as a result of the Contractual
Arrangements, the Group has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the PRC
Operating Entities and Huali Investment and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the PRC Operating Entities and
Huali Investment, and is considered to control
the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment.
Consequently, the Company regards the PRC
Operating Entities and Huali Investment as the
indirect subsidiaries under HKFRSs. The Group has
included the financial position and results of the
PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries controlled through contractual
arrangements (Cont’d)

Nevertheless, the Contractual Arrangements may not
be as effective as direct legal ownership in providing
the Group with direct control over the PRC Operating
Entities and Huali Investment, due to the uncertainties
presented by the PRC legal system to impede the Group's
beneficiary rights of the results, assets and liabilities
of the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment.
The Directors, based on the advice of its legal counsel,
consider that the Contractual Arrangements among the
PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment and their
equity shareholders are in compliance with the relevant
PRC laws and regulations and are legally enforceable.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owner of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
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SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(b)

Business combination (Cont’d)

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognized in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHEBEHE(F
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 22 BT (&)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd) 221 578 AR (#4)
(b) Business combination (Cont’d) b) EFESG(E

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognized and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognized directly in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.
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2
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1 AT =
B 75 R R B A
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

SUMMARY

B EBEUARERT)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
It means the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

2.4

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker

("“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been

identified as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
entities within the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). Since the majority of
the assets and operations of the Group are located in the PRC,
the consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group's

presentation currency.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income within ‘finance expenses — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income within ‘other losses —
net’.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income during the financial year in which they are

incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs, net of their residual

values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40-50 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Electronic equipment 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-20 years
Interior decoration 3-5 years
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHREME(E
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 25 ¥ -BERREE)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting year.

During the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group revised the
estimated total useful lives of certain categories of school buildings
from 40 years to 50 years. The effect of such changes in accounting
estimates is set out in Note 4.2.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within ‘other
losses — net’ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.

Construction in progress represents buildings, electronic equipment,
furniture and fixtures and interior decoration under construction and
is stated at cost less impairment losses. Historical expenditure that is
directly attributable to the construction comprises construction costs,
the cost of plant and machineries and applicable borrowing costs
incurred during the construction year. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred to relevant
categories of property, plant and equipment and depreciated in

accordance with the policy as stated above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It also includes
properties that are being constructed or developed for future use
as investment properties. Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest of the definition
of an investment property is met. In such cases, the operating
leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. After
initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
as part of a revaluation gain or loss in ‘other losses — net'.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
carried at fair value, the Group applies HKAS 16 up to the date of
change in use. The Group treats any difference at that date between
the carrying amount of the property in and its fair value in as a
revaluation in accordance with HKAS 16. In other words, any resulting
increase in the carrying amount is treated as follows:

(i) to the extent that the increase reverses a previous impairment
loss for that property, the increase is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

(i)  any remaining part of the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and increases the revaluation surplus

within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the computer software. Computer software
is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the computer software for 5 years. Amortization of computer
software is calculated on the straight-line method over 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit

or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.9.1 Classification (Cont’d)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are recorded in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments into the following measurement category:

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
method.

The Group held trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and other financial assets at amortized cost
during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHREHME(E
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

210EEmIT A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized

cost

The Group’s significant financial assets, which are subject to the
new expected credit loss model, include trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties and other financial assets at
amortized cost. The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets.

2.11.1 Trade receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables and requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. See Note

3.1(b) for details of the impairment policy of trade receivables.

2.11.2 Other receivables and amounts due from
related parties
For other receivables and amounts due from related parties,
management considers that its credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is determined based on the

12-month expected credit losses which is close to zero.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHREME(E
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized

QNMNRBREAEAARNERME

168

cost (Cont’d)
2.11.3 Other financial assets at amortized cost

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortized cost. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

2.12 Contract assets and liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains
rights to receive consideration from the customer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer goods or services to the customer.
The combination of those rights and performance obligations gives
rise to a net asset or a net liability depending on the relationship
between the remaining rights and the performance obligations. The
contract is an asset and recognized as contract assets if the measure
of the remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the
satisfied performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability
and recognized as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining
performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
financial institutions and short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less. Bank deposits which are restricted
to use are included in “restricted cash”. Restricted cash is excluded
from cash and cash equivalents where preparing in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHREME(E
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Accruals and other payables QISEGEARHMENRE

Accruals and other payables and amounts due to related parties are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or within the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,

they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Other payables and amounts due to related parties are recognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income over the year of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, canceled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as other income or

finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the end of the reporting year.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBEAE
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.17 Borrowing costs 217 B R &
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the e BE « ZRAAEESEBREE (A
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are EHERBEREAERERSEK
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready HENBEE) BEEEN — RN
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, REFK RS AZFEEERNK
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended N BEEZEEAEAROEERTE
use or sale. R HERIE -
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific NEEREAERBEERYINET
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted 1B S fT R IS A BT BB I
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. B U A e B B EE AR Y B FRRR AR
FHER o
All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the year FEEMERKEARELEFER
in which they are incurred. BmER -
2.18 Current and deferred income tax 218 EHRIEZEMEHR
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. ERBENYOESHLETR
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive - HMEREHES KRR AN
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in R HERNEMEESREERINE
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax ERERERNIE B BER I
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, HUERT  REITS BIREAM
respectively. ARG HERNEE N ESER o
(a) Current income tax (a) BERAEH
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of EHFREHRESXRERA R
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance LRERB AT S E/RERE
sheet date in the countries where the Company and its HESHIMANBERNGEE
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management HE Bz E L B a5
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect EREE - ERERERMR
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to BERBRERBARNBRE
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the HFE (SR = AR - WA
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. BABR T IRIEFE AR
T4 6 BR 2 15 B9 B R R E
1 e
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HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESHHREME(E)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d) 2QISEHMRIELERBH (&)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEFFE#

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally, the Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The entities within the Group registered in the PRC make
employee benefit contributions base on certain percentage
of the salaries of the employees to a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan and medical benefit plan organized by
relevant government authorities in the PRC on a monthly basis.
The government authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligation payable to the existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions
made. Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
Assets of the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separate from those of the Group.

Housing funds

The PRC employees of the Group are also entitled to participate
in various government-sponsored housing funds. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to those funds based on a
certain percentage of the employee’s salaries. The Group's
liabilities in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each year. The non-PRC employees are not covered

by the housing funds.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHREME(E
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.20 Provisions 22081

Provisions are recognized when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue represents tuition fees and boarding fees from provision of

services by the universities of the Group.

Tuition and boarding fees are generally received in advance prior
to the beginning of each academic year and are initially recorded
as contract liabilities. Tuition and boarding fees are recognized
proportionately over the terms of the applicable program or the
beneficial period for the students, where applicable. The portion of
tuition and boarding payments received from students but not yet
earned is recorded as contract liabilities.

Rental income of property leasing under operating leases is recognized

on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

2.22 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income over the year
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.23 Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable

3 variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

3 amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees

3 the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

3 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay/to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with

similar terms, security and conditions.
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HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESHHREME(E)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.23 Leases (Cont’d) 2230 & (#)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

3 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date

less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles
and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(Note 6). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognized as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of

adopting the new leasing standard.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

3 SREKRER
31 TR ARER
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market AEEXBEHSZES AR
risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and fair value T35 R & (8 1E 50 E [ b F 3R 2 7t
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall risk ERATEMNMERR) EERR
management program of the Group focuses on the unpredictability of Ern#hEcmk - ALBE 2 EE
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on EREEBEAZHZRRESMTS 2
financial performance of the Group. A AN BEERIEAEE
MBERENEETHEZE -
farket r | @ FEAr
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (i) SNEE JE Bz
The Group operates in the PRC with most transactions AEERFHEE -
being settled in RMB, which is the functional currency REZHERFHUREE
of the Group’s companies. The Group currently does not AR EEEAR
have a foreign currency hedging policy, and manages its BeikE o NEEE R
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement I 8 S EE SR BUR
of the foreign currency rates. I 335 38 R ) BE BN
ME 5 B B) F 12 SN E [
feata
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REFKEEHR  AEE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the LASNEESHERM B &
respective balance sheet dates are follows: ERBENREAEN
T
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB’000)
Sh s B B
(AARBFTRT)
As at August 31,
M"8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Monetary assets denominated in HK$ UBTTRHEM S EE
— Cash and cash equivalents — ReRkBESEEY 22,623 461,402
— Restricted cash — XRFIFEE 1,041 —
23,664 461,402
Monetary assets denominated in US$ LASETTRHER B A E
— Cash and cash equivalents — BeRkBESEEY 1,282 16,497
— Other receivables — HibfEURIE 310 216
— Other financial assets — B ARRE
at amortized costs HibemEE 6,450 6,353
8,042 23,066
Monetary liabilities denominated in HK$ B TsHERNEK AE
— Other payables — HAbERFKIA 4 —
— Borrowings — &5 124,605 —
124,609 G
Monetary liabilities denominated in US$ AETHENSHEEE
— Other payables — HibERFIE 27 89
(92,930) 484,379
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HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

(if)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5%
change in RMB against the relevant foreign currencies.
The sensitivity analysis includes only foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year-end for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. If there is a 5% increase/(decrease) in RMB against
the relevant currencies, the effect in the post-tax profit
for the year is as follows:

3 SRERE

(&)

31 siEREE (&)

(a)
()

5 (E)

S EE JE B (4B )
TRIRARERA
B SN W B B 5% H) B
REDH - WRED
WMEBREUINEEE
WEKIEE - Wk
e [E R B B 5% B
HERKE - MAR
M EEBESAES
(B2fE)5%  HE R
MENBEHZE W
T

As at August 31,

MN8A31H

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB T AR®EF T

5% increase in RMB against HK$ AR H B TTHES% 5,056 (23,069)
5% decrease in RMB against HK$ AR B TAZES% (5,056) 23,069
5% increase in RMB against US$ AR HETAES% (336) (960)
5% decrease in RMB against US$ AR TR ES% 336 960
Cash flow and fair value interests rate risk () Bz ki-FE

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Borrowings obtained at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which
is partially offset by cash at bank with floating interest
rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. Other than the
loan due to a related party bearing interest at fixed rate
during the year ended August 31, 2021 as disclosed in
Note 33, all of the Group’s borrowings bore interest at
floating rates during the years ended August 31, 2021
and 2020.
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FINANCIAL

3.1 Financial

RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
risk factors (Cont’d)

(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

(b)

Cash flow and fair value interests rate risk
(Cont’d)

Bank deposits carried at prevailing market interest rate
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group closely monitors trend of interest rate and its
impact on the Group’s interest rate risk exposure. The
Group currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate risk
should the need arise.

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, if the interest rates on
the borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower
than the prevailing rate announced by People’s Bank of
China, with all other variables held constant, interest
charges for the year would have been RMB11,602,000
and RMB8,840,000 higher/lower, respectively.

The Group monitor interest rate fluctuation to ensure that
exposure to interest rate risk is within an acceptable level.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying

amounts of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade

and other receivables, amounts due from related parties and

other financial assets at amortized cost.

At August 31, 2021 and 2020, substantially all of the Group’s
bank deposits were deposited with major financial institutions

incorporated in the Mainland of PRC, Hong Kong and Macao,

which management believes are of high credit quality without

significant credit risk.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The Group assessed the credit quality of the counter parties
by taking into account their financial position, credit history
and other factors. Management also regularly reviews the
recoverability of these receivables and follow up the disputes or
amounts overdue, if any. The Directors are of the opinion that
the risk of default by counter parties is low.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

The general expected credit loss model is summarized below:

The financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1" and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group. The expected credit loss
is measured on a 12-month basis.

If a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is
identified, the financial instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The expected credit loss
is measured on lifetime basis.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”. The expected credit
loss is measured on lifetime basis.

(b = F 75 B 5

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
B BUNREEXT)

cREREE (&)
31 siEREE (&)
(b) EER (&)

AEEYESAEEETRA
@ AEERIRBEZZ T
BBMAN - EELEREM
AEFER5TNEEEZ
= - BRE RS E B %
FFE YRR H A B It -
I 3R 4 5 5 2k 8 1 OB (18
) BEERRXZHIME
MR -

AR R A 2
BB - LA
BEHNEERARE SRS
EEEN - AR BEETE
BHARREHMAEE
¥ o

—RIBHEEEERE G
|

156 T R B 3 RS BORE
MEBIESBERIFE K
Bl BEASEFERERE
EERR - HHEEBRR
1218 A E £ & -

M EREZR L EE
B AREN SR T A
BEIE-_RE] #EHEX
BEEERE BHEES
BIRGEHREENE -

e TARREERE -
PRMIAKSEBEIE=
BB - TBHEEEBIBER
BEHIEEANE -

HEIRZEABRAR 179
2021 FE#HE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& 0F B 15 3R MY 5
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HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 EREARER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 e@ERER (&)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) EER (&)

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for REERAEBM G RELE

expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits RISE9SR T WIS 5 T3 A 5

the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade TAHEEBETREE - %

receivables and requires expected lifetime losses to be TER FHRTA BT EAE S

recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. BB B 5 U I R &
& W E KB IR R IE K
HIERERBERFERE
18-

The loss allowance of trade receivables was determined as B 5 B FIR N B E R

follows: LATHRAEFE :

During the years ended #HZ202148A31H Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years

August 31, 2021 IHEE DR1E 12265 2FE3F

Expected loss rate TEEEIE R 0.2% 7.8% 50%

During the years ended # E202058A31H Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years

August 31, 2020 LEE DR1E 12245 283

Expected loss rate TEHIEEEX 0.2% 25% 50%

The Group assessed the loss allowance of trade receivables NEFRBEHEEANTEHEZEBREBOTE

based on an assessment of the expected credit losses to be (BHEEEFWRAIEDT (G LA & BTE AR

incurred, including an assessment of the historical collection (pEA)) Mt E S EW R IEN E R -

rate and forward looking adjustments when applicable.

The expected credit loss rate of trade receivables which were BEF A EE2F AN E S FE W SKIE A T8 B

overdue over 1 year but within 2 years decreased from 25% EEEBXRXBEHZE2020E8A31HIEEEHN

for the year ended August 31, 2020 to 7.8% due to the 25% N BEZE7.8%  THEH N E([EE £202148

decrease in historical loss rate of trade receivables throughout ANBIEFENESENZENBEEIEXR

the year ended August 31, 2021. Management increased efforts WA M FER  BEEEAREZERIKE

to collect tuition and boarding fees by developing various BB ENINRERR)ERTEWERS MK T

collection channels such as Wechat Mini Program and improving WHEBLETZBEENHE

fee collection systems in current years.

The Directors are of the view that the industrial characteristics BEEARA FEEBEEE2021F K20205484

factors with regard to trade receivables collections have been BMMBILFENBEHEESEXRKE BE2EA

taken into accounts in the assessment on the expected credit BN E SERRIBEBHNITESSREZ -

loss rate throughout the years ended August 31, 2021 and

2020.
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YA ans = =
& OF BT 7 e 2k B 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(c)

Management has closely monitored the credit qualities and
the collectability of these receivables and considers that the
expected credit risks of them are minimal in view of the history
of cooperation with them and forward looking information.
Trade receivables were mainly tuition and boarding fees
receivables. The loss allowance provision for these balances was
not material and no provision was recorded during the years
ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally generated
cash flows from operations and borrowings from financial
institutions. As at August 31, 2021, the Group held available
deposits of RMB880,752,000 and expected to readily generate
cash inflows from the tuition income and boarding income
for managing liquidity risk. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group treasury maintains flexibility in
funding by committed credit lines. As at August 31, 2021, the
Group has successfully obtained certain long-term bank facilities
totaling RMB666,527,000 to cope with the planned capital
expenditures. The Group will consider to obtain more banking
facilities when there is any likehood of shortfall in working
capital.

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

3 TRRKREEREE)

31 siEREE (&)
(b) EER (&)

(c)

ERETERZERUGK
EHWEEE = &l E iR
B ERERENRTAE
RATEMHER  RBZER
HREHEERRIGEK - &
SRWABEEZERE WSS
REBE  -HZE2021F K
20208 A31HIEFER -
RERBOBABREBESEL
TEKX - WA EEL B -

BB EE
AEERDECER A&
EERWHAREREERR
AEMREEREEEY
KFE - ERAEEEELS
WRHERERERBDH
2 AEEEHRERLCEE
EHNBRERE RS R
BERENKRRERERH
koo R2021F8A31H » &
SEBEABHRATRARE
880,752,000 7T * H 78 Hi /]
PR EBMARTEE R
AESHESRANREERR
BHECER o AR ERER
WBIREME - AEEH B
BRAAEREER #EES
BOEM - B Z=20219F8A31
B AEBECKNESET
RHERTEEALEARE
666,527,000 70 * FA 7 & &
AR - BEERS
AR NI E R - AEEB
EEERMEZEITEE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 EREARER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 31 e@ERER (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (c) “EELREE (&)
The table below analyzes the Group’s non-derivative financial TROMDOBRBEEBRES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the WEHBANFISRFERBAE
remaining year at the balance sheet date to the contractual BRETESRAEESEAR
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the ERAEIEA B AR o RIEH I
contractual undiscounted cash flows. ENSBEASHRMERS

mE e
Less than Between Between Over
Tyear 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
PME 122f 2E5% SELE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥Tr AR%TR AR®Tr ARETR
As at August 31, 2021 R2021%8A318
Borrowings EE
(principal plus interests) (R&mFL) 326,261 395,392 1,406,947 580,010 2,708,610
Accruals and other payables EAERREMEMNKE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (T &IEFELRE E 363,077 153,043 80,692 — 596,812
Amounts due to related parties  JE{ B 7i0E 45,415 53,487 — — 98,902
Total @5t 734,753 601,922 1,487,639 580,010 3,404,324
As at August 31, 2020 R2020%8A31H
Bank borrowings RITER
(principal plus interests) (K& mFg) 230,889 242,947 1,182,300 447,597 2,103,733
Accruals and other payables B ERREMERNKE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (T EEFELRBERE) 259,809 — 8,020 — 267,829
Amounts due to related parties  JE{TEA % 5 7R 21,251 — — — 21,251
Total @5t 511,949 242,947 1,190,320 447,597 2,392,813

182 Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total debt (including external borrowings and
financing portion of amounts due to related parties shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) divided by total equity.

The gearing ratios as at August 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

AN
=

It B 75 R R Y A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

3 TRRKREEREE)

3.2

EXEH

AEBEEEARAN B NEEAN
SEEHTELE  RIRRREHR
[E] e 37 7% L At ) 22 48 BE 77 2 G A
CBAEEAREE  BUREAK

o

H Bk

RERFIFEEARE  A5H
FEFHBERNTREORE S
HORBEATRR  BITHR
MR EEEAHIREE -

AEBREEELEELER -
£ (R R BT (R A D AE
£ 18 7 BT #0 51 85 5 30 R 8 14 B
BT OB RE K5 ) R AR M2
5 -

MR20214 % 2020568 A31HM &
BLERMT ¢

As at August 31,

MW8A31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®EF T
Total debt BIET 2,320,385 1,789,199
Total equity 1 2,685,405 2,676,818
Gearing ratio BELE 86% 67%

The increase in the gearing ratio as at August 31, 2021 resulted
primarily from additional borrowings made by the Group during the
year ended August 31, 2021.

MR2021F8A3MEHMEBELEEA T2 2H
RAREBREZ2021F8A31B ILEFEREL

BIME K °
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(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

3

184

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value or where fair value was
disclosed can be categorized by levels of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The inputs are categorized into

three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

3 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

3 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

See Note 16 for disclosures of the investment properties that are

measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets including cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties and other financial assets at
amortized cost and financial liabilities including current accruals and
other payables, current amounts due to related parties, and current
borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.
The fair values of non-current borrowings are estimated based on
discounted cash flow using the prevailing market rates of interest
available to the Group for financial instruments with substantially
the same terms and characteristics at the respective balance sheet
dates. The carrying amount of the Group’s non-current amounts due
to related parties and non-current accruals and other payables also
approximate their fair values because they are recognized by taking
into account the imputed interest rates.

Huali University Group Limited
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FEF TS SRR BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Contractual Arrangements

The Group conducts a substantial portion of the business
through the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment in the
PRC due to regulatory restrictions on the foreign ownership
in the Group’s schools in the PRC. The Group does not
have any equity interest in the PRC Operating Entities and
Huali Investment. The Directors assessed whether or not the
Group has control over the PRC Operating Entities and Huali
Investment by assessing whether it has the rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the PRC Operating Entities
and Huali Investment and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the PRC Operating Entities and Huali
Investment. After assessment, the Directors concluded that the
Group has control over the PRC Operating Entities and Huali
Investment as a result of the Contractual Arrangements and
accordingly the financial position and the operating results of
the PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment are included in
the Group's consolidated financial statements throughout the
years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 or since the respective
dates of incorporation/establishment, whichever is the shorter
period. Nevertheless, the Contractual Arrangements may not be
as effective as direct legal ownership in providing the Group
with direct control over the PRC Operating Entities and Huali
Investment and uncertainties presented by the PRC legal system
could impede the Group’s beneficiary rights of the results,
assets and liabilities of the PRC Operating Entities and Huali
Investment. The Directors, based on the advice of its PRC legal
counsel, consider that the Contractual Arrangements with the
PRC Operating Entities and Huali Investment and their equity
shareholders are in compliance with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations and are legally enforceable.

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

4 BREIHEERHE

B RHAHFEENBEERREMRAE
(BEEEEFHBERTERENYE R
REMHOER)FETME

41 BARETHTREBR
AN & B B R R AE AT R RER
E%M% UL 15 A & St At
/Eﬁi,\ n’:n%*ﬁ?? ° TE—_[EJ%%
ﬁﬁTlMﬁiEéE&%ﬁu
EEFLEERAREN T REBER
HEAMT o
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Cont’d)
(b) Income taxes and deferred taxation

186

(c)

According to the Implementation Rules for the Law for
Promoting Private Education (“Implementing Rules”), private
schools, whether requiring reasonable returns or not, may enjoy
preferential tax treatment. The Implementing Rules provide
that the private schools for which the sponsors do not require
reasonable returns are eligible to enjoy the same preferential
tax treatment as public schools, and relevant authorities under
the State Council may introduce preferential tax treatments
and related policies applicable to private schools requiring
reasonable returns. However, as of the date of this report, no
separate policies, regulations or rules have been introduced by
the authorities in this regard. Based on the historical tax returns
filed to the relevant tax authorities, the PRC Operating Entities
have historically enjoyed preferential tax treatment since their
establishment.

Significant judgment is required in interpreting the relevant tax
rules and regulation so as to determine whether the Group
is subject to corporate income tax. This assessment relies
on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of
judgments about future events. New information may become
available that causes the Group to change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of the tax liabilities. Such changes
to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the year that such
determination is made.

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment, and reviews the useful lives and residual
values periodically to ensure that the method and rates of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
realization of economic benefits from property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual residual values and useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and economic
environment changes in response to severe industry cycles. If
there are significant changes from previously estimated useful
lives and residual values, the amount of depreciation expenses
may change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Cont’d)
(d) Fair value of investment properties
Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The board of directors of the
Company determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. When level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The Directors of the Company
work closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The fair value of investment properties is determined by using
valuation technique. Details of the judgment and assumptions
have been disclosed in Note 16.

4.2 Revision of useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

In view of enhanced maintenance measures taken for the school
buildings in recent years and better quality framework and materials
applied for the constructions, the Group revised the estimated total
useful lives of certain categories of school buildings. The estimated
useful lives of the these buildings have been changed from 40
years to 50 years. The change has been applied prospectively from
September 1, 2020.

Assuming the assets are held until the end of their estimated useful
lives, the net effect of the changes in the current year was a decrease
in depreciation expense of RMB10,622,000.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
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EHEEFI  FTEEEUARERT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of private tertiary education
and ancillary services in the PRC. The Group's chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM") has been identified as the executive directors who

considers the business from the service perspective.

Information reported to the CODM, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, is on a school by school basis.
Each individual school constitutes an operating segment. The services
provided and type of customers are similar in each operating segment,
and each operating segment is subject to similar regulatory environment.
Accordingly, their segment information is aggregated as a single reportable
segment. CODM assesses the performance of the reportable segment based
on the revenue and gross profit for the year of the Group as presented
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. The accounting
policies of the reportable segment are the same as the Group's accounting
policies described in Note 2. No analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities

is regularly provided to the management of the Group for review.

As at August 31, 2021, approximately 85% of the carrying values of the
Group’s assets are situated in the PRC mainland. All of the Group's revenue
are derived from activities in, and from customers located in the PRC

mainland and no geographical segment analysis is prepared.

Revenue during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

/'\ﬁBﬁﬂ

AERTERTERERBRSEHS
REER - AEENEBLEREE
([EEREREE)RITES » Hit
RIEAEEBER -

EEREHDOHERTEBLER
H UESBEERRTE D HRIE -
ﬁ%&%&*1%%9ﬁ0%” BN

EHARS KBS EAEM - FTEE
Ahaﬁﬁw B ERD A RHE
RE—TA 2R EETERL - FTELE
ARERBEFRAEBERAZIHAR
SEFAKEREFNTEAZ2HRD HH
R A 2| IBH L ETBUR EHT 2
Frt AR =B 5t BRAAR o W &ET #Hm
AEEEBERBASELEERAED
DT AL EER] o

Dﬂ]i
= >3*‘>I

R202158A31H AEBEEEY
85%MEEMNPE AN - NEBAA
W5 2R B R B A b B 2 7 e R B A 3
B WERRIME D B

HE20219F %2020F8A31HIEFER
Wesan R

Year ended August 31,
HES8A3MALEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T

Recognized over time RE R EERER
— Tuition fees —BEs 813,324 732,721
— Boarding fees — AR E 68,332 28,760
881,656 761,481

Tuition fees and boarding fees are recognized proportionately over each
school year. No customers individually accounted for more than 10% of the
Group's revenue during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.
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OTHER INCOME

FEF TS SRR BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(b = F 75 B 5

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
B HUAREEXT)

6 HMWA

Year ended August 31,
BZ8A3MBILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARB TR AR T
Rental income e WA 11,199 7,522
Government subsidies KT %8 B 7,819 11,789
Bookselling income BZHEEWA 7,213 —
Training service income =TT PN 4,555 —
Service income from a related party R B BT 80 AR 75 Uk A 2,330 —
Service income of school-enterprise REEEEB RB KA
cooperation projects 1,101 —
Interest income on other financial assets RE AR AN ABR A H fh & 3
at amortized cost BEHF KA 903 309
35,120 19,620
OTHER LOSSES — NET 7 BEMEEZE
Year ended August 31,
B Z8A3MRILLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AR T T
Compensation fee for the Conversion N = E & (T Fa)
of Huali College (Note a) (150,849) —
Net exchange losses (ERT = De-t (18,242) (5,490)
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment &Y% - ME R REHEIR (73) (2,208)
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 16) ‘EYE RN FE K= (K sE16) 14,561 2,800
Others HAb 2,675 1,625
(151,928) (3,273)

(@)  Pursuant to the Transitional Cooperation Agreement as disclosed in

Note 1,

Huali Investment and Huali College have agreed to pay a

one-off compensation fee to Guangdong University of Technology in
three installments and in an aggregate amount of RMB160,000,000,
of which RMB53,340,000, RMB53,330,000 and RMB53,330,000 shall

be paid by October 31, 2021, October 31,

2022 and October 31,

2023, respectively. The compensation fee was therefore recognized
at the fair value of RMB150,849,000 by discounting the future cash
flows using the effective interest rate of 4.75% per annum.

B 1R KT 51 FT WM B OE A
AlEmE ELREREY
EEEH%%E,HHW%%I
¥REBEIN-—AEHEE-
#\ i A K # 160,000,000 T °
H f A R ® 53,340,000 7T
A B ¥ 53,330,000 T & A R #
53,330,000 7T % Al 78 % 2021 F
10 A 31 H 2022 % 10 A 31 H
} 202310 A31 B AT+ » A
b HEBERERERFERNE
AT75%BFIRRRBESRE  BAQ
AR % 150,849,000 T FE R °
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8
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B FrE 2 AN REXRT)

EXPENSES BY NATURE

8 HEMEIIMEAX
Year ended August 31,
BZESH3MALEE

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETT

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) & 8 & 75 & (M 5£9) 190,301 151,595
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BERZETE

(Note 15) (PiF=E15) 79,610 76,815
Joint tuition support fees (Note a) EIRE (Mfita) 78,441 70,772
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 33,041 32,914
School consumables BRH 7 m 31,522 8,407
Property management fee MEERE 28,200 6,041
Utilities expenses NARBHAX 21,903 11,319
Marketing expenses &I R 21,596 11,744
Travel and entertainment expenses EREEFRX 10,782 10,548
Office expenses N 10,258 8,408
Rental expenses e 7,582 864
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 17) | EEHH (M E17) 4,887 1,793
Maintenance fee wEE 3,433 2,778
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 RN B &

— Audit services — Z#RE 2,849 3,186
Other taxes HBiE 1,207 1,220
Training expenses Bl & 1,094 1,026
Listing expenses EWAX — 12,453
Other expenses Hihh 13,703 11,651
Total cost of sales, selling expenses BEERT  HERXR

and administrative expenses THHX 540,409 423,534
(@) Huali College, a group entity entered into an agreement of (a) ZEVBR(—EEEER) EEY

cooperation with Guangdong University of Technology, the joint BB RPHERRIEARE

sponsor of Huali College, under which the Group will pay joint
tuition support fees to Guangdong University of Technology in each
academic year based on 17% of the tuition income from students
covered by the agreement of Huali College. The Group expects that
the agreement will remain enforceable until the completion of the

Transitional Cooperation Agreement.

Huali University Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

9

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

9 EERMMAX

Year ended August 31,
BZESH3MALEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR®EF T
Wages, salaries and bonuses I8 #HaeREA 167,631 135,119
Contribution to pension plan BRIREFT B 9,058 5,956
Welfare and other expenses B R EAM R 13,612 10,520
190,301 151,595

(a) Five highest paid individuals () EEEEH AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group FRNAEBFHNERSHREZ A
TEE=ZH2Q2020F : =HK)F
= HM S KRR EE35(a) T R
DT o F RN T M A (2020

FoMB)ALHHMESMT :

for the year include three (2020: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 35(a). The emoluments
payable to the remaining two (2020: two) individuals during the year

are as follows:

Year ended August 31,
BZ8A3MBLLEE

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Wages, salaries and bonuses ITE  HFeRIED 1,619 2,609
Contribution to pension plan RIKE FT &I 29 39
Welfare and other expenses 8 7 B HoAth B 52 103 97
1,751 2,745

Y REEAGRA A 191
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
BE20215F8A31BLLFE

(5 HEBS  FTH 2 BEUARERT)

9

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont’d)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d)

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell

within the following bands:

9 EEEABEX (&)
(a)

LERR#FAL (&)
SEFHAEFALTOFHAR
SR HE -

Year ended August 31,
HES8A3MALEE

2021 2020
20215 20204

Emolument bands 3 B %5 &
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$1,000,000-HK$2,000,000 1,000,000 7T 22,000,000 JT 1 2
2 2

During the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020, none of the
five highest paid individuals waived or has agreed to waive any

emoluments, and none of the five highest paid individuals received

emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or upon joining

the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

10 FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

192

B £2021%F 202098 A31H It
FEARN AEREHATBHER
ZEREEMEEOHNE  FEK
BRAEENME ERMAKREE
K A0 A AN 62 [ 1 RO 22 ) =k i BB

18 e

10 B35 X F 5

Year ended August 31,
BZESHA3MALEE

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARKETT
Finance income: 073 ONE
— Bank interest income — RITASWA 8,735 8,332
Finance expenses: MBHAX
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings — |RITERF R (86,701) (67,210)
— Interest expenses on other borrowings — FETRAR 7 M E A B R
due to a related party (Note 33(b)) FEFZ (FIFE33(0)) (10,222) =
Less: borrowing costs capitalized in property, W W BB REREBEEAR R
plant and equipment (Note a) BB (PfidiEa) 34,539 31,414
— Interest expenses on discount of compensation — FETEEN B R E
payable for the Conversion of Huali College FIEME B A S X (1,159) =
— Interest expenses on discount of amount — FET AR TRIERY
due to a related party RS — (15,896)
(63,543) (51,692)
Net finance expenses M55 (54,808) (43,360)
(@)  The capitalization rate used to determine the amount of borrowing (@ EBEEBTEALCLHNERKAZ

costs to be capitalized is the interest rate applicable to the entity’s
borrowings for construction during the year. The capitalization rates
were 4.75% and 5.38% for the years ended August 31, 2021 and

2020 respectively.

Huali University Group Limited
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 1M1 FBHAX

(a) Cayman Islands profits tax (a) BAEHBFNE
The Company and its direct subsidiary were incorporated in the AR R EEENBARRAS
Cayman Islands as exempted companies with limited liability under the HERERESHES R aEZMK
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, are exempted UREREEREELAT At
from income tax. AR BEEH -

(b) Hong Kong profits tax (b) EEAFEB
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the Group B A £ B R E 220214 %2020
did not have assessable profits in Hong Kong during the years ended F8A3IBLEFEANEBR B I EEE
August 31, 2021 and 2020. RERBFHE WAL EREEF

1SR EH IR -
(c) PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) (c) PEEC¥MER(THED

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group’s entities
located in the Mainland China (the “PRC entities”) is 25% according
to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
effective on January 1, 2008.

According to the Implementation Rules for the Law for Promoting
Private Education (“Implementing Rules”), private schools, whether
requiring reasonable returns or not, may enjoy preferential tax
treatment. The Implementing Rules provide that the private schools
for which the sponsors do not require reasonable returns are eligible
to enjoy the same preferential tax treatment as public schools, and
relevant authorities under the State Council may introduce preferential
tax treatments and related policies applicable to private schools
requiring reasonable returns. Despite the fact that no separate
policies, regulations or rules have been introduced by the authorities
during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 and up to date
of this report, based on the historical tax returns filed to the relevant
tax authorities, the colleges within the Group have historically enjoyed

preferential tax treatment since their establishment.

Management considered that no CIT would be imposed by the local
tax bureau on the income from provision of formal educational
services based on the PRC relevant tax regulation. As a result, no
income tax expense was recognized for the income from the provision
of educational services in respect of the PRC Operating Entities during
the period.

EmBBD

1B ¥ 20084F 1 818 # 4 i P
ZEAREMBECEMBHIE)
ERBEAMNASEEE(FEH
BERDNCEMSHBAAREA
25% °

RIBFCR BB R A B IR
(TEBEEH]) RS RERS
BEREGEE®R YA ZXHB
BE  -BEREANRTE MRS
REPETBEREEER %D
RE] =B BA Y 2R AR
B8 - 1 B %5 BT T 8 AR B 6P 3k
EHTERREREBERHZR
MEROHEEERBBBEER -
BENEH E20214 K202058 A
BTHIEFERAREEARRERH
ERYEIIIETEE FEAK
BA - RERXTFHEHEER
MBTHRRE  AEBBEREK
UAR—BEEZXHIEESR -

EEERAS  RiET EAEBNE
B AR R T IE KR
E# B R A 1S WA B 2 P
BH - B > WL A E
EEEBIRHHERBH B AER
FSHAX -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)
(c) PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") (Cont'd)

Certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group registered in minority
autonomous regions, the PRC enjoyed preferential CIT rate, of which
the tax rate for XZ Huali is 15% based on the relevant tax regulations
of Tibet Autonomous Region, and the tax rate for Guangdong Huagin
Property Management Co., Ltd, Guangdong Huali Technology Co., Ltd,
Guangdong Huashi Education Support Service Co., Ltd and Guangdong
Shengli Technology Co., Ltd is also 15% based on the relevant tax
preferential policy granted to Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The
Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated in the periods subsequent to January 1, 2008.

(d) United States of America (“USA") corporate income

tax

No provision for USA corporate income tax was provided as the
Group did not have assessable profits in USA during the years ended

August 31, 2021 and 2020.

Analysis of the Group’s income tax expense is as follows:

1 FEBEx (&)

() HFEIREMREH(THEE
RFrEBl) (&)
AREETRAESBEKEA
ERfn2ANBANEELE
HEREBBE - Kk REE
BEARMBBBEER -
Y MBERIS% B RIS
B A 5 6 R B LTS I
EREDNEERARART &
REBHEERAT  EREM
BERDBEEBRLARERE
BRBEERATNHBENBI5% °

RIEBECREARLMBE S EAMEH
) AR B A AR S B A IR
TEMIINEZEEESRNKEE
Z10%% L FM MBI - i+ =
Wi EINE IR EEMEREE B
EFTARKBE - AT HARED
TEMBBE - REBBARZER
B A 3 B 37 Y BT /8 A B 722008
FIRAIREBEMEERAD IR
MR B TEINFL -

(d) ZFBRERE([EEH] &
EmMEH
A AN 5 B R B £20214F %2020
F8A3N B ILFENTEER I £
BREEHRAE KT EREFED
EMEHIRES -

AEBEMBHRAOMET :

Year ended August 31,
BZE8H3MALEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMWT T ARBTTT

Current tax on profits for the year (i) FERFEEE BATIE() 19,604 2,493
Deferred income tax (ii) TR IE PSR ii) 4,424 1,772
Deferred withholding tax (iii) IR E TR0 (iii) 2,144 =

26,172 4,265

194 Huali University Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

@)

(ii)

(iii)

Current tax on profits for the year mainly represent tax imposed
on dormitory management fee earned by Huali Investment
from the PRC Operating Entities, services income earned by
wholly foreign owned subsidiaries of the Group from the PRC
Operating Entities, rental income and joint tuition income from
two universities, and other taxable subsidies.

Deferred income tax represents tax on the revaluation gains
of investment properties and temporary differences on the
recognition of rental income.

As at August 31, 2021, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB2,144,000 was recognized on the temporary differences
arising from the services income earned by wholly foreign
owned subsidiaries of the Company from the PRC Operating
Entities (“WFOE").

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB145,815,000 and RMB131,741,000 have not been
recognized for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings amounting to RMB1,715,473,000 and
RMB1,549,900,000 of the PRC Operating Entities, respectively.
Such earnings are expected to be retained by the PRC
Operating Entities for reinvestment purposes and would not be
remitted to the school sponsor in the foreseeable future based
on management’s estimation of overseas funding requirements.

FEF TS SRR BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(b = F 75 B 5

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
B BUNREEXT)

11 88X (&)

(i)

(iii)

FAMNBENE AV IEERIE
METRENTEHSERR
RENEEEEE  AEE
SINEBEMBAREHEZ
EERRRAORBKA B
SWARMAAENERE
ST DA e L £ 8 SR 5 4 R A2
Wy Bi A °

BRIEFFSBIERRIREME
E s R R & WA K
ERMEEZEOBIA -

MR2021FE8A31H AKX
NAERINEEE KB R
([HEBELEKPE
EEEBRNGNREWAE
A ) B M 2 BE R SRR AT P
T A B AR®K2144,000

JC ©

2021 4 % 2020 £ 8 A
B1H AP ELEEE
BL2EHI»NBARE
1,715,473,000 7t &2 A R
1,549,900,000 7T H K [E @
BRNAINHEMNRER
EEMBHEaBEARE
145,815,000 7T & A R #
131,741,0007T - 1R IR & 12
BE8INE & TR -
EHBFNEHEPHEER
BREBANBRE TR
B 1% 2R 1 & [ [E] 22 A 2R i
/\ °
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(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d) 11 FrB8Hmx (&)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation
rate of PRC, the principal place of the Group’s operations, as

ARER B P 1S T A0 A B R B IR
EERARE(REBREER
B HEFENERS

follows: WAL TER :
Year ended August 31,
HZES8A3ZMHILEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before income tax FriS % A0 FE 169,631 310,934
Calculated at applicable corporate REACEMSHEANE
income tax rate 45,679 81,706
Exemption of corporate income tax N0 EBREHE R AB D E
for income from formal educational PSR
services (20,520) (78,416)
Previously unrecognized tax losses now BRI A Ea IR i
recouped to reduce current income tax W E] LA & BRRTE B (1,907) —
Tax losses for which no deferred income — REEFRIEIEFTEHEER
tax asset was recognized FHIEEIE 776 975
PRC corporate income tax PR EFTER 24,028 4,265
PRC withholding income tax B FE TS F 2,144 —
26,172 4,265

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income

REMEE K EERANSER

Year ended August 31,
BZESH3MALEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Deferred tax: Revaluation gains RIERIR - REYFEE AW
of investment properties

803 =
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREF
(a) Basic (a) EX
The basic earnings per share is calculated on the profit attributable to f% B R & F| i & = 2021 F &
owner of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary 2020F8 A3 H IEFE AR A F
shares in issue during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020. BRI EGEFDERUAB BITE

BRI A E -

Year ended August 31,
BZ8A3MBLLEE

2021 2020
202145 20204F
Profit attributable to owner of the Company NN B i AR AR R P4 A
(RMB’000) (AR¥TT) 143,459 306,669
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BT R INE T8
in issue (thousand shares) (FRR) 1,200,000 1,134,000
Basic earnings per share (expressed in RMB) BREKRZBF
(AARBITERTR) 0.120 0.270
(b) Diluted (b) #F
Diluted earnings per share presented is the same as the basic earnings 23N ERHERTEEGRE
per share as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued RNEFNHER @ BEERIEREZE2021
during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020. FK2020FE8 A31H IEFEFE RN I
BEBRTEEEEEAK -
13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE
Year ended August 31,
B Z8A3MALLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR®EF T
Final dividend, declared and paid, of RMB0.0626 EERESMERIEBER
(2020: nil) per ordinary share (Note (a)) ARB0.0626 TR R HAL B
(20204 - #&) (Kf 7)) 75,120 =
Special dividend, proposed and declared, B 5k &2 &A% S R
of RMBO0.0518 (2020: nil) per ordinary share AR #0.05187T 85 Rl AR B
(Note (b)) (20204 : #&) (Bt 7E(b)) 62,160 —
Interim dividend, declared and paid, of nil EEREIMNEREBER
(2020: RMBO0.051) per ordinary share (Note (c)) T HA AR B (20204 ¢
AR #0.0517) (Fif #(c) — 61,620
Total dividends provided for or paid R RBEI T ANRE A 137,280 61,620
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

13 DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)

During the year ended August 31, 2021, dividends were distributed out of

198

the Company’s share premium and were paid in cash (2020: paid in cash).

A final dividend for the year ended August 31, 2020 of RMB0.0626
per ordinary share, totaling approximately RMB75,120,000 has been
declared by the Company’s Annual General Meeting on January 20,
2021 and paid during the year ended August 31, 2021.

A special dividend for the year ended August 31, 2021 of RMB0.0518
per ordinary share, totaling approximately RMB62,120,000 has been
declared by the Board on July 21, 2021 and yet to be paid as at
August 31, 2021.

An interim dividend for the six months ended February 29, 2020 of
RMBO0.051 per ordinary share, totaling approximately RMB61,620,000
has been declared by the Board on April 16, 2020 and paid during
the year ended August 31, 2020.

Dividends not recognized at the end of the reporting years

13 KRE (&)
HE202148A31BHIEEER KA
AR A R BR 15 % B 2 R I AR €&
(2020%F : LB & X AF)

(@) B E202068A31HILEE -
i% i A% A R #0.06267T (B £ 4
AR #75,120,0007T) B K Hi A% &
ER2021F1 208 BT ARQ
AIREAFAE LTI - WHRE
F2021F8 A3 ALEFERALA -

(b) HZE2021FE8A31HILEE -
e @A A R#0.05187T (& 4
AR #62,120,0007T) B9 45 Bl AL &
EHEZERN2021E7A218 =
K B E202148A31B M A X
o

(0 #EE2020%2A298 1Lt<1@A -
FREBEBRARBK0051T(A H
AR #61,620,0007T ) &) HA %
EEBHESFEMN2020F4/816H
TR - WHRE E2020F8 A31H
LEFEERZN -

(d) RBEFERHEAERHRES
Year ended August 31,
BZ8A3MBILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Proposed final dividend of RMB0.0411 EEAPREERT AR
(2020: RMBO0.0626) per ordinary share AR¥0.04117T
(20204 : AR¥0.06267T) 49,320 75,120

A dividend in respect of the year ended August 31, 2021 of
RMBO0.0411 per ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend of
RMB49,320,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting
to be held on January 21, 2022. These financial statements do not

reflect this dividend payable.

Huali University Group Limited
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Group's interests in right-of-use assets represent consideration paid or

payable for obtaining the use rights of the land located in the PRC and

which were held on leases from 29 to 50 years.

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

14 FRHEESE

AEENERREEERGIERESUN
HE B EAS Y F29E 504 2 £t #9158 A
T E N HEMEKAE -

Right-of-use
assets
ERAEEE
RMB’000
AR® TR
Year ended August 31, 2021 HZE2021548A31B LFE
Opening net book amount BRI BR M FE 1,060,506
Transfer to investment properties (Note a) A 1% & 1) 2 (F 5Fa) (6,675)
Additions (Note b) ANE (M FEb) 425,330
Depreciation charge WEEH (40,596)
Closing net book amount HA R BR EFE 1,438,565
Year ended August 31, 2020 HZ202068831B LFE
Opening net book amount YR EFE 1,096,010
Depreciation charge mEEZEH (35,504)
Closing net book amount HREREDFE 1,060,506

(a)

During the year ended August 31, 2021, certain areas of the
properties with carrying amount of RMB19,953,000 (Note 15),
together with corresponding right-of-use assets with carrying amount
of RMB6,675,000, were leased to tenants as stores with leases terms
ranging from 4.25 years to 5 years. Therefore, these properties and
corresponding right-of-use assets were transferred to investment
properties. Revaluation surplus amounting to RMB3,211,000 was
recognized as other comprehensive income on the date transferred
(Note 16).

During the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group acquired three
right-of-use assets at a total consideration of RMB425,330,000 for the
construction of a new school campus in Jiangmen City, Guangdong

Province.

(@) BHZE2021F8A31RHILEFER -
BREEA A R®19,953,0007T H)
HETEBEDEMFE5)ERK
mE & AR ¥6,675000 7T A 18
EEREEAEC LA THAEAE
& HEEN F425F E54F o
Bt Z2EWERBREMSERE
BEEDEARENE - ARK
3,211,000 7t #) & {4 B &2 N 8 A
HEAfE R A H b 47 & M as (T &
16) °

by BZE2021%F8A31HILFE
R AREBUAEREBEARE
425,330,000 E =B F REEA
E NEEREIMMEE —E
FIRE o
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HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 E - -BERZE

Electronic Furniture Interior ~ Construction
Buildings  equipment and fixtures Vehicles  decoration  in progress Total
BF E7%%E HGAREE RE EREE EEIE @3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETn AR%Tn AR¥Tn AR%Tn ARETn ARET:n
Year ended August 31, 2021 HZE2021158R31ALEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 1,676,383 73,746 34,237 5,866 25,093 989,760 2,805,085
Additions NE - 41,104 20,888 1,080 - 940,502 1,003,574
Transfer from completed RERTIRREEER

construction projects 899,724 - 1,755 - 95,440 (996,919) -
Transfer to investment properties & AR &9 % ([f316)

(Note 16) (19,953) - - - — - (19,953)
Disposals ik - - - (186) - - (186)
Depreciation charge HEER (42,173) (16,133) (6,542) (918) (13,844) — (79,610)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 2,513,981 98,717 50,338 5,842 106,689 933,343 3,708,910
As at August 31, 2021 12021584318
Cost KA 2,819,978 227,283 103,515 12,419 152,518 933,343 4,249,056
Accumulated depreciation Z2itHhE (305,997)  (128,566) (53.177) (6,577) (45,829) - (540,146)
Net book amount REFE 2,513,981 98,717 50,338 5,842 106,689 933,343 3,708,910
Year ended August 31, 2020 BHZE2020%58A31HLEE
Opening net book amount MNEEEE 1,727,280 49,757 28,242 5,436 24,945 762,843 2,598,503
Additions NE - 5,526 1,785 1,812 — 276,613 285,736
Transfer from completed RERTIEREEER

construction projects — 31,709 9,439 — 8,548 (49,696) —
Disposals e = = — (365) (1,974) = (2,339)
Deprediation charge HEER (50,897) (13,246) (5,229) (1,017) (6,426) — (76,815)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 1,676,383 73,746 34,237 5,866 25,093 989,760 2,805,085
As at August 31, 2020 12020584318
Cost KA 1,942,502 186,179 80,872 12,724 57,078 989,760 3,269,115
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (266,119) (112,433) (46,635) (6,858) (31,985) — (464,030)
Net book amount EEFE 1,676,383 73,746 34,237 5,866 25,093 989,760 2,805,085

Huali University Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in the

16

consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

15 1% -BERRKE ()
B BRI AA G A SR TR
B

Year ended August 31,
B ZE8A3MBHLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T AR T T

Cost of sales SHE A 74,724 71,543
Administrative expenses THRAX 4,880 5,262
Selling expenses HERX 6 10
79,610 76,815

Construction-in-progress mainly comprises school buildings under

construction in the PRC for expansion projects.

During the year ended August 31, 2021, the Group has capitalised
borrowing costs amounting to RMB34,539,000 (2020: RMB31,414,000) on

property, plant and equipment.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ERTRIZEENTEEREENE
BERE -

HE2021F8A31BIEEFER A& E
BRAME - BB RS HEHE b8 R
AR A A R #34,539,0007T (20204 : A
K #31,414,0007T) °

16 REWZE

As at August 31,

M8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARETT
At fair value BRATE
Opening net book amount MY EREFE 135,000 132,200
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B - BRE kR EBER
(Note 15) (PfF5E15) 19,953 —
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 14) MRS EER (M14) 6,675 —
Revaluation gains recognized as other comprehensive RAEMIRERER
income (Note 14(a)) Bftlam (FFE14)) 3,211 —
Revaluation gains recognized as other gains (Note 7) RAEEMKENE K=
(PH&E7) 14,561 2,800
Closing net book amount B R BREDRE 179,400 135,000
Unrealized gains for the year included in profit or MERFAEET ABRD
loss for assets held at the end of the year, under FRAZBEWE - FIA
‘other losses — net’ [ Efth B 18558 14,561 2,800

Y REEAGRA A 201
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(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

202

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Investment properties of the Group comprised land and buildings for
a primary school and ancillary facilities which were leased to a related
party with rental income as disclosed in Note 33(b), and certain areas
of the properties for stores which were leased to third parties with
rental income of RMB2,726,000 during the year ended August 31,
2021.

Fair value hierarchy

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, an independent valuation of the
Group's investment properties was performed by an independent
professional qualified valuer to determine the fair values of the
investment properties.

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, all of the Group’s investment
properties were within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as the
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant
unobservable inputs. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and
3 during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.

Valuation processes of the Group
The Group's investment properties were valued as at August 31, 2021
and 2020 by an independent qualified valuer.

A team from the Group’s finance department reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (the "CFO").
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the
CFO, the finance team and valuer at least once a year.

Valuation techniques

Investment properties in use: Income approach which takes
into account the current rents of the property interests and the
reversionary potentials of the tenancies, term yield and reversionary
yield, to derive at the market value.

Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report

16 REWME (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

AEEBREMERE—FA/NERN
T REFEREERBE(E LM
F—RBEH S AW ARKE
BLEE) UEBEERENS
TEBRYE(BEHETE=F ' &
F2021E8A3IB IEFENES
WA B AR%2,726,0007T) °

DFEER
20214 20208 H31H - —%&
BIUEXSERMGEMYAEER
EMEETELIGE  UWEBERE
MERAFE -

20214 K% 20208 A31H * B
REETIRES TEATIBERE
AHESE WAKEMBIRED
EHBENTEEBRNE=ZML - &#HE
2021F K%2020F8A31HIEFE
AN F— - F_REF=MEL
EEERL o

rEEEERRF

20214 2020568 A31H » "%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont‘d) 16 REWME (&)
(e) Information about fair value measurements using significant (e) HAE AT ERG AZBIENAF
unobservable inputs (level 3): B EEHR (B=HR)

Relationship of

Fair value at Valuation  Unobservable Unobservable unobservable
Property category Description August 31, 2021 techniques inputs inputs inputs to fair value
R202158A31H TABEE TAEE FIERBAHESR
MEER B WATE RERKNT BARE BABE QAVENEE
Completed investment  Primary School and  RMB135,000,000 [ncome Market rents 20.72  The higher
properties ancillary facilities approach (RMB/sg.m./month) the market rents,
the higher
the fair value
BERIREM* NEREE R AR® W% Lk 2072 WHHEeHES
135,000,000 (NE®T/ AFESS
FTHAK/A)
Completed investment ~ Stores RMB44,400,000 Income Market rents 33.80-35.50  The higher
properties approach (RMB/sg.m./month) the market rents,
the higher
the fair value
ERTHRENF & AR WEE misHE 33.80-3550 TIHESME -
44,400,000 7 (AR®T/ ATEYR
FHAKA)

Relationship of

Fair value at Valuation  Unobservable Unobservable unobservable
Property category Description August 31,2020 techniques inputs inputs inputs to fair value
R2020%8A31H TARE TURE FARRBARESR
MEERR B WAFE REKN BARE BABE AFENBEE
Completed investment  Primary School and ~ RMB135,000,000 Income Market rents 21.04  The higher
properties ancillary facilities approach (RMB/sg.m./month) the market rents,
the higher
the fair value
BRTREMH NERBEERNE ARE Wk mi%nHAE 21.04 mHEEHE
135,000,0007T (NE®T/ ATESS
Frxk/A)
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HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(b= HHEHI BT EEEUARERT)

17

204

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17 BEFREE

Computer
software
EEH®
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Year ended August 31, 2021 BZE2021F8A31HILFE
Opening net book amount HRYEREFE 12,404
Additions NE 14,092
Amortization charge HiHER (4,887)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 21,609
As at August 31, 2021 7"202158H31H
Cost A 36,408
Accumulated amortization EXiE 35 (14,799)
Net book amount BREVRE 21,609
Year ended August 31, 2020 B ZE202058A31HLLFE
Opening net book amount HRYIAREFE 6,475
Additions NE 7,722
Amortization charge BiHER (1,793)
Closing net book amount HREREVFE 12,404
As at August 31, 2020 7A20208H31H
Cost (DN 22,316
Accumulated amortization ESiE 3 (9,912)
Net book amount AREDFE 12,404
Amortization expenses were included in the following categories in the BRI AGHEEREROUTE

consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

Al

Year ended August 31,
BZESA3MBLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARET T

Cost of sales SHEK A 4,202 1,793
Administrative expenses THRAZ 685 —
4,887 1,793

Huali University Group Limited
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(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

19

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

18 REREINWETHMITA

As at August 31,

A8H31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR®EF T
Financial assets at amortized cost REBBATAENESMEE
Amounts due from related parties FE UK BEEsE 75 5B 25,900 16,766
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E fth FE K GRIE 16,526 12,519
Other financial assets at amortized cost RERKAANRNE M S RHEE 6,450 6,353
Restricted cash SZBR HII3R & 12,246 11,205
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMREEEY 880,752 865,062
941,874 911,905
Financial liabilities at amortized cost REBHAEARNEHEE
Borrowings B 2,320,385 1,767,948
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< BB 5 5R0E 96,279 21,251
Accruals and other payables FEET B A K B fth 1~ 5R1E
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TEEFEERAaR) 580,446 266,950
2,997,110 2,056,149
PREPAYMENTS 19 FEAFRIE
As at August 31,
A8A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR T T
Prepayments for purchase and construction of BERERWE  BER
property, plant and equipment and BB A E W TEN 8
intangible assets 37,387 8,276
Prepayment for the acquisition of right-of-use assets — YE& T PI(EREA ETE A
in Jiangmen — 124,840
Others HAth 1,482 190
38,869 133,306
Less: non-current portion of prepayments B TR FIENIEE BE D (37,387) (133,116)
1,482 190

T REEFAFRA A
2021 FE#HE
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(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 EZRHEHMEWFKIE
As at August 31,
M8H31H
2021 2020
2021%F 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMWT T ARKETTT

Trade receivables 2 5 FEWGRIE
— Government subsidies receivables granted to — BB TELENEER %
students for tuition fees deduction B AT Bl 3,792 =
— Tuition fees receivables from students — EWBELENES 3,677 1,702
— Boarding fees receivables from students — EREBENTEE 129 79
7,598 1,781
Other receivables H b pE W RIE
— Deposits — % 2,400 7,139
— Utilities receivables from campus logistics — R ERERSIRAEEN
service providers UNZE$5553 2,387 1,143
— Tuition fees receivables from financial institution — ElsREENES 1,045 763
— Interest receivables — FEWF B 204 216
— Others — Hh 2,892 1,477
8,928 10,738
16,526 12,519
As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of the trade receivables 20214 20208 A31H - E FE WK
based on the recognition date is as follows: HRIBERBERBHOERRS AT -

As at August 31,

M8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Less than 1 year DIE 7,132 1,677
1 to 2 years EvES 466 104
7,598 1,781

206 Huali University Group Limited
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont‘d) 20 ESREMEWRE (&)
Other than other receivables of RMB310,000 as at August 31, 2021 (2020: 202148 A31H AR #310,0007T
RMB216,000) which were denominated in US$, all other trade and other (20204 : AR#216,0007T) &Y E b fE
receivables of the Group were denominated in RMB as at August 31, 2021 WORIEASE TTHESN - 782021 4 2020
and 2020. F8HA3NAE  AEHENMEHEMESZ X

Ha BB RIEAARKEE -
As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit 20214 20208 A31H * NEE AT
risk was the carrying value of each class of trade and other receivables HEHNRAEERRAE LTS EES &
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any other collateral as security. HEWFIEZ BREIE - AEBE W Eix
BEEMEMEBERRIERER -
Management has closely monitored the credit qualities and the collectability BIEBTYERZERNTIENEEES
of these receivables and considers that the expected credit risks of them EZRAKREREE  EREFENBES
are minimal in view of the history of cooperation with them and forward ERAIEMER  RR%ERIENEL
looking information. The loss allowance provision for these balances was not FERBEE - H £20214F X20204F8
material and no provision was recorded during the years ended August 31, A31BIEFERN @ ZEEHREREE
2021 and 2020. DRI AEKN - AL o
As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair values of trade and other 20214 % 202068 H31H - EF R E
receivables approximate their carrying amounts. thEKREN A FEEAEERERS °
RESTRICTED CASH 21 SRFIBE
As at August 31,
MA8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® TR ARETT
Restricted cash R 3R & 12,246 11,205

Restricted cash of the Group are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBENRREBSIATIEHEE :

As at August 31,

MN8A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EF T
RMB AR 11,205 11,205
HK$ I 1,041 —
12,246 11,205

Y REEAGRA A 207
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(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

21 RESTRICTED CASH (Cont’d) 21 ZRHRE (A)
The Group's restricted cash was denominated in RMB and HKD. On May AREENRBRFHRESAARERA TS
24, 2020, a group entity was accused by an independent third party, who 8 - M2020F5H24H - —EA&EEE®
claimed itself to be a tenant of the properties on the land in Jiangmen W—RBIE=FEE ZFE=TEE
City acquired by the Group in January 2019, for a compensation of BAREBR2019F1 ARERIM ™
RMB11,205,000 for the damage of its properties caused by the Group HEMENER  EXFAEEEEFR
during the process of clearing the land. According to the order from the THBEBRERNETERIREEAR
court, the Group’s bank deposits of RMB11,205,000 have been frozen as a #511,205,0007C ° REBEER TS © A&
guarantee of execution of potential claim in respect of the case. On August B A R #11,205,0007T # 88 17 17 28R
20, 2021, the court made the final trial to dismiss the claim and such & ERHITEBZERHENBERERN
restricted cash therefore subsequently released on November 2, 2021. R - R2021F8A208 @ AR EH &

RER BRERE AEZIREBES
BE1& 7220214511 A2 B AR R R 4

As at August 31, 2021, balance of RMB1,041,000 was restricted for usage R2021 F8 A3 A BB ARK
of interest settlement relating to the bank borrowing of RMB124,605,000. 1,041,000 c K AR Hl BEE B EA

124,605,000 SR 17 f& SKEY A8

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 HERBSEEY
As at August 31,
M8 H31H
2021 2020
2021%F 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Cash at banks RITIEK 856,218 827,092
Cash on hand EfFRE 51 125
Cash at non-bank financial institutions RIERITERMENIRS 24,483 37,845

880,752 865,062
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are denominated in the following REENRSRRSEEY T EE
currencies: FTE :

As at August 31,

MN8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

RMB AR 856,847 387,163
HK$ BT 22,623 461,402
us$ e 1,282 16,497

880,752 865,062

208 Huali University Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont‘d)

(@  The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
and the remittance of such foreign currencies denominated bank
balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC

government.
(b)  As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to

credit risk was the carrying value of cash at banks and cash at non-
bank financial institutions mentioned above.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

B 0F B 1% R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

22 REeERBESEEY (£)

(a)

AR EEHKBRERINER A
PEERZFINESEIRTE
#HERE  AETHERIREM
ZEBIMNEE BIR A RRP -

720214 202068 A31H - K
SEHAERNSAEERRA
MIRTERRRFERITEREE
MRS ZREE -

23 BARKHEE

Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
ZEREAE EEREE
uss$
E
At August 31, 2021 and 2020 20214 % 202058 A31H
— US$0.0001 each — BRE(E0.0001%T 2,000,000,000 200,000
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary Share
Issued: [EX £ shares shares shares premium
ZER
TERHE HEREME ZREE IR 10 5 B

uss RMB’000 RMB’000
Xn AR®ETR AR¥TxR

As at August 31, 2020 202048 H31H 1,200,000,000 120,000 820 788,756
Dividends (Note 13) fRE (fEE13) — — — (137,280)
As at August 31, 2021 2021468 H31H 1,200,000,000 120,000 820 651,476

Y REEAGRA A 209
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
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HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

24 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(a) Statutory surplus reserves
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the

210

Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC should make appropriations

from after-tax profit to certain non-distributable reserve funds as

determined by the boards of directors of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

These reserves include (i) statutory reserve fund of the limited liability

companies, (ii) general reserve funds of foreign invested enterprise

and (jii) development funds for the schools.

@)

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and Articles of Association of the companies incorporated in
the PRC now comprising the Group (the “PRC Subsidiaries”),
the PRC Subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of the
annual statutory net profits, after offsetting any prior years’
losses as determined under the PRC accounting standards, to
the statutory reserves fund before distributing the net profit.
When the balance of the statutory reserves fund reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the PRC Subsidiaries, any further
appropriation is at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory
reserves fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into share capital by issuing new shares
to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding,
provided that the remaining balance of the statutory reserves
fund after such issue is not less than 25% of registered capital.

Pursuant to the laws applicable to China’s Foreign Investment
Enterprises, the Company’s subsidiary that is foreign investment
enterprise in China has to make appropriations from its after-
tax profit (as determined under the PRC accounting standards)
to reserve funds including (i) general reserve fund, (i) enterprise
expansion fund and (iii) staff bonus and welfare fund. The
appropriation to the general reserve fund must be at least
10% of the after tax profits calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting standards. Appropriation is not required if the
reserve fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
company. Appropriations to the other two reserve funds are at

the discretion of the company.

Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS (Cont‘d)

(a) Statutory surplus reserves (Cont’d)

(iii)  According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, private
schools are required to appropriate to a development fund of
not less than 25% of the net profit or the annual increase of
net assets of the relevant schools as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards. The development fund
is for the construction or maintenance of the school or
procurement or upgrading of educational equipment and not
available for distribution to shareholders. Upon incurring the
corresponding expenditure, an equivalent amount is transferred
from development fund to retained earnings.

(b) Other reserves as at August 31, 2021 and 2020 mainly represented

(c)

(i) the combined paid-in capital and capital reserves of the PRC
Operating Entities and the student accommodation service of Huali
Investment transferred to the Group during the reorganization;
(ii) the carrying value of certain land use rights, buildings, and
properties related to the tuition services and student accommodation
services that were in possession and used by the Group and
deemed contributed by the Owner during the reorganization; and
(iii) revaluation gains arising from the transfer of property, plant
and equipment and corresponding right-of-use assets to investment

properties during the year ended August 31, 2021.

In accordance with the principal regulations governing private
education in China, a private school that does not require reasonable
returns cannot distribute dividends to its sponsors. As Huali College,
Huali Vocational College and Huali Technician College had elected
to not require reasonable returns, the retained earnings of the
PRC Operating Entities amounting to RMB1,715,473,000 and
RMB1,549,900,000 as at August 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
were not distributable to its legal owner.

FEF TS SRR BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(b = F 75 B 5

HZE2021F8H31HLLFEE
B BUNREEXT)

24 FERFRERR (&)

(a)

EERBRE (H)

(iii) ﬁf¢ﬂﬁ%i%&%ﬁ*
E%?ﬁmh&¢l
Bl @Wm%ﬁé@ﬁ
¢ﬁ9%\4ﬂﬁ%%i
BRES  -FERESHERE
LHIEBR - AHEERED
HESAR TR TR’
o MHERYELR  £E
CHAERASCESRE
F o

(b) 20214 %20204%€8 A31H # &

(c)

hiEEEZEOPEEEETEN
AR EBEAREAFHERER
HEEETASENEYREN
BAETERE  (NVEARMABAR
SEEBMERAEREAEES
ANEAREBHERS K2 4AE
BREWE T LibEHE 25
RYZEOREE - Ki)E £2021
FSANBILEFERNEHME « K
EBREAGHAEEAEEES A
BEMEME £ EMH IS -

BEHAERERNAENETE
BOl - TEREERRY R
BERABHREBRAIRKS -
BHRETER  EVBESR K
EYRMEBREEFEREGRE
B R - A b F 2021 F K& 2020 F
8H31H HEZEEERSAA
AR #1,715,473,0007T & A R
1,549,900,000 7T M) R B8 22 F 1~ 7]
MEEHEB ADIK °
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(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

25 SUBSIDIARIES

212

25 fiE A A

The Group'’s principal subsidiaries at August 31, 2021 are set out below.
Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

AREER2021F8A3MHNEZTENEBE R
RIEHIT - Br B ARSI BEQA
MR ERAEEEZIFAN T BRA
K BERNMBEESLIENAEE
BAERKRRE - SMK L ELHER
MAEREN TS LI -

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

AEBEGKRE
Particulars of As at August 31,
Place of incorporation  Principal activities and issued share MW8A31AH
Name of entity and kind of legal entity place of operation capital 2021 2020
AR R ARER
BEEEH ki) TRXBREEHHY BERTRARE 2021%F 2020
Directly held by the Company:
KRABREE
Huali Investment Holding Limited Cayman Islands, limited Investment holding
liability in Cayman Islands US$50,000 100% 100%
Huali Investment Holding Limited RERE BREM HEHEREER 50,0003 7T 100% 100%
Indirectly held by the Company:
ARRIEERA
Huali (HK) Education Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding
liability in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%
EREUHEREBRAF B BREME EEREER 10,0007% 7T 100% 100%
Guangzhou Huali Shengrong Education PRC, limited liability Investment holding
Technology Company Limited in the PRC RMB300,000,000 100% 100%
EMNE R RH AR BB AR Bl FREME B R A R A & #300,000,0007T 100% 100%
XZ Huali PRC, limited liability Investment holding
in the PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100%
AREY mECARAR REREER A& #100,000,0007T 100% 100%
USA Huali Educational Services LLC USA, limited liability College in the USA US$50,000 100% 100%
USA Huali Educational Services LLC XB EREE EH 2k 50,0003 7T 100% 100%
Haikou Huashi Investment PRC, limited liability Investment holding
Company Limited in the PRC RMB 100,000,000 100% 100%
BOTEMREERDA mE - BRAER RERE ER A& #100,000,0007T 100% 100%
Guangzhou Huashi Technology PRC, limited liability Investment holding
Company Limited in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
BMNER AR hEARARE &R E 2R AR #1,000,0007T 100% 100%
Guangzhou Shigeshijie Motor Vehicle PRC, limited liability Motor vehicle driver
Driver Training School Company Limited trainning school
in the PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
BMBE AR S =R B 152K hEC AREME BB E R S
BRATA 21 A R #5,000,0007T 100% 100%
Guangdong Huagin Property Management  PRC, limited liability Property management
Company Limited service in the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% =
BREHNEERBRAA REBRARE TEYEEE R AR #10,000,0007T 100% =
Guangdong Huali Technology PRC, limited liability Education Support Service
Company Limited RMB5,000,000 100% —
BREFMRERRNAE mE - BREME HE B R AR #5,000,0007C 100% =
Guangdong Huashi Education Support PRC, limited liability Education Support Service
Service Company Limited RMB5,000,000 100% —
BREFYARDRBER AR hE BRER HEHY RS AR #5,000,0007% 100% =
Guangdong Shengli Technology PRC, limited liability Education Support Service
Company Limited RMB5,000,000 100% —
ERESBHRARRA hE - AREME HEHY R AR #5,000,0007C 100% =
Hainan Huashi Investment PRC, limited liability Investment holding
Company Limited in the PRC RMB100,000,000 100% —
BREEEMREERAA RECBRERE hEREER A K %100,000,0007T 100% =
Jiangmen Huali Shengrong Education PRC, limited liability Investment holding
Technology Company Limited in the PRC RMB350,000,000 100% —
TP EL BRHEERRER AR HE - AEREME PEREER A R #350,000,0007¢ 100% =

Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report



25

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Place of incorporation  Principal activities and

Name of entity and kind of legal entity place of operation
HMR R EEER
BEEEH pogid) TEXBREEHHY

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

25 BT (&)

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

rEEELRE
Particulars of As at August 31,
issued share H8A31AR
capital 2021 2020

BRTRAFE 20215 20205

Treated as subsidiaries under the Contractual Arrangements:

RESOZH R BHBEAR :

Huali College PRC, private independent  College in the PRC
college RMB 10,000,000 100% 100%
#7207 RE RIFE 2R BB 2 A #10,000,0007C 100% 100%
Huali Vocational College PRC, formal higher College in the PRC
education institution RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
EVBEZR HE BESIAEHE TEZ2R AR #10,000,0007T 100% 100%
Huali Technician College PRC, private tertiary College in the PRC
vocational school RMB500,000 100% 100%
E A SR HE RBESEREER DEBMR AR #500,0007T 100% 100%
Huali Investment PRC, limited liability School Sponsor
in the PRC RMB400,000,000 100% 100%
EURA RE - BEREME B EREREA AR #400,000,0007T 100% 100%
Guangdong Huashi Education Technology  PRC, limited liability Investment holding
Investment Company Limited in the PRC RMB100,000,000  99.999% —
BRERABRBREERAA HE - ERAEE R IR B AR AR #100,000,0007T  99.999% =
Note (i):  The entities shown above do not have official English names and their Chinese BsEG) : BRI EFARAXEHE  ZFEHEX

()

names have been translated into English, for reference only, by the Directors on a
best effort basis.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits held in the PRC are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from those countries, other than through normal
dividends.

The carrying amount of the assets included within the consolidated
financial statements to which these restrictions apply was
RMB734,939,000 as at August 31, 2021 (2020: RMB396,074,000).

AEMAEERRABSNERD XA ED
#oEHSE -

() EXRH
ERERENRERERERE
o 51 B 5l 15 40 R - A B 46
FIREBMRZERRGHE R
B9 IR ) (3B IE % B B R 41) ©

R2021E8A318 @ ZER 4@
ARt AGHTBERENEE

8 M A A R # 734,939,000 7T
(2020 & : A R ¥ 396,074,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ans /e =

& OF B 75 S 2k I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

26 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 Bt ERAREMENRIE

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES AR FEAS BB 5 sR 1B
As at August 31,
M8 H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR T T

Payable for construction and purchase of

BEREBERERRBDEEN

non-current assets FES 0B 228,008 139,320

Compensation payable for the Conversion of JE ST EE 7 22 B 8 SR A (B R IR
Huali College (Note 1) (PF3E1) 152,008 —
Payable for joint tuition support fees (Note (a)) ERBREMNHKIE (Miz@) 78,441 70,772
Dividend payables FEFTAR 2 62,160 —
Miscellaneous fee received from students (Note (b)) BWBERNHE (MED) 20,714 21,146
Government subsidies payable to students FE T2 A 0 R T A B 17,792 18,796
Employee benefits payable FERHE B tE A 12,448 9,517
Payable for property management service V) 25 12 R 7S FE T TR IE 7,916 299
Interest payable ERFE 4,978 3,828
Network and telecommunication fee payable FERHARES K imE & A 3,280 2,585
Other taxes payable H b IR 1,664 1,290
Auditor’s remuneration payable FETIZ SR & 1,620 2,800
Others EHAth 3,529 7,404
594,558 277,757

Less: non-current portion (Note (d)) B SEEHIEE S (BYEE(d))
Payable for construction of non-current assets BRIERENE EN R FRIA (118,701) (7,141)

Compensation payable for the Conversion of JE Y 2E 7 22 B 1 SR 4 (B SR IR
Huali College (98,668) —
Current portion = HE S 377,189 270,616

Amounts due to related parties (Note 33(d)) FEASTRAESE 5 kI8 (FfT5E33(d))

— Current — = 45,415 21,251
— Non-Current — ¥FEH 50,864 =
96,279 21,251

Huali University Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES (Cont’d)
(@  As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of the payables
for joint tuition support fees was as follows:

26 BErBEAREMENRE

LR BB S IR ()

(a)

M 20214 20205688310 - &
BEEMFENRRITHT :

As at August 31,

M"8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB T AR®EF T
Less than 1 year D145 78,441 70,772

The amounts represent the miscellaneous fee received from students
which would be paid out by the Group on behalf of students.

(0 As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair values of current
accruals and other payables and current amounts due to related
parties approximated their carrying amounts due to their short-term
maturities.

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the non-current accruals and other
payables and non-current amounts due to related parties were initially
recognized at fair value at discount rate available to the Group and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognized the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

27

BEHRARCWBENRE K
MARERBESMN -

20214 &% 202068A31 1 -
HIE St B B K H Al 8 R 0R £
H 7 1<) R B 00 BROEL RO R B B
FREERSE  RESIHMEHEK

5 e

ot Bk Ho

\
/1

720214 2020568 A31H - 3k
EHEEAREMEMNKESR
JEE HAFE S B Bt 7 SRIB W) P IR AR
SEAESHABXRUQ T ER
REBERERMNEERE R
ARG E ©

BHNAE

AEECREANTEKSEHBHNAOE

& :

As at August 31,

A8A31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARE T AREEF T
Contract liabilities related to tuition fees HEBRBENEHAE 513,639 250,092
Contract liabilities related to boarding fees HEBEEHBNAOAE 54,127 21,679
567,766 271,771

LI RFEABR AT
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AN Gn /s =3
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

27

216

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 27 8HEaE (&)
(a) Revenue recognized in relation to contract (a) HEYNEBHBANERER
liabilities &=

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognized for
the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 related to carried-forward
contract liabilities:

TR RE E20214F £202048
B3BLFEEAMAAEANERE
MERERAWZ S -

Year ended August 31,
BZ8HA3MBILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Revenue recognized that was included FEAB KB ERTER
in the balance of contract liabilities B R

at the beginning of the year

— Tuition fees — BE 250,092 618,432
— Boarding fees — HEE 21,679 47,176
— Others — Hfb — 425
271,771 666,033
(b) Unsatisfied contracts (b) KEBITEHN
As at August 31,
M8A31A
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
Expected to be recognized within one year TEER —F MR

— Tuition fees — 25 513,639 250,092
— Boarding fees — HEE 54,127 21,679
567,766 271,771

Huali University Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 BORROWINGS

YA ans & =3
& OF BT 7 e 2k B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

28 f&Fk

As at August 31,

MN8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Current: RE :
— Secured bank borrowings — BEARITER 223,535 145,217
Non-current: FETE :
— Secured bank borrowings — BHEBRITER 1,759,850 1,622,731
— Unsecured other borrowings due to — PR T Mo AR AR
a related party HAbER 337,000 —
2,096,850 1,622,731
Total borrowings ERARER 2,320,385 1,767,948
(@  As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, bank borrowings were pledged by (@) 720214 k202068 A31H 1R
the equity interest of a group entity and the charging right of the BEAZTH  RITERA—HE
service fees owned by a group entity according to the contractual EEEnRkER —HEEERE
arrangements. BHRRTS B W B REEER o
(b)  The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum) were as (b) INEFHERENHMOT :
follows:
As at August 31,
M8HA31H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Bank borrowings HRITER 4.80% 5.38%
Other borrowings due to a related party FEA RAESE 5 By E A fE X 4.30% —
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A ans /e =
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

28 BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 28 & (&)

() The maturity dates of the borrowings were analyzed as follows:

(o)

ERAABEIFTMAT

As at August 31,

M8HA31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Less than 1 year D1E 223,535 145,217
1 to 2 years 1224 307,060 165,720
2 to 5 years 2E55F 1,281,534 1,039,148
Over 5 years SFLA 508,256 417,863

2,320,385 1,767,948

(d)  The carrying amount for the current borrowings approximated their
fair values because of their short term maturities. The carrying amount
for non-current borrowings approximated their fair values as they
were carried at floating interest rates or the impact of discounting is
not significant for those carried at fixed interest rates.

() As at August 31, 2021, other than bank borrowing of
RMB124,605,000 was denominated in HK$, all other borrowings
of the Group were denominated in RMB, and all borrowing of the
Group were denominated in RMB as at August 31, 2020.

MR REERFRE  WREE
HATERE - ARIFRBER
VIS B 1) R 5 8 i [ E I R &
SENMBETLETK  WEKRE
BEREATFERE -

R2021E8A31H B AR
124,605,000 7T # ] 17 f& ;K A 7
TETESN - NEBATH A S K
AABRBEE - R2020%8 A 31
H - A&EBEMEERAARER
@o

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 29 IEIEFEBHAR
RIEFMESHREBEITOT :

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

As at August 31,

M8H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Deferred income tax liabilities: BLEFMESHEHE:
— to be recovered by more than 12 months — R 1218 A A EEARE e

43,832 36,461
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B 0F B 1% R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the years, without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction, is as follows:

Fair value gain

of investment

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

29 BIEFBHRAE (&)
B IR TS B R B B B (Rt
REBA-HEEEEOBE) WT :

Withholding
Timing tax recognized
differences on for the services

recognition of income earned

properties  rental income by WFOE Total
BABBELHE
REWE BIESBA RERORBBA
AFEKRE MEEE BIOENHR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR®BT R
As at September 1, 2020 7202059H1H 32,475 3,986 — 36,461
Charged to profit or loss BiE=kR 3,640 784 2,144 6,568
Charged to other B E AR & Was kR

comprehensive income (PFF=E1)

(Note 11) 803 — — 803
As at August 31, 2021 7"202158H31H 36,918 4,770 2,144 43,832
As at September 1, 2019 720195698 1H 31,775 2,914 — 34,689
Charged to profit or loss BB kR 700 1,072 — 1,772
As at August 31, 2020 7R2020568H31H 32,475 3,986 = 36,461

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group did not recognize deferred
income tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to RMB776,000 and
RMB975,000. As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the unused tax losses
amounting to RMB3,955,000 and RMB3,900,000 can be carried forward

against future taxable income under the PRC CIT Law and these tax losses

will expire after 2026 and 2025 respectively.

720214 K%2020F8A31H  AEBE RS
EH Rl A ART776,0007T B A R #975,000
THHBEBEERRELEMESHEE - 12021
FR20206E8A31R 2O AARE
3,955,0007T & A 2 #3,900,0007T & & 8 8 7
BEEBRETREMSEMSRIAA LEEIEER
REZRBTWA - ZERIEEE D B 5 72026
F R2025F 1% 5 H -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30 KREFBHEE

Year ended August 31,
BZESH3MALEE

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMWT T ARKETTT

Profit before income tax F15%4 B 58 169,631 310,934
Adjustments for: AT SEEL A
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — Y% - BERZETE
(Note 15) (Ft7E15) 79,610 76,815
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings less — IRITIERF BRSO
borrowing costs capitalized in property, W% - BB KR&E
plant and equipment BB B R A 62,384 35,796
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — ERAREERE 33,041 32,914
— Net exchange losses (Note 7) — EXEEFEE (HE7) 18,242 5,490
— Amortization of intangible assets (Note 17) — EREAESE (WF17) 4,887 1,793
— Interest expenses on discount of compensation — FERTEE Bl R E
payable for the Conversion of Huali College FIEM B BRIRF S X
(Note 10) (BizE10) 1,159 =
— Losses on disposals of property, plant and — HEWE BERZEN
equipment (Note 7) EstE (FsE7) 73 2,208
— Fair value gains on investment properties — RAWFELTERE
(Note 7) (B=E7) (14,561) (2,800)
— Interest income on other financial assets — REHRARARRREM
at amortized cost SREENFSWA (903) (309)
— Interest expenses on discount of amount due to — FETEEEE T RIBRIE BL
a related party (Note 10) WRAEFEZ (FFFE10) — 15,896
Operating profit before changes in working capital: &38& & % S AT H & R ¢ 353,563 478,737
Changes in working capital EELSEE
— Contract liabilities — BHEE 295,995 (394,262)
— Accruals and other payables — BT ER REMERFUR 163,644 12,327
— Decrease in amounts due to related parties — FERTRERE 7 SRIER 7,025 6,779
— Deferred revenue — R 254 —
— Increase in amounts due from related parties — FEUK AR T BIEE AN (4,176) (9,987)
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 RHEMERGIE (4,019) 169
— Prepayments — FEfIIR (1,292) 58
— Restricted cash — XRAFIFEE (1,041) (11,205)
Cash generated from operations REmBRS 809,953 82,616
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YA ans = =
& OF BT 7 e 2k B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Cont’d)
(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

30 KEmBHRE (#
(a) MEFHELRBZHE

Non-cash movement

Unrealized
September 1, Imputed exchange Cash Cash  August 31,
2020 interest loss inflows outflows 2021
FREEE
20205 RER 20215
981A HERNE EREE RERA ReRE 8A31A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®Tn AR¥TR AR%T:R
Bank borrowings RITHER 1,767,948 407 1,740 358,707 (145417) 1,983,385
Other borrowings due to  FEffBAEE 7 KLt fE 3%
a related party — — — 337,000 — 337,000
Liabilities from RETHELNER
financing activities 1,767,948 407 1,740 695,707 (145,417) 2,320,385
Non-cash
movement
September 1, Imputed Cash Cash August 31,
2019 interest inflows outflows 2020
2019F  FHREEF 2020
9A1H B BERA BEmi 8A31R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTn ARETr ARET:x
Borrowings fEH 1,079,304 — 979,790 (291,146) 1,767,948
Amount due to related parties JE <t BB 7y 208 596,764 15,896 — (612,660) —
Liabilities from REERELENAR
financing activities 1,676,068 15,896 979,790 (903,806) 1,767,948
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group had the following capital
commitments on construction and purchase of property, plant and

31 EREE

20214 K20205F8 A31H - A& EAF
ATEREBENE BELAREBNE

equipment: AR
As at August 31,
A8H31H

2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T AR®EF T
Contracted but not provided for EEFMEESEY 472,387 414,467
Authorized but not contracted for EREERETLN 7,812 241,299
480,199 655,766

32 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

The Group leased its investment properties to a related party as school and
third parties as stores respectively, certain space to related parties as offices
and certain space to a telecommunication company as signal stations under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from

eleven months to twenty years.

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

falling due as follows:

32 REFERIE

EHBEHBEA
AEBRBELHAERHES BREY
LHATHEB S REEREEBETE=S
FEEER  BETFHw AT B
AERAZRETF B EATFERELA
FERES A  BREBENF11EA
Z204 o

720214 202068 H31H - R AT
FRATAIRELLHEE  AEER T
FRZIMNREREEEESEBEN

™
As at August 31,
MW8A31H

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Less than 1 year DIE 9,859 4,303
1 to 5 years 1E5%F 44,227 25,565
Over 5 years S5 LA E 80,616 94,984
134,702 124,852

222 Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate holding company of the Company is HL-Diamond. The
Directors consider the ultimate controlling party to be Mr. Zhang Zhifeng,
who is also the executive director and chairman of the Company.

(@) Names and relationships with related parties
The following companies and individuals are related parties of the
Group that had balances and/or transactions with the Group during
the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.

Name of related parties

S EE

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

33 BHARS
AN A ) A AERR A 7 AHL-Diamond ©
EERA  BRERAFAREELE
BRBERBNMITEEREST -

() BABE S VBB REAIR

T3 A EREAAEZE20214F &
20206F8 AIA L EFERNBEAE
BE&EBR/ ARXZHANEEH
BT o

Relationship with the Group
BAKENBEE

Mr. Zhang Zhifeng

RE S
Guangdong Hualiyuan Technology Company Limited
("Hualiyuan Technology”)” Rz ERHEARAF" (Note (i)
BREERRARAR ( TEZEREL] ) (HEEG))
Guangzhou Lingmei Life Service Co., Ltd (“Lingmei Life Service”)
"EMEREERBARLDF" (Note (i)
BMEEEERBERAR ( [BEEERBE] ) (BEEGO))
Huali Bilingual School of Yunfu (Yun'an District)
("Yunfu Bilingual School”)" 5% &% [&@ %7 2R
(Former name: /¥ 2% [& &7 1 H /) (Note (i)
DFMEXREVHEXER (A4 EFMERREVHEXNE)
( [EFpEx 2R ) (EE))
Guangdong Huali Construction Co., Ltd. (“Huali Construction and
its subsidiaries”)” BER 2 FEEFR AT L EME R F(Note (1)
BREZEEGRAR ( [FEZREE] ) REMBAR (M)
Guangdong Huali Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (“Huali Real Estate”)
"BREVHESEARRAR" (Note (i)
BREVHESEERAR (([FEE] ) (FFEo)

Controlling shareholder,
the Owner

ZIRIRE - B A

A Company controlled by
the Owner

HEEA AZEHH QA

A Company controlled by
the Owner

HEER AZESIH R R

A Company controlled by
the Owner

B A AR A A

A Company under significant
influence of the Owner

XBEANEAZENDF

A Company controlled by
the Owner

B A AP A A A

Note (i):  The entities shown above do not have official English names and their
Chinese names have been translated into English, for reference only, by
the Directors on a best effort basis.

BEEE() : BB M XX B » %
ERXAEHEFERAB IR
TXRBERE BH2E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRLb R E ks

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
BE20215F8A31BLLFE

(B = HEBEI BT 2 EUAREERT)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont‘d)

(b) Significant transactions with related parties

33

BBLIRS (&)
(b) REBLTHNEARS

Year ended August 31,
B EZE8A3MHLEE

2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR®EF T
Rental income WA
— Yunfu Bilingual School (i) — TR EER() 6,748 6,748
— Huali Real Estate — EHE 189 —
— Huali Construction and its subsidiaries — EVEERENEAR 181 —
7.118 6,748
Rental expenses Hex
— Hualiyuan Technology (ii) — 7 BRI 7,080 860
Construction in progress incurred EETR
— Huali Construction and its subsidiaries — EVEEREMNEAR 429,290 85,928

Year ended August 31,
HES8A3MALEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARETT
Service income - N
— Yunfu Bilingual School — EFHPEXER 2,330 —
Loans from a related party A IR E R
— Huali Construction and its subsidiaries (i) — 7 AR o ELFY B A R(iii) 337,000 —
Interest expenses paid or payables BTSN R ERAX
— Huali Construction and its subsidiaries (iii) — EEEREME ARG 10,222 —
Payment of cash advances to a related party ) B EsE 75 2 3R & R
— Lingmei Life Service (iv) — EEAERB(v) 4,958 —
Construction consulting service income EEBARBWA
— Huali Construction and its subsidiaries — EVRERAEWNBAA 291 —
— Huali Real Estate — EHE 194 =
485 _

224 Huali University Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

YA ans = =
& OF BT 7 e 2k B 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont‘d)

(b) Significant transactions with related parties (Cont'd)

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Certain Group's investment properties were leased to a related
party for rental income amounting to RMB6,748,000 during the
years ended August 31, 2021 (2020: RMB6,748,000).

On September 1, 2019 and September 1, 2020, the Group
entered into properties lease agreement with Hualiyuan
Technology, pursuant to which Hualiyuan Technology agreed to
lease certain residential apartments to the Group commencing
from September 1, 2019 to August 31, 2022 and from
September 1, 2020 to August 31, 2022 respectively, with a
monthly rent of RMB16 per sq. m. (exclusive of management
fees, value added taxes and local levies). The actual rental fee is
variable and subject to the change of actual usage area at each
year.

Pursuant to a series of agreements dated December 8, 2020
and January 22, 2021, the Group obtained interest-bearing
borrowings from a subsidiary of Huali Construction, in an
aggregate amount of RMB337,000,000 and at an effective
interest rate of 4.3% per annum with a term of 3 years.
Interest expenses amounting to RMB10,222,000 was recognised
accordingly for the year ended August 31, 2021.

Payment of cash advances to Lingmei Life Service was non-trade
in nature, interest-free and repayble on demand.

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

33 BBARE (&)
(b) HBEBLIHNWEARS (A)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

AEBETHEAMELA
T — BB - B ZE2021
F8AZMBLEFEMNAS
KA B AR ¥ 6,748,000
7L (2020 4 AR ¥
6,748,0007T ) ©

201949 818 K% 20204
9A1H r "EBHEEF
RHRET M ERERZE - &
- EVBRBRZREMAE
ErEETEELE  HE
DRl A BE2019F9A1HE
202248 A31H K& B2020
9 /18 £202248 A 31
H:AlH@REFTAIRAR
Bl (T2 ERE  EE
i Kt 5B c ERAS
A - WERRBFEERE
AEESEt -

R AHE A20209F12 A8H
F2021451 A22BH — &7
W AEERELEEN
— XKW B A RREEE
X L5 A K # 337,000,000
T BRFENERA3%
BH3F - HE2021F8 A
318 I FE B 5ttt R T
BH X AR#®10,222,000

JC ©

CEELS b S e R
HBREEIME  SERA
REREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ans /e =

& OF B 75 S 2k I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(b= HHEHI BT EEEUARERT)

33

226

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c) Key management compensation

Key management compensation for the years ended August 31, 2021

and 2020, other than those relating to the emoluments of directors

being disclosed in Note 35, are set out below:

33 Bt AR5 (&)
() EEEBEAEHRM
B = 20214 %202048A318 Lt
FE - BRMKMEIHEENE =M
S EEEEABIRBIEZ 0

T
Year ended August 31,

HZSA3MBILLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARB TR AR T T
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - #HeRkEa 1,829 4,020
Contributions to pension plans BRIREET BB 35 64
Welfare, medical and other expenses B - BEREMEY 139 165
2,003 4,249

(d) Balances with related parties

(d) SRR TS 4 ek

As at August 31,

M8H31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR®EF T
Amounts due from related parties FE Uk BB 5 SR E
— Yunfu Bilingual School (i) — TR EER() 19,613 16,120
— Lingmei Life Service (Note 33(b)(iv)) — EEEERE
(BFEE33(b)(iv)) 4,958 —
— Hualiyuan Technology — EVEEH 1,329 646
25,900 16,766
Amounts due to related parties FE A< BB 5 50E
— Huali Construction and its subsidiaries (ii) — EEENENEB A R) 89,254 21,251
— Hualiyuan Technology (Note 33(b)(ii)) — EVEBHY
(GE=EOD) 3,785 —
— Yunfu Bilingual School (i) — EF AR ESTER() 3,220 —
— Huali Real Estate — EHE 20 —
96,279 21,251
Other borrowings HAbER
— Huali Construction and its subsidiaries — EVREERHEMNEAR
(Note 33(b)iii)) (FfFEE33(b)iii)) 337,000 —

Huali University Group Limited
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
(d) Balances with related parties (Cont’d)

@)

(iii)

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, amounts due from Yunfu
Bilingual School was trade in nature and represented receivables
in respect of rental income of investment properties. As at
August 31, 2021,
trade in nature and represented deposit payables in respect of

amounts due to Yunfu Bilingual School was

investment properties.

As at August 31, 2021 and 2020, amounts due to Huali
Construction and its subsidiaries was trade in nature and
represented payables for construction of expansion projects and
interests payable amounting to RMB10,222,000 incurred from
the other borrowings.

As at August 31, 2021,
due to Huali Construction and its subsidiaries amounting to
RMB50,864,000 was initially recognized at fair value at the

the non-current portion of amounts

effective interest rate available to the Group and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. The carrying amounts of other balances with related
parties appropriate their fair values and were denominated in
RMB as at August 31, 2021 and 2020.

FEF TS SRR BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

(b = F 75 B 5

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
B BUNREEXT)

33 BBARE (&)
(d) SREBS & (&)

(i)

(iii)

72021 4 K 20204 8 A 31
H @ EBHREFHEERE
HNERESHMUE - BEBR
R E XA NN &N
T8 - 20216 8H31H » &
NEFPENERNFIBER
B5ME  REBKREME
RERIERS -

2021 4 % 20204 8 A 31
H - EREIEERENEB
RAINHIBERESHHEE - B
PMERIEE RREMNRIER
H At 8 FRE £ B BT B A
R %10,222,0007C °

R2021 58 A31H » Ef
EVEEREWB RGN
HIEHRIEE BB AR
50,864,000 7T #] 2 #2748 5 [
AESHERFEUAFE
BR - BEEEAERMNEE
R AGTE - 12021
& 202048 A31H © EEEF
BiE 5 KO EL M A5 BR ) BR D (B £
HAFEEE  UARE:
fg °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M Zir =+ Ee
S 0F B 15 ¥R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 34 A A REEAGBREHE
THE COMPANY B E
As at August 31,
A8A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T AR®EF T
ASSETS B5E
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investment in a subsidiary HEMB AR — —
Current assets REVEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BT A BIFIE 622,550 321,811
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEYD 154,514 461,258
777,064 783,069
Total assets BWEE 777,064 783,069
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owner of the Company AATEBERBRRELER
Share capital and share premium AR AN R R 15 Va5 (B 652,296 789,576
Accumulated losses ZEER (118,503) (61,633)
Total equity R 533,793 727,943
Liabilities 8E&
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Borrowings-non current ek — FEH 108,128 =
Current liabilities REIEE
Accruals and other payables fEET B A R H A RN R 64,387 515
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTB BB A R R E 60,507 54,611
Borrowings-current B — 25 10,249 —
135,143 55,126
Total liabilities HEE 243,271 55,126
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEHEE 777,064 783,069

228

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors

on November 19, 2021 and was signed on its behalf.

Zhang Zhifeng
REIE

Director

EBE

Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report
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Ye Yaming
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Director
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YA ans = =
& OF BT 7 e 2k B 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(b5 HHEHI B EBEUARKEEZT)

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 34 A A REEAGBREHE
THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 28 (&)

Accumulated

losses

AitEE

RMB’000

AR®B T

As at September 1, 2019 #201959H1H (40,640)

Loss for the year FEEE (20,993)

As at August 31, 2020 72020568H31H (61,633)

As at September 1, 2020 720205F9H1H (61,633)

Loss for the year FEEE (56,870)

As at August 31, 2021 7#R2021568H31H (118,503)
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35 BEER PR

35

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

The remuneration of each director borne by the Group for the year

ended August 31, 2021 is set out below:

(@) EERFETHAENHM
HZE2021F8A31HILEEKRE
EAENSESHFWNEIOT ¢

Employer's
contribution to Allowances
a retirement and other
Name i Fee  Basic salaries benefit scheme benefits Total
EEHEHR BER
he EXHe EAGEMER At A @t
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T ARETR ARETR ARETR
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhang Zhifeng (i) RIS - 1,819 13 158 1,990
Mr. Ye Yaming (ii TR (i) - 1,627 - 66 1,693
Mr. Dong Xiaolin (iii) BN A (i) - 699 - 2 701
Mr. Ma Zhixiong (i) B R A i) 326 8 49 383
Non-Executive Directors FH1TES
Mr. Zhang Yude (iv) RIREL (V) - 469 - - 469
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Yang Ying (v) CES() 200 - - — 200
Mr. Ding Yi (v) TEREW) 200 - - - 200
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen (v) BEETLW) 260 — — — 260
660 4,940 21 275 5,896
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B G B 1% R 2R BT 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

230

(Cont’d)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(Cont’d)
The remuneration of each director borne by the Group for the year
ended August 31, 2020 is set out below:

35 EERANRER (F)

(a) E=

REBITHRABNF

B (&)
HZE2020F8A31HILFEAE
EEAENSEZHFIIHIIDOT

Employer's
contribution to Allowances
a retirement and other
Name "z Fee Basic salaries  benefit scheme benefits Total
BEEHERHK 2R
ik ERES BRGESNER Eft g &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETFT
Executive Directors WTEE
Mr. Zhang Zhifeng (i) FRBEA() = 1,866 10 119 1995
Mr. Ye Yaming (i ERRLE() — 843 — 34 877
Mr. Dong Xiaolin (ii) BB A i) - 822 — 3 825
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Zhang Yude (iv) RIRET (V) — 590 — — 590
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Chow Kwong Fai Eh S 240 — — — 240
Mr. Yang Ying (v) CES L) 200 = = = 200
Mr. Ding Yi (v) TEREW) 200 — — — 200
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen (v) BERLLV) 33 — - — 33
673 4121 10 156 4,960
(i) Mr. Zhang Zhifeng was appointed as an executive director of ()  REBEER2016F5H24

the Company on May 24, 2016.

(i) Mr. Ye Yaming was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on December 18, 2017.

(iii) ~ Mr. Dong Xiaolin were appointed as an executive director of
the Company on December 18, 2017 and has resigned as an
executive director of the Company with effect from January 20,
2021. After that, the Company appointed Mr. Ma Zhixiong as
an executive director from January 20, 2021 and replaced with
Mr. Zou Kang on November 19, 2021.

Huali University Group Limited
2021 Annual Report

(i)

(iii)

FEZERARANTE
=

EHE L AEN2017F12 8
1I8SEEZRT AR BT
E o

BB AEMR2017F12 A
18 EZERAR RN AT
EE . WMN2021F1 8200
HAERNRAHITES It
% - NARIR202141H20
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Cont’d)

(iv)  Mr. Zhang Yude was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on December 18, 2017, and re-designated from a
non-executive director to an executive director on November 19,
2021.

(vy  Mr. Yang Ying and Mr. Ding Yi were appointed as the
Company’s independent non-executive directors on August 16,
2019, and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen was appointed as an independent
non-executive director and the chairman of the audit committee
on July 17, 2020.

Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertakings during the
years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the years ended August 31,
2021 and 2020.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

Other than those disclosed in Note 33(d), there are no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favor of directors, controlled body
corporate by and connected entities with such directors during the
years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020.

AN

A G B 15 SRR BT &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE

(= HIEHI T EEBEUARERT)

35 EERANRER (F)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EERFIETHAEBNF

B (4F)

(iv) SR¥WEEEMR2017F12A
18 EZERANAIFH
TEE - WH20215F11 A
19BHEIFATEETHTA
HMITES °

v, BEEERTELEER
201968 A16HEZ T AN
RABYIERITES © HE
18 & 2020567 A17H
ZERBUFATEERE
REEBEER °

EERKERN

B 220214 %202068 A31H It
FER - HEEERERETRA
2 B 2 B 0 £ IR 5
17 45 R 2K 8 M AR AR B ) o

EERBEAN
B 220214 %202068A31H It
FER BERRANKILEEED
MEFX AR -

REBEEREMTF
BE=HTHNKE

B 220214 %202068 A31H It
FERHRERAATNERRH
ERRBEAEFHNEE A ER
B -

DESE -ESREHZEA
BERRBEERAZTHEA
MER EERKRHEHMR
ZWEEER
BRME3BAFMEEEN B2
20214 K 20208 A31H IEFE
A ENAEE  EEATIESE
ANBBELHEEBAZSZANE
K EERREMIZS o
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A ans /e =

& OF B 75 S 2k I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

HZE2021F8H31HLLFE
(5 HHEHI B L BEUANRKEKT)

35

232

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Cont’d)

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Other than those as disclosed in Note 33(b), there are no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years ended August
31, 2021 and 2020.

Huali University Group Limited
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35 EERARER (F)

()

BEEMERS RIS
HNEARER

BRI E33O)FTEEEIN - REE
20214 K% 2020F8 A31H IEFE
REFARFEMRERE - AR A HE
] M T ER AN R B) ¥ 75 B BE AN
AREETHESBEREEAE
EHNEARS - RHEREH -



Five-Year Financial Summary
IFEHHBHE

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for BEAETRFEFEAEENKEEFEERESE
the last five financial years is set out below: ENREBEMENT :

As at August 31,2021
72021568 H31H

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194F 2020 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR

Revenue Wz 578,168 608,008 674,800 761,481 881,656
Cost of revenue I &I %N (258,798) (273,633) (307,014) (308,902) (411,143)
Gross profit E| 319,370 334,375 367,786 452,579 470,513
Profit before tax Tt A 7 R 194,688 200,112 227,013 310,934 169,631
Profit for the year F A FH 193,092 193,327 223,063 306,669 143,459

As at August 31,2021
72021568 H31H

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194F 2020F 2021F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT ARETT ARETILT AR¥TR

Non-current assets EMBNEE 2,636,057 2,981,065 3,847,275 4,152,464 5,385,871
Current assets MEEE 737,526 641,680 479,555 905,742 943,356
Current liabilities mENAE 1,165,206 893,201 1,435,690 715,055 1,234,907

Net current assets/(liabilities) mEEE,/ (AE)
FE (427,680) (251,521) (956,135) 190,687 (291,551)

Total asset less current wEERRDAE
liabilities 2,208,377 2,729,544 2,891,140 4,343,151 5,094,320
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 1,343,867 1,371,707 1,310,240 1,666,333 2,408,915
Net assets EEFE 864,510 1,357,837 1,580,900 2,676,818 2,685,405
Total equity oy 864,510 1,357,837 1,580,900 2,676,818 2,685,405
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Definitions

“academic year”

“AGM"
[BRAFKE]

“Articles of Association”

(A =24 A

“Audit Committee”
[BZZEg]

“Board”
=53

“Business Cooperation

Agreement”

[XB 6 FinE

“BVI"

[(RBHBRAES]

"CG Code”
[ ERTA

“China” or "PRC"

[

“Company”

NN

“consolidated affiliated entities”

&
>
N
il
fek
i
i
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the academic year for all our school, which generally starts on September 1 of each
calendar years and ends on August 31, of the next calendar year

HMMEERNEE  —ROSEBFIABHE BT EEFSANASER

annual general meeting of the Company to be held on January 21, 2022

AATER2022F1A2IBRTHRBAFERS

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
AN B4 4 S 2B (BB ET)

the audit committee of the Board

E=gE%%ES

the board of directors of the Company

ARFEES

the Business Cooperation Agreement entered into by and among XZ Huali, Huali
Investment, our PRC Operating Entities and the Registered Shareholder dated March 23,
2017 (supplemented on November 27, 2017 and August 30, 2018)

FEmEY EURE FHREEEBRELRRILARAR2017F3A2BNEBLE
e (2017411 8278 K% 201848 A30H #i 7t )

the British Virgin Islands
EBER RS

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

AR RIBR $R 1 4PT B R 1R R B DA ST A

the People’s Republic of China and for the purposes of this report only, except where
the context requires otherwise, references to China or the PRC exclude Hong Kong, the
Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

REARKNE  ERABRENE BXBZEME REAPEREIBEEE -
FRlfTH R KA E

Huali University Group Limited (437 K& H AR AF]), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of WhICh are listed on the Main Board
(stock code: 1756)

UARFEHAARAA  REEHESTMALZERAR - ARGV ER L/ (&G
5%+ 1756)

the entities the Company controls through the structured contracts as further
elaborated in the section headed “Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus, namely
Huali Investment, Huali College, Huali Vocational College and Huali Technician College,
and each a “consolidated affiliated entity”

ARABBEEBESHZEHNERB(FRBRERTIABILEEN]—H)  BFE
RE EUBR FEURXBREFURMBER  FER—RGEAREEEE

+

\

2



“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ s s 3R

“Director(s)”

==

"Equity Pledge Agreement”

[ 7 & 1 157 2%

"Exclusive Call Option Agreement”

[ 8 R R0 I

"Exclusive Technical Service
and Management
Consultancy Agreement”
[ 8 5K Bl AR 745 % & 18+ s 175 o

”Group”, “We", "us”, or "our”

[ A SR k[ AP )

“Hong Kong”
[&E]

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK$"
[Tl

“Huali College”

<t
L
)

“Huali Construction”

Definitions

has the meaning as defined in the Listing Rules and, unless the context otherwise
requires, refers to Mr. Zhang, Trust Co and Huali Education

BELTRAREHNRE BXESBEMREN  BREE Trust COREYHE

the director(s) of the Company
ARAIES

The Equity Pledge Agreement entered into by and among the Registered Shareholder,
XZ Huali and Huali Investment dated August 30, 2018
BRBRE AREYRELREITZHEA2018F8A30H MR EE Mg

the Exclusive Call Option Agreement entered into by and among the Registered
Shareholder, Huali Investment, the PRC Operating Entities and XZ Huali dated March
23, 2017 and August 30, 2018
BRRER FURE PELETRLAREILALAHAR2017F3A23H K2018%F
8A30HMBRREBER =

the Exclusive Technical Service and Management Consultancy Agreement entered into
by and among XZ Huali, Huali Investment and the PRC Operating Entities dated March
23, 2017 (supplemented on August 30, 2018)

PEEY EYRERTEEBEEE LA A2017F3823BNBREMBRE LE
B (20188 A30A i 78)

the Company, its subsidiaries and its consolidated affiliated entities
AKATE - HNBRAA KRGS ARBETE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B E B R RITIR R

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BREEEEH

Guangzhou Huali College (BE/MZEZZFT) (formerly known as Huali College Guangdong
University of Technology (BEH T2 K227 2Ft)), a private independent college
established under the laws of the PRC on January 1, 2006, was converted into an
independently established private general undergraduate college with the official
approval by MOE in May 2021, and a consolidated affiliated entity of the Company
BMET2R(ABER TERNBET ) - R20065F1 81 BREFRBEZK O
RIFBI B WHR2021F5ARHENEA M EERABUIEORNERALRZ
b RARAINGEARBEER

Guangzhou Huali Construction Co., Ltd.* (BREZEEFRAF), a limited liability
company established in the PRC and 99.97% and 0.03% directly owned by Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhang Zhifan, the brother of Mr. Zhang, respectively, and a connected person
of the Company

BREVEERRAA  RPBEKZIHERAA  BREERELBRENEESF
HEHEA9.97%K0.03% + BARAIBEEAL
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Definitions

“Huali Education”

[ETHE ]

“Huali (HK) Education”

‘
b

[BEBEIHE]

4

“Huali Investment”

b

-
t

EERE ]

“Huali Property”

b

[ 57 3 E |

“Huali Shengrong”

“Huali Technician College”

g

[ 37 45 b 22 |

“Huali Vocational College”

J
&
e
8
i
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Huali Education Holdings Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in BVI and
wholly owned by Trust Co

EVHEERBERRR REBEBRESIMEALOBRIDAE - BATrust Co2 E#H
=)

Huali (HK) Education Investment Limited (BB EVHE L EFR AR, a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong on May 18, 2016 and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

ERBEVHBEREBRDR  R2016F5A18BEEFATMAIMNBERDA - BEAA
AMEZEZENE R

Guangzhou Huali Investment Company Limited (EM#ZEZ R EFRAF]), being the
School Sponsor of each of the PRC Operating Entities, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability on June 15, 1999 and a consolidated entity of the Company
BMEIREERAF SHELZETENSRHEA - N1999F6 A 158 £ B K
YWAERRNE  BRRAMNGEAEARER

Guangdong Huali Property Company Limited (ER#EHESBEFRQF]), a company
with limited liability established under the laws of the PRC on July 1, 2008 and held as
to 99% by Mr. Zhang and as to 1% by an independent third party, and which is not a
member of the Group

BREVHESEARAR - R2008F7A1RRBERBEERINERAA - EAE
ERKERRF  BHREEFEO%  —BHEILE=ZAFE1%

Guangzhou Huali Shengrong Education Technology Company Limited (E/NZE BEHE
B AR A A, a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability established under
the laws of the PRC on December 27, 2016, which is wholly owned by Huali (HK)
Education

BMETBREREREEARAE - N2016F 128278 REPE LR IHERET
INEBERCE BHAEBEUHEEHRSR

Guangdong Province Huali Technician College (BHR A 27 K A1E07), a private tertiary
vocational school established under the laws of the PRC on August 20, 2003, of which
the School Sponsor’s interest is wholly owned by Huali Investment, and a consolidated
affiliated entity of the Company

BREFEIEMBER - R2003F8A20BRBEFBUZERN UNRPSETBESER - A
FEURETERFERLEARER  RARANGEARBEER

Guangzhou Huali Science and Technology Vocational College (FEJHZE 7 FHs i 3 £2057),
a formal higher education institution established under the laws of the PRC on July 19,
2005, of which the school sponsor’s interest is wholly owned by Huali Investment, and
a consolidated affiliated entity of the Company

BNEE S BHE B ¥ 20t - R2005F7 A 198 BBHBUEAER IMNBRES SHE HE -
HEVREZEBERBEREE AR  BRARANGE ARBEETS



“Hualiyuan Technology”

[ BB

“Implementation Rules”

“Listing Date”

[ £ H &

“Listing Rules”

[ B R Al

“Main Board”
[E 1R ]

“Model Code”

[5 %~ Al

“MOE"
[#5 &)

“Mr. Zhang”

[R5EA

“mu”

[

“Nomination Committee”

[REZE®]

Definitions

Guangdong Hualiyuan Technology Company Limited (ERZE v ERHE AR AR
company with limited liability established under the laws of the PRC on January 6, 2004
held as to 99% by Mr. Zhang and as to 1% by Huali Property, and which is not a
member of the Group

BREVERKEBERAA - K2004F1 A6HBREFBEZEXN YN BRAR @ FAREEH
RERA BREERFBFI%  EUHERFEI%

the Regulations of the Implementation Rules for the Law for Promoting Private
Education of the PRC ( (R ZEARKMBERMAE RiEZEHIEH) ) issued by the State
Council on April 7, 2021, and effective from September 1, 2021

Bl %Pt 20216478 % h - WE2021FIA 1A BEBACPEARENBERIAE
R E B e 15 D1

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board on the Listing Date
M ETEBEER BT

November 25, 2019, the date on which the Shares were listed and on which dealings
in the Shares were first permitted to take place on the Main Board

2019F 11 H25H » AR LW RO EREENEIHREETEZH

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BRBMERHGMARARESFLHARA - BAKER  #HARIAEAMIT X ER

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Bt 32X BT E AR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EHRANMEI0MEYN ETETAETTETESRHNEETR

the Ministry of Education of the PRC (FF# A R HE MBI E &)
hEAREMBEHE I

Mr. Zhang Zhifeng, chairman of the Board, executive Director and one of our
Controlling Shareholders

EFZgXR ATEFRARAERRRZ —REEXRLE

the Chinese urban land area unit, whereby a mu equals to approximately 666.67 square
meters

FEWE T HEEEAN - —EFER4666.67F 55K

the nomination committee of the Board

E=gRE%ES
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Definitions

“PRC Operating Entities”
[hEEEEE]

"Prospectus”

[HBRER]

"Registered Shareholder”

[ &R ]

"Registered Shareholder’s Right
Entrustment Agreement and
Registered Shareholder’s
Power of Attorney”

[ELRRENETGZER
BRRREESE]

“Remuneration Committee”

(HMEES

“Reporting Period”
[ &5 2 |

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
AR ]

“School Directors”

[BRESF]

“School Directors’
Power of Attorney”

[BREEREE]

“School Sponsor(s)”

[BRHEEA]

“School Sponsor’s and Directors’

Rights Entrustment Agreement”

ECEEVNE S £ 5]
2l
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the Company’s consolidated affiliated entities, namely, Huali College, Huali Vocational
College and Huali Technician College
ARBNEAARBERRE  NEYSEE FEURFSBRNEIRMSR

the prospectus of the Company dated November 14, 2019
ARFIHEA2019F 11 A14BHBRER

Huali Investment is owned as to 99.999% by Mr. Zhang and as to 0.001% by Mr.
Zhang Zhifan
FEHREHRREERKENE LS FIFEHF99.999% £20.001 %% #

the Registered Shareholder’s Right Entrustment Agreement and Registered
Shareholder’s Power of Attorney entered into by and among Huali Investment, the
Registered Shareholder and XZ Huali in favor of XZ Huali dated September 19, 2017
(supplemented on August 30, 2018)

EYKRE BLRRLKAREIUNEAREZIAZ R AR ZAH/2017F9/8198HE
RRFEEMNEZEAHERECRREESZ (R2018F8A30H M 7)

the remuneration committee of the Board

E=gFMLEe

the year ended August 31, 2021
HZE2021F8A31BLFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARKE  HBEVEEER

the directors nominated by Huali Investment to each of our PRC Operating Entities

EVREAASTREEERRENES

the School Directors’ Power of Attorney executed by each of the School Directors
in favor of XZ Huali dated March 23, 2017 (supplemented on August 30, 2018,
September 28, 2018, April 23, 2019, July 22, 2019, October 10, 2019 and January 17,
2020)
EEREEN017F3ABAUARBEYAI R AZTINERESHES (R2018F
8H30H 201849 A28H 20194 H23H 20197 H22H ~2019F 10108 &
202041 178 #7E)

the individual(s) or entity(ies) that funds or holds interests in an educational institution

EPIRBERBRERENEARER

the School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement entered into by and
among Huali Investment, the School Directors and XZ Huali dated March 23, 2017
(supplemented on August 30, 2018, September 28, 2018, April 23, 2019, July 22,
2019, October 10, 2019 and July 20, 2020)

EUYRE PREFRAMEVITZAHR/2017FIABENEREEARBRES
R Z stk (FR20184F8 A30H ~ 20189 A 28H ~ 2019F4 A23H ~ 201947 H22
B - 20194 10A 108 k20207 A208 # 78)



School Sponsor’s
Power of Attorney
[EREEARES]

“SFO"

[BHRHE G

“Shareholder(s)"
RiES

“Shares”

MR ]

“South China”
[

“Spouse Undertaking”

[ c 18 55

“Stock Exchange”
[ Hgh 22 By |

“Structured Contracts”

[EBIEan]

“subsidiary(ies)”

Ry =Nl

“Trust Co”

[Trust Co

Definitions

the School Sponsor’s Power of Attorney executed by Huali Investment in favor of XZ
Huali dated March 23, 2017
EVREAUAREY AR AE LA R2017F3AANEREEARES

the securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EBHLYEGRD (FBEMESNE)  KARER - MmAaAEM BN

holder(s) of the Share(s)
BHOEFEEA

ordinary shares in the Company of par value US$0.0001 each
KA A9 R (E0.0001 3 7T B & B AR

Guangdong Province, Guangxi Province and Hainan Province of the PRC

TEERE  EREENREEEAE

the Spouse Undertaking executed by the spouse of the Registered Shareholder dated
March 23, 2017 (supplemented on August 30, 2018 and December 7, 2021)

FR R R ME A A2017F3 A23A MALEAE (R201848 A30H &2021412
RA78B#7)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EREBMAXHGMABRRAF

collectively, the Business Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive Technical Service and
Management Consultancy Agreement, the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, the Equity
Pledge Agreement, the School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement,
the School Sponsor’s Power of Attorney, the School Directors’ Power of Attorney, the
Spouse Undertaking, the Registered Shareholder’s Right Entrustment Agreement and the
Registered Shareholder’'s Power of Attorney

EBaEHE BREMRELEEHEARS BRABHERZS  BRESHRBE
BREBEANBREFENEZTNE BERHEEARES EREEEREZ  EEA
#HOBRRRBNEZERERBLRREEENRE

has the meaning ascribed thereto in section 15 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEERRER (BB AN E622F)F15&H FZAMNEE

Huali-Diamond Limited, a holding vehicle incorporated in BVI indirectly controlled by
UBS Trustee (B.V.l.) Limited, the trustee of HL-Diamond Trust, to hold the entire issued
share capital of Huali Education

Huali-Diamond Limited - R & B & @ = 8% & 7 M 5k 2 A9 5 AR 2 & » BHUBS Trustees
(B.V.1.) Limited (HL-Diamond Trustf) X5t A ) ZHIAR B ELHE N2 HEHITR
N
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Definitions

"Us$”
(%5

“XZ Huali”

“Yunfu Bilingual School”

M

|
H

4
></
1B
=

nop
[% ]

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

X XBEEEEY

Xizang Huali Shengda Information Technology Limited (FaiifE Sz B A(E BERIFARAT),
an enterprise established under the laws of PRC on January 18, 2017, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Huali Shengrong

AREVRAEEREERAA - R2017F1AI18HRBEHREZEZKR UM E - BE
VBRI EEME R A

Huali Bilingual School of Yunfu (Yun'an District) (E/¥MEXRETFRXER), a
private school established under the laws of the PRC on August 18, 2016, of which the
School Sponsor’s interest is wholly owned by Hualiyuan Technology
EFMEXEBEVRRERER R2016F8A18AREBEFEEEXNIHRIFER - A
EYEMREEBRASEREE AR

per cent
B

The English names of the PRC entities (including schools), PRC laws or regulations, ABERAFRER(BREER)  PRHERE
and the PRC government authorities referred to in this report are merely SERMTFRERAEANRECEBEAES
translations from their Chinese names and are for identification purposes. If there NEBOBE UEHD BT MER -
is any inconsistency, the Chinese names shall prevail. JEAR X Z B AR -
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